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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

oo

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”, or
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year”) for your review.

Looking back at 2022, the global economy remained unstable
as global inflation intensified due to factors such as the conflict
between Russia and Ukraine, the undiminished impact from
COVID-19 pandemic and geopolitical tensions. However, against
the backdrop of the ongoing global economic slowdown, the
central government gradually lifted the lockdowns, leading to a
gradual recovery of economic activities in Mainland China. The
gradual and orderly reopening of the market also laid a sound
foundation for the prospects of economic recovery.

The real estate market in Mainland China continued to be under
downward pressure in recent years and the development of
the industry was impacted. In fact, as the overall real estate
development in China has not yet to pick up, the pace of
expansion of the property management industry in the country
also continued to slow down in 2022. Nevertheless, the industry
presented new features in terms of development scale, brand
building, city services and capital market last year. In the first
half of the year, against the market trend of decreasing market
sentiment of mergers and acquisitions, independent market
expansion has become the core competitiveness for long-term
development of enterprises. At the same time, this situation
has only been alleviated with the improvement of the country’s
control policy for real estate. The tightening of financing policies
in real estate market in the second half of last year accelerated
the debt crisis of related development enterprises and led to an
unprecedented high popularity in mergers and acquisitions.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued])
gooodon

In the past year, the Group continued to flexibly adjust its
commercial leasing position in order to reduce the risk
of immediate rent termination in a challenging operating
environment, supporting tenants to tide over the period of
economic fluctuations, and maintained the Group’s brand image.
At the same time, the proposal of the “14th Five-Year” Plan has
accelerated the development of the industry and increased
the service coverage of the industry; pursuant to which, the
Group has been expanding its value-added services of various
categories and continued to uphold the Group’s philosophy
of achieving high-quality development through innovation and
breakthroughs to open up more opportunities for the property
management industry in China.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB52.3 million, a decrease of approximately 0.8%
over the same period last year, and the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB22.1
million, a decrease of approximately 32.4% over the same
period last year, mainly due to the drop in the valuation gains
on investment properties during the year. In order to reward
the shareholders for their support to the Company, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB1.90 cents
(equivalent to HK2.17 cents) per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022. The Company will continue to
strive to provide ideal dividend returns as a token of appreciation
to its shareholders for their support to the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank
balances of RMB214.9 million and a gearing ratio of 18.3%.The
Company’s healthy financial position and cash flow will strongly
support the investments required for the Company’s continued
development. Meanwhile, facing the opportunities and
challenges ahead, in addition to existing strong capital position,
the Group will adhere to the core concept of innovation and
effectiveness, focusing on the development of new momentum
in the industry and consolidate and enhance its foothold in
the property management industry by fully implementing the
concept of sustainable development, and promote China’s
property management to a brand-new horizon. In addition, the
Group will continue to flexibly adjust its commercial leasing
strategy, improve its overall risk management, and will strive
to maintain long-term and stable relationships with its existing
customer base, actively improve its service quality and strive
to expand into new businesses in order to enhance the future
development potential of the overall business.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT (Continued])
goobdon

Looking forward to 2023, although the business environment is
still full of adverse factors, real GDP growth and resilience were
stronger than expected in the third quarter of 2022 in many
economies. The inflation situation has also been improved, with
headline inflation indicators now declining in most countries.
With the improvement of global financial environment, economic
growth is expected to bottom out. Under the premise of the full
recovery of overall economic outlook, the property management
industry will also expand in scale in the future, while focusing
more on the improvement of service quality. In addition, the
Group will also focus on refined development and continue to
strengthen its standardised service capabilities to enhance its
competitiveness in the market and sublimate the Group’s brand
value.

On behalf of the Board of the Group, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all the staff of
the Group for their whole-hearted and dedicated contribution
in the past year. Meanwhile, the Group would also like to
express its sincere gratitude to its shareholders, customers and
business partners for their full support. In the future, the Group
will continue to promote the high-standard development of the
property management industry, explore new road for modern
property services and actively contribute its own strengths to
the property management industry in China, thereby continuing
to drive the sustainable development of its business and create
more value to repay shareholders for their appreciation to the
Group.

Chairman of the Board
LIU Jia

28 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

goodoggon

FINANCIAL RESULT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
revenue and profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB52.3 million (2021:
approximately RMB52.7 million) and approximately RMB22.1
million (2021: approximately RMB32.7 million), respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
leasing, the provision of property management services and the
sale of properties held for sale.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately RMB52.3 million (2021:
approximately RMB52.7 million), which represented a
decrease of approximately 0.8% as compared to last year,
mainly impacted by the reduction in revenue from property
management service. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB22.1 million (2021: approximately RMB32.7
million), which represented a decline of approximately 32.4% as
compared to last year. The decrease in profit is mainly due to
the decline in valuation gains on investment properties during
the year. The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB0.05 (2021: RMBO0.07).
The review of the individual business segment of the Group is
set out below.

PROPERTY LEASING

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing business
was approximately RMB38.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB37.3 million). The slight rise in
the average rent per square meters (“sgq.m.”) resulted in the
increase in total rental income. The Group’s leasing properties
are located in Chengdu, Sichuan province and Kunming, Yunnan
province in the PRC. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
property portfolio comprises three commercial buildings, namely
Everbright Financial Center, part of Everbright International
Mansion and Ming Chang Building, with a total gross floor area
(“GFA”) of approximately 89,507 (2021: 89,507) sq.m.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
goggooooooao

PROPERTY LEASING PORTFOLIO ooooon

Average occupancy rate Rental income for the year

As at 31 December 2022  Average occupancy rate (Commercial use)t" ended 31 December
goooo 00120800000
020220120 310 goooo gooooom oooo
Commercial
GFA owned  use GFA" 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
0oo oooo
ooo ooo
00 ogm 20220 20210 20220 20210 20220 20210
RMB AMB
(sq.m) (sq.m,) % % % % (million) (millon)
oo oo
oaoooon - oooon % % % % oooopo oooon
Commercial Properties oooo
Everbright Financial Centerd ~ 0O0O00O0® 34,335 31,158 63% 73% 70% 81% 18.9 204
No. 9 Wenwu Road, goooooo
Qingyang District, Chengdu oo
Everbright International goooone
Mansion® 38,199 28,905 68% 64% 90% 85% 9.8 8.3
No. 2 Gaoshi Stregt, goooooo
Qingyang District, Chengdu 0o2o
Ming Chang Building® goooe 16,973 16,973 96% 92% 96% 92% 9.6 8.6
No. 28 Renmin Road Central, OCOOCO0
Wuhua District, Kunming gooo28o
89,507 77,081 38.3 37.3
Notes: ooo
U Excluding warehouses and parking spaces which cannot be used as gooDooDoooDoDooDooooooog
offices, commercial spaces or residence. gooooooo

@ All the properties are located in the PRC and held under medium-term @ gooooooooooooopoooo
lease.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
00ooO0oooOoooo

Average occupancy rate (Commercial use)

FHEMAR(MRAE)
100% & & |
0% B -, %
-
-3 \
T0% e
B0%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
® Everbright Financial Cantar il Ming Chang Building .- Evarbright International Mansion
bt Lt AR SRR
e Golion}. | Total Rental income
AT
wEeg
50
40 b J -
L " — : |
4 - X
£ |
|
20 | . |
m I I I I
0
2018 2018 2020 2021 2022
Everhright Financial Center . Ming Chang Building . Everbright International Mansion Disfu Garden™
bt o a5 bl HHTEM
Note: Ooog
U The properties were disposed during the year ended 31 December O Jo0oooDoDo202001203100000
2020. 0o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
goggooooooao

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICE

The Group provided property management services for its
properties, namely, Everbright Financial Center and Everbright
International Mansion. Revenue from the Group’s property
management services was approximately RMB14.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB15.4 million). The
decrease in revenue from property management services was
resulted from the decrease in occupancy rate during the year.
The total GFA under the Group’s management dropped 8.6%
to approximately 59,413 sgq.m. as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
65,037 sg.m.).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties mainly consist of land and/
or buildings which are owned or held under leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. As at 31
December 2022, the fair value of the investment properties was
RMB954.1 million (2021: RMB953.7 million). The valuation gains
on investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately RMBO0.1 million (2021: approximately
RMB17.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB17.4 million as compared to last year. The decrease
indicated the property market in the PRC was affected by
COVID-19 near the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
gogoboooboooao

PROSPECTS

The year 2022 was still a difficult year for the global economy,
which has been hit by multiple and complex factors. Multiple
risk factors such as the Russia-Ukraine war crisis, global
high inflation and the spread of new variants of COVID-19
have seriously exacerbated the pace of recovery of world
economy. Under the influence of macroeconomy and real estate
development, coupled with the disruption from the pandemic
and sluggish consumption, the scale of property management
has still achieved steady expansion. Recently, positive signals
have been continuously released in respect of policies, and
relevant state authorities have successively issued a number of
policy documents to continue to promote the development of
the industry.

The report of the 20th Party Congress proposed the
implementation of the national strategy to actively respond to
the aging population and the development of the elderly care
business and the elderly care industry. The Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development clearly pointed out that it will
introduce technologies such as the Internet of Things, cloud
computing, big data, block chain and artificial intelligence
to build a smart property management service platform and
promote the integrated development of online and offline
services. With the popularization of technologies such as the
Internet of Things and big data, the penetration rate of hardware
facilities such as smart gateway, smart access control and
smart parking lots has increased within the community, and
the property management industry is expected to achieve
technology empowerment, reduce labour costs and improve
long-term competitiveness. Intelligent community management
is in line with the people’s growing demand for better lifestyle
services and the progress driven by technological advances.
The wave of the Internet of Everything continues to forge ahead,
and coupled with the catalysis of policies, the demand for
smart properties is expected to be further released, which will
provide important development opportunities for the property
management industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
goggooooooao

In addition, the Outline of the “14th Five-Year” Plan and Long- O 0000000 0OMOOOOO00O0O
Range Objectives through the Year 2035 (DO O OO0 ODO0O g20350 00000000 goooo
020350 0 000 0O 0O D) issued by the central governmenthas 0 000 0D0O00OOOOOOOOO
mentioned the property management industry for several times, oodooooooooooood
and regards the service industry, including property, as an oooooodoooooooooaon
important direction to accelerate the quality development of the 0ooddoDOooooDoobooooad
lifestyle service industry, which further promotes the integration ooooooooooooood
of property into community governance. Housekeeping service Jdoooooooooooooaon
is an important part of value-added services for property. 0ooDooDoooooooo

With the enhancement of residents’ awareness of service

consumption and the gradual release of demand for a better

community life, the property is expected to further tap into the

large blue ocean market of community service consumption.

OoOooooo
Oooooooo
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Under the influence of uncertainties, the Group’s property
leasing business was inevitably impacted, which resulted in
a downward pressure on rental income from the properties.
However, the Group has already started its deployment in
2021 and has acquired new tenants since this year. Benefiting
from the synergy created from the China Everbright Group
and the popularity of the “Everbright” brand, the Group is able
to maintain a friendly long-term cooperation that is mutually
beneficial and creates a win-win situation which contributes to
the stable growth of its leasing business.

Ooooooooo
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The decline in the completions of new property projects in
mainland China and the increase in the average building age of
projects under management that is common among property
service companies have stimulated a gradual shift from the
previous focus on aggressive expansion in scale to quality
growth. The Group believes that the future trend of the industry
will focus on enhancing service quality, building the profitability
of each of its properties under management and enhancing
brand value in order to achieve the operation objective of growth

Oooooooo
ODoOooogoaog

in scale.

In fact, the property management industry in mainland China OO0 O0O0OOOOOOOOOOOOOO
is still in its formative years, and on one hand, the Group’s OO0O0O0OOOOOOO0OOOOCOOOO
professional property management team continued to provide O 0000 OO0OO0OO0OOOOOOOOO
high-quality property management services for its projects 0000000 OO0OODOOOOOOAO
to enhance the value of properties, and continued to actively OO0 000000 OO0OOOOOOOO
identify properties with investment potential on the other hand, OO0 00000 ODOO0OO0OOOO0OO
and it also continued to develop new value-added service O 0O00O00O00OO

business to broaden its service boundary and business scope.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
gogoboooboooao

For the plan to acquire new assets overseas, the Group
will continue to prudently and closely review the market
environment and the potential investment returns of various
types of properties in order to formulate appropriate business
development strategies, and will also determine the pace of
acquisition of new assets in overseas markets in light of factors
such as changes in market and macro environment factors,
currency exchange rates and interest rate movements. In
respect of the business expansion strategies in mainland China,
the Group will continue to identify opportunities with good
return potential in mainland China on one hand, and will seek
for synergy with its parent company, China Everbright Group, to
achieve more efficient allocation of resources on the other hand.

Looking forward to 2023, there are still many uncertainties in
global economy and business environment for enterprises.
However, as all regions of China are gradually emerging from
the shadow of the COVID-19 pandemic, the central government
is also gradually relaxing its regulation on the property industry
in an orderly manner and is actively promoting the improvement
of operating cash flows of developers, resulting in signs of
recovery in property sales in mainland China. At the same
time, the state has launched a series of encouraging policies
to support and promote the development of the property
management industry, which resulted in a significant emphasis
on the role of the industry in the country’s development. The
Group remains cautiously optimistic about the development of
the property management industry in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ubooboobooof

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2022
was approximately RMB965.3 million (2021: approximately
RMB940.7 million). As at 31 December 2022, the Group
maintained cash and bank balances of approximately RMB214.9
million (2021: approximately RMB203.8 million). The Group’s
net current assets was approximately RMB200.3 million as at
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately RMB173.0 million).
The Group had current assets of approximately RMB222.9
million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately RMB207.7
million). The increase in current assets was mainly due to the
rise in trade and other receivables and prepayments during
the year. The Group had current liabilities of RMB22.6 million
(2021: approximately RMB34.7 million). The decrease in current
liabilities was mainly due to the repayment of a bank loan during
the year.

The working capital and long-term funding required by the
Group are primarily derived from income generated from core
business operations. The Group fully repaid the bank loan
of RMB7.0 million during the year. As at 31 December 2021,
the bank loan of RMB7.0 million was secured by the Group’s
investment properties. The Group’s gearing ratio, being
measured by the Group’s total liabilities over its total assets,
was 18.3% (2021: 19.4%) as at 31 December 2022. The Group’s
liquidity position was well-managed in this year. To manage the
liquidity risk, an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents
that the Group considers sufficient to finance its operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flow has been
maintained.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no charged assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding bank loan of RMB7.0
million was secured by Everbright International Mansion with
an aggregate GFA of approximately 38,082 sg.m. and the fair
value of the said pledged assets amounted to approximately
RMB366.5 million.

goooooooan

gz0220120310 000000000
ObD0Oooees30 0 dd20210000 00O
940.70 O O 0202201203100 0 O
ooboo0oOoooooobooo24.o0
0o2021000000203.8000M000
2022012031000 00000000
o0oo00ooDb20030 0002021000 0
0 0173.00 0 O 020220120 310 O
oopooooboobobbooOo222900
gozo2i00b0oono20770 000 O0
oooooobobooooboooooao
gboodoboooobooooobod
O0O000bOo022e60 0 002021000
Oo3470o0D0DmooDooooDnD
gooobobobbooooo

I s |

oooObOooooobobOo0oo0oo0oo
gooouoboobouoboooauoboad
oboooooooobooooovrono
00oz20210120310 ,0 O Ov7o0 O
goooboooboooooobDoDbOo
ggo2z0220120310 00000000
gooooooooooooogon
18.394120210019.4%M 00000 0O
gboboobooooboooboboad
ggoobooboooboooooooan
gboooooboooobooboood
gobooooooo

OO ooooooooogdg

gogooodahnb

gz0z2z20120310 000 o0oOD0DbDO0
guo

gzo2ig1z2o3iooocooooOooag
ooOrzo0oOooonOnOaoanoanassoszld
ooooocobooooooo,cboooao
OooDobooobooosees00nn

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
gogoboooboooao

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group’s transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in RMB. The management of the
Group is of the opinion that the Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity as a
result of the fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Therefore, the Group
did not engage in any hedging activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no contingent liability
(2021: Nil).

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS &
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December 2022
attributable to the major customers of the Group were as
follows:

Percentage of total
revenue of the Group

17.7%
53.3%

The largest customer
Five largest customers in aggregate

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the major
customers noted above. Due to the nature of the business of
the Group, the Group does not have any major suppliers.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There was no material change in the capital structure of the

Company during the year, and the Company’s capital included
ordinary shares and other reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ubooboobooof

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue
suitable investment projects to capitalise the potential growth
of the Group’s business in the coming years in the manner set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 December 2017
(“Prospectus”). Such source of funding would be primarily
from the external resources.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no significant investment held, nor was there any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the
reporting period.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no

important event affecting the Group which occurred after the
reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ugboobooboooo

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the global offering on 16
January 2018 (the “Listing Date”), after deducting relevant
listing expenses, was approximately RMB116.1 million (“Net
Proceeds”). Up to 31 December 2022, the Group had used
approximately RMB14.8 million (2021: RMB13.0 million) of the
Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the section head

“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
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Utilised Unutilised Net
Amount during the Amount Proceeds
utilisedupto  year ended utilised up to as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Net Proceeds 2021 2022 2022 2022
020220
0020210 0 020220 0020220 1203100
oo 120310 0 120 310 1203100 goooo
good ooooo ooooo goooo good
RMB 000 RMB000 FRMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Acquisition of properties in 92,904 3,162 - 3,162 89,742
the major cities of the
United Kingdom (UK))
goooooooo
oo
Upgrade in building 11,613 5,746 1,737 7,483 4,130
facilities and/
or renovating the
properties of the Group
goooooooo
gooooooo
Working capital and 11,613 4,140 - 4,140 7473
general corporate
purposes
goooooooooao
oo 116,130 13,048 1,737 14,785 101,345
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ubooboobooof

Note: The expected timeline for fully utilising the unutilised Net Proceeds
is based on the best estimations of the future market conditions
made by the Group and is subject to change based on the current
and future development of the market conditions.

As at 31 December 2022, the unutilised Net Proceeds was
approximately RMB101.3 million (2021: RMB103.1 million).

As the COVID-19 pandemic gradually subsides in the second
half of 2022, the travel and quarantine restrictions were
gradually lifted near the end of 2022. The Group has resumed
site visits and will continue market research and liaising with
property agents in order to acquire property in London that
fit the Group’s selection criteria and development strategy.
Taking into account that the U.K. economy is expected to enter
into recession in 2023, the time required to identify potential
targets which fit the property selection criteria and development
strategy of the Group and the time required to complete such
acquisition, it is expected that the remaining amount of the
unutilised Net Proceeds allocated for acquisition of properties in
major cities of the U.K. will be fully utilised by the end of 2024.

Similarly following the gradual recovery from the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group expects to see a business recovery and
improvements and upgrades will gradually be made to the
properties on necessary basis to allow the Group to improve the
properties’ occupancy rates and further increase their average
rent. Considering our development strategies and the time
required to undergo upgrades and renovation, it is expected that
the remaining amount of the unutilised Net Proceeds allocated
for upgrading building facilities and/or renovating the properties
of the Group will be fully utilised by the end of 2024.

Going forward in 2023, the Directors will closely monitor the
current and future market development to evaluate its business
objectives and to apply the unutilised Net Proceeds according
to the changing market condition to create greater value for the
Shareholders.

The unutilised Net Proceeds will be applied according to the
purposes set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The Directors considered that it
would be in the best interest of the Group to deposit such funds
temporarily in the bank accounts to earn interest income and
are not aware of any material change to the proposed use of the
proceeds as at the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
gogoboooboooao

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 137
employees (2021: 141 employees) and appointed 8 Directors.
Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately RMB16.0 million (2021: RMB15.8 million).
The Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on
a regular basis and makes necessary adjustment commensurate
with the remuneration level in the industry. In addition to a
basic monthly salary, discretionary bonuses are offered to staff
with outstanding performance. The Group also provides other
benefits such as medical insurance and retirement benefits

scheme. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited e 0000000 O

goooooano

020220120310 0000 0 0O 01370
0 2021001410 0 O OO O O8O
gooooooboooboboooboDbood
oboooooteodnnoozoez21ioon
gesooomoooooooon
gbobdoooooooboobood
gboooobooboobobooooooboao
gboooboooooobobobo
gogbobooboooobobbooogo
gobooooooooooooobon

s e Y



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

guobdoodubodnd

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Jia

Aged 58, is an executive Director, chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer, the chairman of the investment
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 1991
and is acting as the director and chairman of two Company’s
subsidiaries, namely Growing China Limited and Metallic Field
Limited. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, including Square Field Limited, First Step Corporation
Limited and Everbright Grand China Assets Management
Limited. Mr. Liu is currently a director of China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited (“CE Hong Kong”).

Mr. Liu joined Capital Century Company Limited (“Capital
Century”) in 1988. He served as the director and deputy
general manager of Capital Century in 1991, mainly responsible
for the day-to-day operations and property investment and
management of investment projects. Since Capital Century is a
subsidiary of CE Hong Kong, Mr. Liu acted as its deputy general
manager in the real estate department during the period from
August 1997 to March 2000, mainly responsible for the
investment and business operations of real estate. At the end of
1998, Mr. Liu served as the director and general manager of
China Everbright Financial Assets Management (HK) Limited
(“China EB Financial Assets”), responsible for receiving and
disposing of overseas investment assets entrusted by domestic
financial management departments. China EB Financial Assets
is the initial company of Huida Asset Management Ltd. Co.* (O
0O0Oo0D0Do0OO000OO0oOd). In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed as
the assistant president in the head office of China Everbright
Bank Company Limited (“CE Bank”) and was responsible for
related work matters. He was promoted as the general manager
of Capital Century in 2004, upon which he became responsible
for the overall operational management and strategic
development. Since August 2014, Mr. Liu has been appointed
and served as an executive director and deputy general
manager of CE Hong Kong, as well as the chairman of Capital
Century (the parent company of the Company).

*

for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])

ubooobdoboooooo

Mr. Liu graduated from the Civil Engineering Department
of Nanjing Jinling Institute of Technology (formerly known
as Jinling Polytechnic University), majoring in industrial and
civil architecture in July 1986, and obtained a postgraduate
certificate of architecture, economics and management in
Southeast University (O O O 0O) in August 1992. Since July
2016, he has become a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and was hired as an off-campus master’'s Supervisor
in the School of International Business of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics in September 2022 for a
period of one year.

Mr. MA Heming

Aged 54, is an executive Director, a member of the nomination
committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma
joined the Group in April 2021, currently also acts as the director
of several major subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ma is experienced in real estate, international trade and
public relations. From August 1990 to February 1992, Mr. Ma
worked at Beijing First Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (O
000oDO0OoooOoooon). From March 1992 to September
1999, Mr. Ma worked at China Far East International Trading
Corporation* (OO OODOOOODODO). From October 1999
to January 2006, Mr. Ma worked at China Public Relations
Association (00 00O O 0O0OO) (the “Association”). Mr. Ma
was appointed as the deputy director of the Association in
February 2002. From April 2011 to August 2014, Mr. Ma was
appointed as the director of the Association. From February
2006 to March 2011, Mr. Ma worked at Liaison Office of
the Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (00 00 O00O0O0O0OOOOOOOO
0 00) (the “Liaison Office’). Mr. Ma was appointed as a
director of the Liaison Office in May 2009. Mr. Ma has served
as the deputy secretary general of Mainland, Hong Kong and
Macao Trade Promotion Association* (00O OO0 O0OOO
00O 00) since September 2014. Mr. Ma was also appointed
as a director of Capital Century, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, in April 2021.

Mr. Ma received a certificate in Economics and Management
from Beijing Youth Politics College (D00 OO OODODODO) in
July 1990 and a post-graduate certificate in Economics and
Management from National Academy of Governance* (0 O O O
0 0O) in July 2000.

*

for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. WANG Yun

Aged 54, is a non-executive Director of the Company, and
joined the Group in August 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang worked at the National
Planning Commission of the PRC* (000D 00D O0OOOODO0O
0 O) (currently known as the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC (O OO D OOOOOOOOOOOOO))
from September 1991 to April 1992. From April 1992 to
February 1993, Ms. Wang worked as the finance manager at
Beijing Fulanka Digital System Co., Ltd* (DO OO OO OO0O
00O 00). From February 1993 to May 1998, Ms. Wang worked
as the finance supervisor at China Everbright International
Economic and Technical Cooperation Corporation* (0 O O 0O O
Oo0oooooOono). From May 1998 to October 1999, Ms.
Wang worked as the financial manager at China Everbright
(South Africa) Company (Proprietary) Limited * (0 O 0 000 OO
O 00000 O0aG0) (“Everbright South Africa”) and
Everbright International Engineering (Proprietary) Limited (O O
0000 0OOO0) (“Everbright International Engineering”).
From October 1999 to September 2007, Ms. Wang worked as
the chief financial officer of Everbright South Africa and
Everbright International Engineering. From September 2007 to
October 2012, Ms. Wang worked as the senior manager of
insurance and non-financial audit division of the audit
department at China Everbright (Group) Limited * (0 O O 00 O
000 O0) (currently known as China Everbright Group). From
October 2012 to April 2014, Ms. Wang was appointed as the
division chief of banking division of the audit department at the
China Everbright Group. From April 2014 to June 2016, Ms.
Wang worked as the division chief of insurance and
non-financial audit division and the senior deputy manager of
audit department at China Everbright Group. From April 2016 to
November 2017, Ms. Wang worked as the deputy general
manager of the audit department at China Everbright Group.
Ms. Wang has been the general manager of the financial
management department and a director at CE Hong Kong, a
controlling shareholder of the Company since November 2017.
Ms. Wang has been a director of Capital Century, a controlling
shareholder of the Company since August 2021.

*

for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])
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Ms. Wang has been the chairman of the Financial & Accounting
Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association (0 OO0 OO O O) since December
2019.

Ms. Wang received a bachelor’s degree of economics,
accounting department from Central University of Finance
and Economics (DO OO O0O) in June 1991 and a Master of
Business Administration from De Montfort University in March
2006. Ms. Wang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. ZHUANG Minrong

Aged 49, is a non-executive Director of the Company, and
joined the Group in August 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhuang worked as an operation
manager at Fujian Huagiao Trust Investment Company* (O O O
O0OO0000goo)from September 1996 to March 2001. From
March 2001 to August 2007, Mr. Zhuang worked as a corporate
account manager at China Everbright Bank Fuzhou Branch (O
0O0O0O0ooogao) (the “Bank”). Mr. Zhuang worked as the
general manager’s assistant of the 1st business department
from August 2007 to February 2009 and the general manager of
the 5th business department and department of small and
medium-sized enterprises at the Bank from February 2009 to
December 2014. From December 2014 to April 2021, Mr.
Zhuang worked as the general manager of the risk management
department and credit approval department at the Bank. He has
been the assistant general manager of the risk management,
internal control and compliance department at CE Hong Kong,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, since May 2021. Mr.
Zhuang has been a director of Capital Century, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, since August 2021.

Mr. Zhuang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from
Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics* (0 0 0 0 O 0O)
(now known as Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (O
OOooo0Ooo)inJuly 1996.

*

for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSOI David

Aged 75, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee as well as a member of the
investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in December 2017. Since 1 October
2022, he has been a Senior Consultant of Patrick Wong C.P.A.
Limited, and serves as the Director of Alliott Tsoi CPA Limited
since January 2006. He has been a certified public accountant
since September 1981 with over 30 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. He is also
qualified as and has been:

(@)

a certified public accountant registered at the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘“HKICPA");

a certified tax advisor registered at the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong;

a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since September 1981;

a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since May 2015;

a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors since April 1987 and a fellow since December
2015;

a fellow of the CPA Australia since November 2009; and

a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Canada since June 2015.
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He has also been the independent non-executive director of the
following listed companies, all of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”):

(@)

Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as Melcolot
Limited) (stock code: 8198) from October 2001 to July
2017;

Enviro Energy International Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1102)
from July 2008 to June 2017;

Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026)
since June 2013;

Guru Online (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8121) since
May 2014;

VPower Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1608) since October 2016;

Anxin-China Holdings Limited (stock code: 1149) from
February 2017 to May 2017;

Green International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700)
since June 2017;

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 0117) since
August 2017; and

InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087) since May
2021.

Mr. Tsoi obtained a master degree of business administration in
the University of East Asia, Macau in October 1986.
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Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham (formerly Razack Ebrahim
Abdul and Abraham Razack)

Aged 77, is an independent non-executive Director and also
the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Shek joined the
Group in December 2017, he obtained a bachelor’'s degree of
arts and a diploma in education in the University of Sydney
in May 1969 and March 1970, respectively. He became the
honorary fellow of Lingnan University, the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, the University of Hong Kong and
the Education University of Hong Kong in November 2008,
June 2014, September 2016 and March 2018, respectively. In
addition to his achievements in the academic field, Mr. Shek has
also earned certain honorary titles in various ambits. He was
appointed as Justice of the Peace in July 1995 and awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region 2007 and 2013 Honours
Lists, respectively. He has been appointed as the Honorary
Member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology since August 2020. Mr. Shek is currently the
member of the Court and the Council of The University of Hong
Kong and a Court member of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Shek currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of the following listed companies and collective
investment schemes, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange: (a) Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617)
since July 2002; (b) Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
(stock code: 0367) since May 2004; (c) NWS Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0659) since September 2004; (d) Country Garden
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2007) since March
2007; (e) Chuang’s China Investments Limited (stock code:
0298) since April 2008; (f) ITC Properties Group Limited (stock
code: 0199) since September 2010; (g) China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313) since January
2011; (h) Lai Fung Holdings Limited (stock code: 1125) since
December 2012; (i) Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0120) since December 2013; (j) Regal
Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal Real
Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881) since November
2006; (k) Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 2778)
since May 2006; () CSI Properties Limited (stock code: 0497)
since July 2018; (m) Far East Consortium International Limited
(stock code: 0035) since June 2019; (n) Shin Hwa World Limited
(stock code: 0582) since August 2020; (o) Hao Tian International
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Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341) since
October 2020; and (p) Alliance International Education Leasing
Holdings Limited (formerly known as International Alliance
Financial Leasing Co. Ltd) (stock code: 1563) since July 2021.

Besides, Mr. Shek currently serves as the chairman and
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0530) since March 2021. Announcements were published
by Goldin Financial Holdings Limited on (i) 11 October 2020
that Goldin Financial Holdings Limited received a winding up
petition dated 7 August 2020 filed by a company against Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited with the Supreme Court of Bermuda
and (i) on 31 March 2022 that the trading in the shares of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited has been suspended with
effect from 1 April 2022.

He previously served as an independent non-executive director
of the following listed companies, all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange: (a) PT International Development Corporation
Limited (formerly known as ITC Corporation Limited) (stock
code: 0372) from June 2006 to March 2017; (b) Dorsett
Hospitality International Limited (previous stock code: 2266)
(withdrawn from listing on the Stock Exchange in October 2015)
from September 2010 to March 2016; (c) TUS International
Limited (stock code: 0872) from June 2015 to January 2017; (d)
Magnus Concordia Group Limited (formerly known as Midas
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1172) from August
2001 to January 2018; () MTR Corporation Limited (stock code:
0066) from December 2007 to May 2019; (f) Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited (previous stock code: 0047) (withdrawn from
listing on the Stock Exchange in January 2022) from April 2008
to June 2020; (g) Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
0530) from January 2017 to March 2021; (h) SUM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0880) from October 2007 to May 2021
and (i) Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1212) from March 2004 to December 2022, the company was
withdrawn from listing on 20 December 2022.

Mr. Shek had been a non-executive director and a member of
the audit committee of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited, a public company incorporated in Hong Kong, from
December 2004 to April 2016.
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Mr. LEE Jor Hung

Aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee, audit committee as well as investment
committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee joined the Group in December 2017. He is currently
the chairman of DL Brokerage Limited, in which he has been
licensed as the dealing director and responsible officer by
the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) since August
1993 and October 2003, respectively, under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) to carry on type 1 (i.e. dealing
in securities) and type 4 (i.e. advising on securities) regulated
activities. He has also served as the director and the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Securities Association Limited
since August 1991 and September 1999, respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee had served as a
non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (stock code: 0388), CIG Yangtze Ports PLC (previous
stock code: 8233) (listing of the shares transferred from the
GEM to the Main Board in January 2018) and Sinofortune
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Stockmartnet
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8123), all of which being
listed on the Stock Exchange, from April 2000 to April 2006,
September 2005 to November 2011, and May 2000 to May
2005, respectively. He had also served as a director of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute from December 2003
to December 2008, and become a fellow member and senior
fellow since November 2012 and September 2014, respectively.

Mr. Lee had served as a member of the advisory committee and
a member of the process review panel to the SFC, from June
1999 to May 2001 and from November 2006 to October 2012,
respectively. In addition, he had also served as a member of
Disciplinary Panel A and Investigation Panel A of the HKICPA,
from February 2005 to January 2011 and from February 2011 to
January 2015, respectively. He had also been a member of the
Barrister Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from September 2005 to
August 2015.
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Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in the
University of Alberta, Canada in May 1977 and a master degree
of business administration in the University of East Asia, Macau
in October 1986. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2000 Honors List.

Mr. WANG Cheung Yue

Aged 79, is an independent non-executive Director, as well
as a member of the remuneration committee and investment
committee of the Company.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in August 2022, and has been the
chairman and director of Salon Films (Hong Kong) Limited since
its incorporation in 1969. Since 2017, Mr. Wang has been an
independent non-executive director of Hailiang International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2336). Mr. Wang is a director of
The Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited, a
member of the Hong Kong Advisory Board of British Academy
of Film and Television Arts, an honorary consultant to the
Academy of Film of Hong Kong Baptist University, a member
of advisory committee of School of Film and Television of The
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts, the co-founder of
Asia Content Business Summit, a director of Asian Film Awards
Academy Limited, a director of Salon Media Lab Limited and
a director of Education Innovation Research Institute in the
Greater Bay Area Limited. Mr. Wang has also been appointed as
an advisor for the Project of Moral Community of the Kingdom
of Thailand Ministry of Culture. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree in business administration from Whittier College,
California in 1972.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. LIU Jia

Mr. Liu is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director,
also the chief executive officer, the chairman of the investment
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Board. For details of his qualifications, see “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. MA Heming

Mr. Ma is an executive Director, the general manager and a
member of the nomination committee and investment committee
of the Board. For details of his qualifications, see “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. LEE Wai Kwong

Mr. Lee is an assistant general manager of the Company. Mr.
Lee joined Capital Century in December 2007 and has been
responsible for the financial management in the group of Capital
Century since then. He currently serves as the director in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He had also served as a
Director from November 2010 to June 2017. Mr. Lee obtained
a bachelor degree in business (major in accounting) in Edith
Cowan University in Perth, Australia in 2000. Mr. Lee has been a
certified public accountant of CPA Australia since October 2013.
He is responsible for the financial management and project
investment of the Company.

Ms. TANG Yuk Ha

Ms. Tang is the company secretary of the Company, she
joined the Group in May 2018. She is an associate member
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in United Kingdom.
She has over 15 years of experience in the fields of company
secretarial and compliance. Ms. Tang obtained a Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
the change of Directors’ information of the Company since the
date of 2022 interim report are as follows:

Mr. Ma Heming appointed as the General Manager of the
Company with effect from 6 October 2022.

Mr. Shek Lai Him  resigned as an independent non-executive

Abraham director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1212) (delisted on
20 December 2022) with effect from 20
December 2022.

In respect of the changes in emoluments of Directors, please
refer to note 9 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance with emphasis on transparency, independence,
accountability and responsibility. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and
strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the Group’s culture are
aligned. All Directors must act with integrity, lead by example,
and promote the desired culture. The Board should instil such
culture into the Company and continually reinforces across our
Company'’s values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Group, including
integrity and accountability, is vital for the Company to achieve
its vision and mission towards sustainable growth. It is the
Board’s role to foster a corporate culture with core principles
to guide the behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the
Company'’s vision, values and business strategies are aligned to
it.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions of the CG Code set out therein,
except for CG Code provision C.2.1.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.2.1, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive of the company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual for
a balance of power and authority. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive of the company
should be clearly established and set out in writing.
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The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
(“CEO”) of the Company are not separate and are performed
by the same individual. Mr. Liu Jia (“Mr. Liu”) acts as both the
chairman and the CEO since the Listing Date. Since Mr. Liu
has a wealth of experience in real estate investment, operations
and investment projects, taking into account the consistent
leadership within the Group and in order to enable more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning and continuation
of the implementation of such plans, the Directors consider that
Mr. Liu is the best candidate for both positions and the present
arrangements are beneficial and in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole.

As the Board currently comprises two executive Directors
(including Mr. Liu), two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, therefore the Directors are
of the view that there is a fairly strong independence element
in its composition and an appropriate delegation of authorities
to the management. The Board shall nevertheless review the
arrangement from time to time to ensure that it is appropriate to
the Group’s circumstances.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry with each of the Directors, the Company
has received confirmations from all Directors that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company,
and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors
who held office during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Heming

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wang Yun
Mr. Zhuang Minrong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsoi David

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Lee Jor Hung

Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling®
Mr. Wang Cheung Yue®

M the resignation with effect from 26 August 2022
@ the appointment with effect from 26 August 2022

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 21 to 32 of the Annual Report for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise
either in the same industry or relevant to the management of
the business of the Group which brings a good balance of
relevant skills and experience to the Company. The independent
non-executive Directors also provide their independent
professional judgments on the assessment of the development,
performance and risk management of the Group.

There are no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly and, involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors. Under code provision C.5.1 of the CG
Code, the Board shall meet regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. During the reporting
period, 6 Board meetings and 2 general meetings were held.

The Directors’ attendance of the Board meetings and general
meetings during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

oooo

Executive Directors oooo

Mr. Liu Jia oggooad

Mr. Ma Heming goooad
Non-executive Directors ooooo
Ms. Wang Yun goon

Mr. Zhuang Minrong goooo
Independent Non-executive Directors O OO0 0000
Mr. Tsoi David goooag
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham goooaod
Mr. Lee Jor Hung goooo
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling® oooooo
Mr. Wang Cheung Yue® oooooe

The Company is obliged to comply with the CG Code and will
take appropriate arrangements for holding at least 4 regular
Board meetings as well as a meeting between the Chairman
and independent non-executive Directors annually (without the
presence of other directors).

M the resignation with effect from 26 August 2022
@ the appointment with effect from 26 August 2022
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Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
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Board Meeting General Meeting

ooooo oooo
6/6 2/2
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6/6 2/2
6/6 2/2
6/6 2/2
6/6 2/2
3/3 1/1
3/3 11
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Liu Jia currently holds both positions, as explained in the
paragraph headed “Corporate Governance” in this report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and,
through participation in board meetings, offer independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts of
interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining
the Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals
and objectives and monitoring performance reporting, the
independent non-executive Directors has become an integral
part of the healthy growth of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his/her independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by
the Shareholders at the first annual general meeting after
appointment.
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The non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific term of
three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the current
term.

Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Board Independence

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism during the year 2022 which sets out the processes
and procedures to ensure a strong independent element on the
Board, which allows the Board effectively exercises independent
judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board
effectiveness, maximise strengths, and identify the areas that
need improvement or further development. The evaluation
process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to
be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for
instance, addressing individual training and development needs
of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board will conduct annual review on its independence. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.
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Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise
either in the same industry or relevant to the management of
the business of the Group which brings a good balance of
relevant skills and experience to the Company. The independent
non-executive Directors also provide their independent
professional judgments on the assessment of the development,
performance and risk management of the Group.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials, and the advice and services provided by
the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the
Company, and has the liberty to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense if so reasonably required. The
Directors will be continuously provided with the updates on the
major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the
first occasion on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All Directors confirmed that they
had complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during
the reporting period, that they had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The Company has distributed materials and updated information
on the latest developments in the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements during the reporting period.

In addition, relevant reading materials (including legal and

regulatory updates) have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.
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During the year, the training records of the Directors are O0000O0DOO0O0ODODOODOOO
summarized as follows:

Types of
Name of Directors Training/et
oooo oooooo
Executive Directors ooodo
Mr. LIU Jia oooo A B, C
Mr. MA Heming oooono A, B, C
Non-executive Directors ooooo
Ms. WANG Yun oooo A B, C
Mr. ZHUANG Minrong OoOoo0oo0O0o A, B, C
Independent Non-executive Directors ooooood
Mr. TSOI David ooooo A B, C
Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham goooao A B, C
Mr. LEE Jor Hung ooood A B, C
Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling™ oooogm C
Mr. WANG Cheung Yue® opogooo®e B, C

Notes: oo

A: Attend seminars/symposia/meetings/forums on directors’ professional AD 0OO0O0O0O0ODDODODDOODOoOoOOOOOO
and/or duties. gooooooboboopooo

B: Attend training courses on directors’ professional and/or duties B O00O0O0OUOO0OOODOOOOOOOOOOd
arranged by the Company. goooooo

C: Read books, articles, journals and other materials in relation to CO DOODOoUOoOoDOoOooDOoDoDOoOOoOOOOO

the economy, corporate governance, regulatory developments, goooDooooooooooooog
environmental businesses, directors’ duties or other related topics. goooooooooooao

U the resignation with effect from 26 August 2022 U gopo2022080260000

@ the appointment with effect from 26 August 2022 @ 0 00dez022080260 000
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

1.  Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tsoi David (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Lee Jor
Hung. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the review of the Group’s financial reporting
procedures, risk management, internal controls and results.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee has held 4 meetings during the
reporting period. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
interim and annual results and the interim and annual
reports; met with external auditor to ensure appropriate
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group; assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal control;
reviewed the whistleblowing policy and anti-corruption
policy; reviewed the compliance of continuing connected
transaction, the internal audit report and the internal audit
function of the Group. The Audit Committee also met with
the external auditors 4 times during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The committee members’ attendance of the Audit
Committee during the reporting period is set out as
follows:

gooowooo
goooo
goood

Mr. Tsoi David (Chairman)
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Lee Jor Hung
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Attendance/Number
of meetings during the
reporting period
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4/4
4/4
4/4
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2. Remuneration Committee 2. ooo

Ooo0ooO0oooooog
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ooooooooboono
O

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Liu Jia, an executive Director, Mr. Lee Jor
Hung, an independent non-executive Director, and Mr.
Wang Cheung Yue, an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Lee Jor Hung is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Ooooooooo
Ooooboooo
OoOdooood
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The Remuneration Committee has held 3 meetings during O O
0 O
oooooooooooo
O O
O O
O

the reporting period. The Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration packages of individual
Directors, and members of senior management. It has also
reviewed the remuneration packages and services contract
of the newly directors. The aforesaid approved matters and
review were reported and recommended to the Board.

goguoooooooan
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The committee members’ attendance of the Remuneration 0oodooobooooooooa
Committee during the reporting period is set out as oooood
follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
oooooooooao

oooooao

Mr. Lee Jor Hung (Chairman) oooo0ozooo 3/3

Mr. Liu Jia googo 3/3
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling® gooogm 2/2
Mr. Wang Cheung Yue® goooge 1/1
M the resignation with effect from 26 August 2022 m O0ogdez0220802600 00
@ the appointment with effect from 26 August 2022 @ 00 020220802600 00
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The Company’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Directors
and senior management, is based on skill, knowledge,
responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s affairs.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of
the remuneration of the senior management by bands for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Exceeding RMB1,000,000
Not exceeding RMB1,000,000

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Ma Heming, an executive Director, Mr. Shek Lai
Him Abraham, an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Lee Jor Hung, an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham is a chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as
well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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The Nomination Committee has held 2 meetings during the
reporting period. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition and diversity of the Board,
reviewed the board nomination policy, the board diversity
policy and it implementation, assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, discussed and
made recommendation to the board of Directors on the
re-election of all retiring directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. It has also
selected of individuals nominated for directorships. The
aforesaid approved matters and review were reported and
recommended to the Board.

The committee members’ attendance of the Nomination
Committee during the reporting period is set out as
follows:

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham goood

(Chairman) oooo
Mr. Lee Jor Hung gooog
Mr. Ma Heming gooog

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee consists of five members, two
executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Jia and Mr. Ma Heming
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Lee Jor Hung, Mr. Tsoi David and Mr. Wang Cheung Yue.
Mr. Liu Jia is the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The principal duties of the Investment Committee include
reviewing and evaluating any investment projects proposed
by the Company, making recommendations to the Board
on such investment project, and also reviewing the annual
investment plan of the Company.

The Investment Committee has held 1 meeting during the
reporting period. The Investment Committee reviewed
and evaluated the Company’s investment portfolio and its
performance.
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The committee members’ attendance of the Investment
Committee during the reporting period is set out as

follows:
Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman) 0o0o00vooo
Mr. Ma Heming goooo
Mr. Lee Jor Hung gooog
Mr. Tsoi David goooo
Mr. Wang Cheung Yue ooooo

Other than the 4 Board committees above, the Executives
Committee, being chaired by the CEO, is responsible for
handling day-to-day business activities and making collective
decisions on major matters relating to the Group’s daily
business operations, management and personnel matters, etc.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the code of conduct
and Model Code applicable to employees and Directors, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for monitoring the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as conducting a review on an annual basis.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable (and not absolute) assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing
their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the review that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department with the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business.

The Board has engaged an independent consultant to perform
independent review of the adequate and effective of the internal
control system of the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the internal audit report prepared by an independent consultant.
The Audit Committee and the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions, including project management, sales and
leasing, financial reporting, human resources and information
technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems

have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:
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All divisions/departments conduct internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business of
the Group and various aspects including key operational and
financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

The management, in coordination with division/department
heads, assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, monitors the risk management progress, as
well as reports to the Audit Committee and the Board on all the
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management, reviewed the risk management (including
ESG risk) and internal control systems of the Group, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experiences
and relevant resources. The findings have been addressed.
No significant areas of improvement which are required to be
brought to the attention of the Board have been revealed.

The Company has formulated a whistle-blowing policy to provide
a safe and confidential reporting mechanism and to ensure that
employees and those who deal with the Company to report, in
confidential, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to
safeguard against corruption and bribery within the Company.
The Company has an internal reporting channel that is open
and available for employees of the Company to report any
suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also report
to the internal anti-corruption department, which is responsible
for investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate
measures. The Company continues to carry out anti-corruption
and anti-bribery activities to cultivate a culture of integrity, and
actively organizes anti-corruption training and inspections to
ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company held
two anti-corruption trainings and briefings to all employees.
There were no non-compliance cases in relation to bribery and
corruption.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 136 to
141,

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to RMB1.2 million and RMBO0.4
million respectively. The above non-audit services include review
on the interim report and other professional services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. The
Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company.
Although the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, all the Directors may
call upon the Company Secretary for assistance and advice
at any time in respect to their duties so as to ensure effective
operation of the Board and the committees thereunder. The
Company Secretary advises the Board on governance matters
and facilitates the induction and professional development of
Directors. As at 31 December 2022, the Company Secretary of
the Company has undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”).

The Board recognizes the benefit of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. A diverse Board
includes and makes good use of differences in the skills,
industry knowledge and experience, education, background and
other qualities of the Directors and does not discriminate on the
ground of race, age, gender, culture or religious belief.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for reviewing and
reporting to the Board in relation to the Board diversity.

All the Board appointments will be considered by the Nomination
Committee and recommended to the Board for formal approval
based on the diversity perspectives.

Selection of candidates for Board appointment will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural/educational and professional background,
skills and experience.

The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the candidate will bring to the
Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policyy, OO0 O0O0O0ODO0OOOOOOOOOOO
the following measurable objectives were adopted: ooooooo

° at least 2 members of the Board shall be female; O O000O0oo0oO0oo0o2000000

° at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be [O Oo0oooooboooooooad
independent non-executive Directors; oo0oooo

° at least one of the members of the Board shall have @O oo0o0ooooooooooaa
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications; oooooogo
and

° at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 0O 0o0s50%0 0000000000
more than 5 years of experience in the industry he/she is ooos0000oo
specialised in.

The Board is committed to improving the diversity of the Board O 000 0OO0OO0OOO0OOODOOODOO
and wishes to achieve the above objectives by the end of 2025. gozo2s0000000000O0

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the OO000O0OO0OOOOOOOOOOO0O
Group. Up to the date of this annual report, the Board consists O 00000000 OOO700000
of 7 male directors and 1 female director (87.5% male and O10 00000 OO0 0OO87.5%00 0
12.5% female). The number of senior management is 4, consists [0125% M 0 0000000400003
of 3 male (75%) and 1 female (25%). 000 ((75%)010 0 0O (25%)0

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Socialand OO OO O OO0 ODO0O0OO5901140 O
Governance Report set out on pages 59 to 114 of thisannual O O00O0OOOO0OO0OO
report.

The Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken into O0O0O0OO00OOCDODOOOOOOOOO
account when recruiting all employee (including the senior OO0 O0O00O0O0OOODODOOOODODODO
management) and ensure that sufficient resources are available 00000000000 OOODOOOO
for providing appropriate trainings and career development to OO0 O0O0OOOO0OO0OOOOOOOOO
develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board and OO0 0O0O0OO

maintain gender diversity.

The Board will review and monitor from time to time the 00000000 OOOOOOOO0O
implementation of Board Diversity Policy to ensure its 00000 O0O0ODOODOOOOOOO
effectiveness and will at appropriate time set measurable 0000000000 O0OO0OOOOOOO
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board nomination policy
(the “Board Nomination Policy”).

The factor listed below shall be considered by the Nomination
Committee in selecting the candidates for directors (“Selection
Criteria”):

° character and integrity;

° achievements and professional experience that is beneficial
to the development of the Company;

° professional experience in real estate operations and other
related fields;

° potential time commitment;

° board diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

° independence of the candidates (if applicable); and

° the term of service that the candidates have served for the
reappointment of the independent non-executive Directors.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

A.

Nomination by the Nomination Committee

° The Nomination Committee shall review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, professional
qualification, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendation on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

o The Nomination Committee can be assisted by
external agencies and/or consultants in identifying
potential candidates.

o The Nomination Committee may seek advice from
the Board members in recommending candidates or
nominate other candidates who are not nominated by
the Board members in appointing additional Directors
or filling Board vacancies.

o The Nomination Committee shall refer to the
Selection Criteria to determine whether the
proposed candidates are eligible and suitable to
become Directors of the Company and provide
advice to the Board in this regard for the Board
to consider approving the appointment of the
proposed candidates as the Company’s Directors or
recommending the proposed candidates to be elected
as the Company’s Directors in the general meeting.

Nomination by the Shareholders

Shareholders may nominate candidates for election of
the Company’s Directors in accordance to the applicable
rules of the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association
of the Company. The specific procedures are set out in
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” as prepared and adopted by the
Company from time to time.

The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board
to review this policy from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness and to give advice to the Board on the
proposed amendments for the Board’s approval as
necessary.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the following dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”).

The Board will consider the following factors when considering
the proposed dividend payment and determining its amount:

(1)  the current and future funding needs of the Company for
operations and business development;

(2) the market conditions from time to time;

(8) the Company’s liquidity and financial position;

(4) the requirement of the Company’s Articles of Association
and the relevant laws, regulations and rules applicable to
the Company;

(5) any banking or other funding covenants by which the
Company is bound;

(6) the solvency requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

(7) any other circumstances that the Board considers relevant.

The Board will review, discuss and revise the Dividend Policy
in accordance with the Company’s profit, financial needs and
other factors from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands
and where applicable, the Company’s Articles of Association,
for convening a general meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands
and where applicable, the Company’s Articles of Association,
for circulating a resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1302, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour
View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong
Fax: (852) 2545 5256
Email: inquiry@ebgca.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The annual general meeting provides an
opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen
of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor
will also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness. The Board had reviewed the policy and
considered that the implementation of the policy was effective.

The Company has used the following methods to communicate
with its shareholders:-

° publication of announcements, interim reports and annual
reports;

o publication of key corporate governance policies on the
Company’s website; and

° holding of annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company.
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The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s address.
The Company also maintains a website at www.ebgca.com.hk
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed at the annual general
meeting held at 16 June 2022 to amend and adopt the second
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company in order to comply with the recent amendments
to the Listing Rules.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited is pleased to present
this Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s management
approaches affecting the operation and performance in respect
of environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (“reporting
period”), which is in conformity with the Group’s financial year.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report covers Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
with our core business principally engaged in the businesses
of property leasing, the provision of property management
services and the sale of properties held for sale in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

REPORTING BASIS

This Report is prepared with reference to Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (‘ESG Reporting Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”). The Group has complied
with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure
requirements in this Report, the Group has taken initiative to
formulate policies, record relevant data, implement and monitor
measures. This Report shall be published both in Chinese and
English on the website of Stock Exchange. Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the
English version shall prevail.
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This Report summarised the Group’s performance in corporate OO0 000000000 OOOOCOOOO
and social responsibilities applying the reporting principles of O O0OUOOO0ODODOOODOOOODO
“Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency” as below: oooooooooo

Reporting Principles

oooo

Materiality
ooo

Application by the Group
ogooao

The Group identified and evaluated the materiality and the
importance of ESG issues through continuous communication with
our stakeholders and taking into consideration the Group’s business
operations and sustainable development.
oooDopooo0ooOooOooUoooooESGODOODOOODOO
oooooooUoopooooooooooooo

Quantitative
Oo0oo

The Group has taken initiative to formulate policies and record
relevant measurable data for performance monitoring and
evaluation. The Group disclosed its environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a quantitative manner with
explanations.
gooboooobuobuuooouobouoobobuouooog
goooboobootooobobobooooooooooomoo
oooooand

Balance
Ooono

The Group has presented our performance in sustainable
development and ESG issues based on objective facts and avoided
improper selections, omissions or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the report
reader.
00o0000oo0ooO0oo0oooooooDoooDOoOOoDESGO OO
gooooooooOOoODO0oDUOOoOU0OoDoODOoOooDOooODOoOooOooO
gogooooogd

Consistency
ooo

The Group adopted a consistent approach annually on the
disclosure scope and statistical methods used for KPIs in this
Report to provide meaningful comparison for our performance
evaluation.

000000 oDUdo0ooDU0O0DUOUUoDoDoDoOoUOoODoOooOoOo
00o0o0oDooDooooooooooDoooooog
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SOURCE OF INFORMATION

Information and data contained in this Report are derived from
the Group’s formal internal documents, statistical reports and
public information, after verification by relevant departments.
This Report was reviewed and approved by the board of
directors (“Board”) of the Company who takes the responsibility
for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

ACCESS TO THE REPORT

This Report is available in electronic version in Chinese and
English languages. Should there be any discrepancy between
the Chinese and English versions, the English version shall
prevail. You may access the Company’s website at www.ebgca.
com.hk and the website of the HKEX at www.hkexnews.hk for
an electronic copy of this Report.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes all stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions. Stakeholders can provide valuable advice
in respect of the Report or the Group’s performances in
sustainable development by email to inquiry@ebgca.com.hk.

ABOUT US

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
leasing, the provision of property management services and the
sale of properties held for sale in the PRC during the year.

For the property leasing business, the Group’s property portfolio
comprises three commercial buildings, namely, Everbright
Financial Center, part of Everbright International Mansion and
Ming Chang Building, which are located in Chengdu, Sichuan
Province and Kunming, Yunnan Province, respectively, in the
PRC with a total gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
89,507 square meters (“sq.m.”) Besides, the average
occupancy rate of the properties was over 80% during the year.
Furthermore, the Group provides property management and
maintenance service to tenants.
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The Group has a clear strategy for its business development.
Meanwhile, the Group acknowledges the importance of
operating its business in a responsible manner to achieve
sustainable development. Sustainable development is crucial
for gaining affordable capital and enhancing capabilities
for long-term competitiveness. The Group is committed to
responsible operation by incorporating environmental and
social factors into management considerations. The Group
has established and implemented a set of policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment,
operating practices and community. Details of the management
approaches to sustainable development of different areas are
illustrated in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG
issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in
overseeing the management of the Group’s sustainability issues.
During the year, the Board and the ESG Working Group spent
significant time in evaluating the impacts of ESG-related risks
of our operation and formulating relevant policies in dealing
with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to ensure that
the management can have all the right tools and resources to
oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-term
value creation.

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and
accountability, our Group has established an ESG Working
Group which has clear terms of reference that set out the
powers delegated to it by the Board. We highly value the
opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as the cornerstone
for the development of the Group. During the reporting period,
the ESG working Group consisted of an Executive Director and
the Head of Finance, the Head of Human Resources and the
Head of Operations.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing
and supervising the ESG process and risk management of the
Group. Different ESG issues are reviewed by the ESG Working
Group at the regular meetings, which are held at least twice a
year. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the governance and different ESG

issues.
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Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations
of different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality
assessment is conducted annually. We ensure various
platforms and channels of communication are used to reach,
listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through general
communication with stakeholders, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks
obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and
to better assess and manage the resulting impacts.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification
by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining
material ESG issues based on the results of communication
among stakeholders and the management.

Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree and
change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable
development direction in the future. Those important and
material ESG areas identified during our material assessment
were discussed in this Report.

Board review progress against ESG-related goals and
targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance
of the goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time
to time. Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short
of expectation. Effective communication about the goals and
targets with key stakeholders such as employees is essential, as
this enables them to be engaged in the implementation process,
and to feel they are part of the change that the company aspires
to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables
the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results
of achieving the visions.
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Setting targets require the ESG Working Group to carefully
examine the attainability of the targets which should be weighed
against the company’s ambitions and goals. During the reporting
period, our Group set targets on an absolute basis.

The board’s reviewed the company’s progress made against
ESG targets, discussed the results of such review with the
management and considered the ESG targets’ achievements
were satisfactory during the year.

ESG Management Approach and Strategy

Every year, through the risk identification, stakeholders
engagement, materiality assessment and the review of policy
formulation process, the Board approves the management
approaches on ESG issues that are material to our Group and
bases on the regular review on ESG performance with the
strategic goals and targets to make constant progress and
improvement on ESG issues in our daily operation responding
to the stakeholders’ expectations and jointly promoting the
sustainable development of the Group.

In order to assess the effectiveness and the appropriateness
of the ESG strategies, goals and targets, regular review on the
progress achievement is necessary for any rectification if the
progress falls short of expectation. To promote a long-term
sustainability and develop a realistic roadmap, the Group
formulates ESG strategies with strategic goals to achieve in five
years.

Review of Progress against ESG-related Goals and
Targets

The Board is responsible for reviewing the progress of attaining

ESG-related goals and proposing direction for the Group’s ESG
development going forward based on the progress.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from our stakeholders, who (a) have
invested or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to
influence the outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested
in or affected by or have the potential to be affected by the
impact of the Group’s activities, products, services and
relationships.

The Group engages with our stakeholders to understand and
respond to the concerns of our stakeholders, develop mutually
beneficial relationships and to seek their views on its business
proposals and initiatives so as to promote sustainability in the
marketplace, workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from our stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous
interest in the Group’s business activities. The Group has
identified our key stakeholders that are important to our
business and established various channels for communication.
Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
Their feedbacks allow the Group to assess the impact of our
decisions on ESG issues, but also to adjust our direction of
business development and growth. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of our key stakeholders.
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The following table provides an overview of the issue of
concerns of the Group’s key stakeholders, and various
communication channels and methods used to reach, listen and

respond:

Stakeholders

ooo

Government
and regulatory
authorities

goooood

Issues of Concerns
ood

— Compliance with
the rules, laws and
regulations

— 0oooooood

— Proper tax payment
— 0ooooo

— Response to the
government’s policies
—0oooooo

gogoogo

Engagement channels
oooo

— Research and
discussions through
work conferences,
work reports
preparation and
submission for
approval

— 0oDoooooooo
ooooooogo
oooooo

— Annual reports and
announcements

— 000ooooooo
O

— Company website
—0ooo

— Annual filing
— 0000

ooboooOoOoooooobbooon
oooooboobooboooooDo

Practices
00

— Operated, managed
and paid taxes
according to laws and
regulations

— dooooooooo
ooooo

— Cooperated with
government’s
supervision, inspection
and evaluation review

—doooooooo
goooao

— Disclosed and
reported information in
a timely and accurate
manner

— JooDoooooo
oogao
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Stakeholders Issues of Concerns Engagement channels Practices
ooo oo Ooooao oo
Shareholders — Information disclosure — Annual and interim — Made relevant
and Investors and transparency reports and disclosures about
oooooo —oooDoooooao announcements Group’s business
— oobooooooad development in a
— Risk and returns timely manner
—0Do0ooo — Company website —DDOoobooooo
— gooad goooooonDo
— Protection of interests
and fair treatment of — General meetings — Carried out different
shareholders —0ooon forms of investor
—0Do0ooooood activities with an aim
oooo to improve investors’
recognition

—0Do0oooooon
gooooobog
ogooo

— Convened general
meetings
—0oooooo

— Disclosed company
contact details
on website and in
reports and ensured
all communication
channels available and
effective

— 0DDoDoOoooooad
ooooooooo
ooooooooao
ooo
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Stakeholders Issues of Concerns Engagement channels Practices
ooo oo Ooooao oo
Employees — Remuneration — Training, seminars, — Provided a healthy
0ad packages workshops, briefing and safe working
— 0000 sessions environment
— 0ooDoooooUog0 | —DODOooDoDOooooo
— Occupational health oooad ooo
and safety
— 0DoDooooo — Cultural and sport — Organized
activities occupational and
— Working environment — 00Do0oogon professional staff
— 0oooo trainings
— Intranet, emails and — 0oooooooao
— Career development notice oo
opportunities —ooooooooao
—0Doooogd — Developed a fair
— Employee surveys promotion mechanism
—oooo on career path
— Joooooooao
oo
— Organized care and
welfare activities for
employees
—Joooooood
ooo
Customers — Safe and high-quality — Company website, — Provided a clean and
oo products and services brochures, notice secure environment
— dooDooooo boards, annual reports and community
O and announcements —0ooooDoooo
— ogoooooood oogo
— Responsive to oooooooog
customers’ needs 0o — Improved customer
— 0ODDoOoooooao complaint handling
— Satisfaction surveys process
— Mutual trustworthy — 0ooono — 0oooooooao
relationship 0
—ogooao — Customer service
hotline
—ooooDooo
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Stakeholders

Issues of Concerns
ooad ood

Engagement channels Practices
oooo OO0

Suppliers and
Business
partners

oooooooo
0o

— Long-term partnership
— oooood

— Performance and
obligation under
contracts

—ooooooog

— Tendering process
—0ooo

— Business meetings,
supplier conferences,
phone calls and
interviews

—ooooooooo
ooooood

— On-site audit or checks
—0Do0oooooao

Established a fair
tendering mechanisms
oooooooo

Enhanced daily
communication, and
established long-
term cooperation with
quality suppliers and
contractors
gooooobooaoo
ooooooogao
oooooo

Provided regular
feedbacks for
improvement
ooooooooo
O

Industry
associations
ogood

— Experience sharing
—ooood

— Cooperation
—0ag

— Fair competition
—0oooao

— Industry conference/
seminar
—0gooooood

— Site visit
— Qogooao

Maintained fair play,
cooperated with peers
to realize win-win
situation and shared
experiences
oooDoooooo
oooDoooooaod
oono

Attended industry
seminars to promote
industry sustainable
development
ooooooooo
ooooooooo
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and attached the
importance in ESG aspects through the steps: (1) material
ESG area identification by industry benchmarking; (2) key
ESG area prioritization with stakeholders engagement; and
(3) validation and determining material ESG issues based
on results of communication among stakeholders and the
management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue,
and can enable us to be more comprehensive when planning
our sustainable development work strategy in the future.
Those important and material ESG areas identified during our
materiality assessment were discussed in this Report.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the Report
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the
business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and KPIs are
reported in this Report according to disclosure requirements set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through benchmarking
analysis, with consideration into industry trends, regulatory
and market requirements and corporate development
strategies. In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide,
ESG issues were categories into four areas: Environmental
Protection, Employment Management, Operating Practices
and Community Involvement.

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement

° The Group obtained the opinions and expectations from
key internal and external stakeholders including those
identified in the section “Stakeholders Engagement” during
daily operation on key ESG issues identified above to
ensure all the key aspects to be covered for prioritization
and assessment.
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Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

° The Group’s management discussed based on the
result of benchmarking identification and stakeholders
engagement, and determined the materiality of each ESG
issue in relations to our business characteristics and daily
operation.

o The Group’s management ensured all material ESG issues,
which were important to our business development, were
reported in this Report and in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2022, those important
ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

The calculation methodologies and assumption adopted for
determining key performance indicators (KPIs) reported in this
section are according to the guidelines of Global Reporting
Initiative (“GRI”).

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations in PRC, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC OO OO0 OO O0OO
000 00 the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes 00 O O O
0000000000 00000O0 Protection and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution of the PRCOOO OO OOOOODODOOO
0 O O, the Energy Conservation Law of the PRCI O OO0 O 0O
0000000, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
ofthe PRCODODOODOODODOOOO Our Group would
be subject to payment of fines and penalties, and our reputation
may be damaged if there is any failure to comply with these laws
and regulations. The Group has established an environmental
management system with an aim to promote the improvement
and development of the environmental management system
and mitigate the impacts of our operations on the environment.
During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance issue in relation to environmental laws of the
PRC.
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A1: EMISSIONS
Air Pollutants Emission

Air emission control is essential to mitigate environmental
impacts and to protect the health of employees. As the Group
is mainly involved in general office activities, the amount of air
pollutant emissions is insignificant.

Our air pollutants are mainly generated from the natural gas
consumption of the PRC office for warming in winter, while the
rest of the air pollutant emission is generated by vehicles. We
take initiative to formulate plans in transportation management
for the reduction of air pollutant emission in our daily business
operation. For example, encouraging employees and clients to
conduct video conference meetings instead of transportation, as
well as reduce to use winter heating equipment and when there
are idle.

The decrease in the emission of air pollutants in 2022 was
mainly attributable to the reduced vehicle fuel use for business
travelling, decrease in natural gas use for winter warming, and
the effective implementation of the energy saving strategies
during the reporting period. Furthermore, the Group targets to
reduce the air pollutants emission by 5% by 2025.

During the reporting period, the air pollutants emission of our
Group was as follows:

Al.0 00O

gooooonb

ooooobOo0o0O000000000
obOoooooboooooooooan
uybooobboboboboooobobog
gbogooad
gobboobboooogooobobooo
gooooboooooobobobooboo
ooooooobooboooon
uybooboouooooboooboood
gogoooboobooobobood
ugboboooboobooooooogoag
gboooooboooobogobobooo
go

202200 000000000000
gboooooooboobobooboog
gbooooooooooogooon
gbooooooobgooobobonb
202500 00000000 005%0

0 |

gbbooobooobooooboobodg
gog

Type of air pollutants Unit

Ooooonoao 00O 2022 2021

Nitrogen oxides (NO ) kg

gooad (NOX) oo 627.57 660.441

Sulphur oxides (SO) kg

0000(SOo) 0o 7.63 8.531

Particulate matter (PM) kg

0000 PM) 00 0.23 0.4611
1 The year 2021 data has been restated for enhancing comparative 1 gooDooooDoobooobooooood

purpose and more advanced and updated scientific calculation
models and methodologies have been adopted.
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions?

The Group recognises that the community is gradually
concerned with climate change as it affects our daily life and
poses a risk to its business. Hence the Group is committed
to mitigating the effects of climate change and protecting the
health of our employees and community.

The Group is aware that the magnitude of climate change is
increasing, such as global warming, sea level rise and extreme
weather, which may have a significant impact on our business
and operations. In view of this, we strictly monitor and review
greenhouse gas emissions data generated by the business,
advocate green office, and progressively formulate and launch
measures to improve energy efficiency. We continue to explore
and move forward on the way to achieve low-carbon emission
and emission reduction, helping to fight against the threats
brought by climate change.

As a property management service provider, our source of GHG
emissions come from (i) the scope 1 direct emission from fossil
fuel use for vehicles and winter warming; and (i) the scope 2
indirect emission through electricity consumption for our office
operation. The Group attaches great importance to reduce the
carbon footprint by gradually establishing emission targets,
incorporating the energy-saving initiatives and measures into our
daily operations and continuously exploring new opportunities
to achieve emission reduction through our environmental
management system. Green belt maintenance in our building
outside area under management will become our service
focus which contributing an off-set effect in the overall carbon
footprint. Details of the Group’s energy efficiency measures and
practices were summarised in the section “Use of Resources”
and green office policies mentioned in the section “The
Environment and Natural Resources”.

The decrease in GHG emission in 2022 was mainly due to
the reduced vehicle fuel use for business travelling, decrease
in natural gas use for winter warming, and the effective
implementation of the energy saving strategies during the
reporting period. The Group will strive to reduce the emission of
GHG by 5% by 2025.

2 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.
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During the reporting period, the GHG emission was as follows:

uboboouoodouoboboooobdaob

GHG emission Unit

oooooo oo 2022 2021
Direct GHG Emissions (Scope 1)3 tonnes of CO2-¢e

dooooooooooie goooooano 142.07 160.79°
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)* tonnes of CO2-¢e

dooooooOoo o ogoooooan 810.49 1,685.525
Total GHG emission tonnes of CO2-e

oooooood ooooooo 952.56 1,846.315
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO2-e/m2

oooooooo goooooooooo 0.06 0.115

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s operational activities are not involved production
of finished products and do not generate of hazardous waste.
The non-hazardous waste generated were mainly commercial
waste such as office paper, bottles, etc. As part of our waste
management, the Group have formulated detailed guidance
for all front-line and back office staff to follow in our operating
places and offices to mitigate our impacts to the environment.

The Group’s Green Office Guidelines outline concepts of
“reduce, reuse and recycle”. Therefore, we persist in keeping
systematic records on material usage to reduce unnecessary
consumption and purchase in order to continuously improve the
procurement procedures and promote resources utilisation. The
Group has posted tips and placed collection bags and boxes to
collect recyclables such as paper and plastic. General waste is
collected by the building management and handled by dedicated
waste collectors and recyclers to prevent illegal dumping of
waste. We will continue to improve the resource recovery
system and encourage employees to actively participate in the
cycling plan to ensure the efficiency of resource recycling.

3 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled
by the Group.

4 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by
the Group.

5 The year 2021 data has been restated for enhancing comparative

purpose and more advanced and updated scientific calculation
models and methodologies have been adopted.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

Paper is the major resource consumption of the Group’s
daily operation and therefore paper conservation is our key
resource conservation goal. We have implemented paper-saving
measures in our offices, such as encouraging to replace
printed documents with electronic copies, reuse paper and
double-sided printing, etc. Moreover, we selected Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) certified paper to print the Group’s
annual report and publications to avoid harvesting virgin forests.
During the reporting period, a total of 0.98 tonnes (2021: 0.16
tonnes) of papers were recycled.

The Group plans to establish steps to gradually increase the
garbage sorting spots in our communities under management
to facilitate recycling and to engage contractor to undertake
and handle the recycled waste in a timely and orderly manner.
We will promote the concept of green community through
conducting various community activities so as to strengthen the
public awareness on environmental protection and establishing
the habit of garbage sorting and recycling. In our daily office
operation, we continue to adhere to the green office policies
listed in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources”.

During the reporting period, non-hazardous waste for epidemic
prevention supplies such as one-off surgical masks and
alcohol-based sanitisers, etc., became inevitably consumed
in our operational area to safeguard hygienic environment in
our workplace under the circumstances of regular epidemic
control and prevention. During the reporting period, the effective
implementation of non-hazardous waste management strategies
led to a decrease in the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated in 2022.The Group has set comprehensive reduction
target by 5% reduction in non-hazardous waste generation by
2025. The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during
the reporting period was as follows:
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20220 0000ooooooboooon
oobooopozo20000oooonn
oos%oobooopoooboboooo
gboooocoooooboooo

Non-hazardous waste generated | Unit

oooono oo 2022 2021
Non-hazardous waste generated tonnes

oooooooo oo 116.01 173.21
Non-hazardous waste generated

intensity tonnes/m?2

ooooooooo oooooo 0.003 0.004
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gbooodobooooo

A2: USE OF RESOURCES

In our daily operation, energy and water are the major sources
of resource consumption. The Group consistently aims to
implement energy and water efficiency initiatives to reduce the
energy and water consumption. The Group also motivates all
its employees to participate in resources conservation activities
and encourages them to save energy and water.

Energy Consumption

The use of electricity, natural gas and petrol accounts for
the Group’s major energy consumption. The Group actively
implements energy-saving measures according to our Green
Office Guidelines, including the installation of energy metering
systems to closely monitoring energy consumption and improve
energy efficiency. In the office, we maximise the use of natural
light and turn off unnecessary lighting. As we believe that
environmental protection achievements need to be gathered
from bits and pieces, we encourage employees to start with
the small things around them and cultivate good energy-saving
habits, such as switching computers to energy saving mode,
turning off computers and other electrical appliances at the end
of the day, and unplugging electrical appliances before long
holidays.

Furthermore, we encourage conducting video conference
meetings instead of transportation, reduce to use winter heating
equipment and when there are idle. In order to further mitigate
our impacts on the environment from energy consumption,
we target to establish in steps by applying in our communities
under management for lighting systems with sensor functions;
investigating in the feasibility on the implementation of solar
panels and incorporating the assessment with energy-saving
characteristics when making new quotation for equipment.

The decrease in energy consumption in 2022 was mainly
attributable to the reduced vehicle fuel use for business
travelling, decrease in natural gas use for winter warming, and
the effective implementation of the energy saving strategies
during the year. The Group has set inclusive total energy
consumption reduction target by 5% by 2025.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

During the reporting period, the details of energy consumption
of the Group was as follows:

gobooooboooboooobdan

Energy consumption Unit

ooon oo 2022 2021
Purchased electricity MWh

oooo goo 903.06 1,871.00
Petrol MWh

o0 goo 2413 82.94
Natural gas MWh

ood goo 647.59 680.50
Total energy consumption MWh

oooDboo goo 1,574.78 2,634.44
Energy consumption intensity MWh/m?

ooooDoo ooooooo 0.093 0.155

Water Consumption

We cherish water resources and are committed to reducing the
consumption of freshwater resources in our operations. The
Group’s Water Management Guidelines advocate sustainable
water usage principles such as the use of separate drainage
and sewerage systems and strict monitoring of emissions
to ensure that the discharged wastewater comply with local
emissions standards. The guidelines also include a series
of water conservation measures which are implemented
gradually, aiming at reducing water consumption and enhancing
employees’ awareness of saving water resources at the same
time. To ensure that reliable and high-quality drinking water are
provided to our users as well as preventing the wastage of water
resources, we conduct regular cleaning and water quality tests
of the water supply system under our properties in accordance
with the Repair and Maintenance Guidelines, as well as regular
maintenance of drainage system and timely repair when leakage
is found.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gbooodobooooo

In addition, Chengdu Municipal Waterworks Co., Ltd. Issues
specific water consumption targets to our projects in Chengdu
every year. During the reporting period, each operating unit has
balanced the planned water usage, implemented stringent water
conservation practices and successfully achieved all of the
water consumption targets. The Group will constantly review the
water usage and consumption in daily operation for continuous
optimization of water usage patterns and solutions. During the
reporting period, all wastewater was discharged to designated
sewers in accordance with local regulations and no violations
occurred.

During the reporting period, the slight increase in water
consumption was mainly attributable to the increase in water
use for office cleaning and adoption of sterilization measures
for coping with continuous outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
in 2022. The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in water
consumption by 2025.

During the reporting period, the water consumption of the
Group was as follows:
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guoouoobobuodooabod

Water consumption Unit

000 oo 2022 2021

Water consumption® m?3

oogs ooo 54,848 52,124

Water consumption intensity ms3/m?

oooo goooooo 1.17 1.11
A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES A3.0000000
Regarding the operation of our Group, we are not aware of OO OO0 00O O0OOOOOOO0OO
any significant impacts of our activities has been exerted on Qo OO0 O0O0O0OOO0OO0OO0OOQ
the environment and natural resources. During the reporting Do o000 000000 DOOOOOO
period, the Group has made our efforts in incorporating Do OoOO0O0O0O0OO0OODOOOOOOOO
the environmental policies to minimize the impacts on the pOpoOoooOoDOOOOCOO0O0OISOODON
environment and natural resources. The Group will continue to Qoo O O0O0OO0O0OOOOOOOO00O
adhere to the international requirement from the ISO Standard Qo OoOoO0OO0O0O0O0O0OOO0QO

System and implement environment-friendly practices in
the Group’s operation in order to enhance environmental
sustainability.

6 Water usage in the Hong Kong headquarters is managed by the building
where the office is located. As the managerial department cannot provide
data or metered record on water use for individual tenants, data of water
consumption in our Hong Kong headquarters is not included in this Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
goggbooboboooooboo

A4. CLIMATE CHANGE Ad. 0000

Governance 0o

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based onthenature 00000 O0O0OO0OOOOOODOOOO
of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate O 0O OODOOOOOOOOOOOO
change, including extreme weather events, or damage to 0000 0OD0D0ODDO0ODODOOODOAO
facilities have immediate operational impacts and are treated OO0 ODOOO0O0OOOODODOOO
as operational risks. Long-term challenges, such as emerging OO OESGOD OO OOOOODOOOO
ESG issues and climate-related risks and opportunities, may be ESGOD 0D 0O ODO0DOO0OODOOOOOODO
discussed by the Group’s ESG Working Group. ooo

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees OESGOOOOOOOoOODOOad
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board meetings oooooooooooooao

gbooooboooboooonn
gooo

and ensures that they are incorporated into our strategy.

O0OoQgo
(0
OooOoo

gooo0O0O0o0ooboooooan
oooooooooobooDon
gboooouoobooooboboa
gboboooboooooooao
gooooogoobbooboo
goooooon

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills to
oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our Board
also seeks professional advice from external experts when
necessary to better support the decision-making process.

I e [
OOoO0oogogo
OOoO0ooogaog

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for OO0 OESGO O OO ODOODOODODOO
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate 000000 OO0OODOOOESGO OO
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is O000O0O0O0O ESGDOOOOOOO
responsible for approving operational emissions targets forthe O 0000 O0OO0OODO0OO0OESGO O
Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as wellas 0O 000000000 OOOOOOO
gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure and 000000 OOOODOOOOOO0O
policy relative to the best practice standards. Moreover, the O OO DOOESGO OO OOODOOODO
ESG Working Group works closely with the Group’s different 00000000 OOOOODOODODO
operation departments, with an aim to develop consistent and OO0 OO OESGOD O OO OOOOOO
enhanced approaches on addressing ESG risk issues and 00O

report to the management.

Strategy od

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile through OO0 O OOOQOOQOCOOOOOOOO
its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of certain OO0 O0OOO0OOOOOOOODOOOO
diseases, and the health and mortality impacts resulting from 00000000 OOOOOOO0O0O
natural disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by taking 000000000 DOOODODOOO
into consideration a range of diverse risk factors across the D O0O0OOO0OOO0OOOOOOODOOAO
many categories in our services range. This diversity of riskis OO UO0ODO0ODOOOOOODOODOOO
combined with our business strategy and broad geographic OOO0OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
footprint helps us mitigate risk and provide protection against OO 00O 00O O0ODOODODOOOOAO
the impacts of short-term climate change effects. goooooono
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gbooodobooooo

Our services continue to provide protection for people in our
communities against weather and heat-related disease. Besides,
we continue to explore opportunities to engage our business
partners and encourage them to develop climate resilience
and reduce their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios, including a
“2° C or lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change
Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such
as stricter policies including the introduction of and increases in
carbon pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes
in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others, we
developed multiple future images as the external environment
that will surround our Group. With regard to the IEA scenarios,
we put focus on the 2° C scenario (2DS) and pictured future
images in case where climate change measures do not progress
and where such measures progress further “Beyond 2°C
scenario”.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such a society, it
will be possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement, introduction
of and increases in carbon pricing is anticipated in accordance
with the global advance of climate change measures, leading to
the possibility of higher raw material procurement and operating
costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, operation interruptions
and supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of
higher frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as
flooding.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where
the emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are
high. By promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout
the world through comprehensive energy-saving policies and
introduction of renewable energy, we are working to achieve
zero carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive
energy-saving and introduction of renewable energy. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a new
target, achieve a reduction rate for purchased electricity in
coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test
the existing risk management strategies under climate change
with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new
strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert knowledge,
which can identify how climate change may compound existing
risks or create new ones. The risk assessment is conducted
through the following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context

o Objective/goal

o Scale

o Time frame

o Climate change scenario for most climate variables and
sea level

o30o00oooo
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gbooodobooooo

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

° Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the
past in the area

° Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

° Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

° Identify potential hazards

° Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

o Identify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

° Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk in
future

As outlined within the Governance section above, the Group
has robust risk management and business planning processes
that are overseen by the board of directors in order to identify,
assess and manage climate-related risks. The Group engages
with government and other appropriate organizations in order to
keep abreast of expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal
changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets
and profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses
climate change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to
monitor and reduce their environmental footprint.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
Ooooooooooooo

Significant Climate-related Issues oooooooo
godooooboooooooobdd
ooo@ODOoD0OoDoOoOOoDoO@MmOOooan
oooo@)oDoooDoDoDoDooooan
goooDoDooooooo)ooooao
000@MWOOODODDOMWMOOOO0OO0O
goboobouoooooooobod
ooo

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related
physical risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or
may impact our Group’s business and strategy in (i) operations,
products and services, (i) supply chain and value chain, (iii)
adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research
and development, and (v) financial planning, as well as the steps
taken to manage these risks, are as follows:

Steps taken to manage the
risks
ooooooooooao

Climate-related risks
description
oooooao

Financial Impact
oooao

Physical Risk 0 0O OO

Acute physicalrisks 0 00 00O O

Increased severity and
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones
and floods. These have

the potential to cause both
idiosyncratic and systemic
risks, resulting in potential
damage to machinery and
equipment.
oooooooooooo
dooooooooooo
gooooooooooao
Jopoooooooooo
oooooo

Operating cost and
repairing expense increase
ooooooooooo

Planned to establish a
natural disasters emergency
plan.
Ooooooooooog
00

Planned to devise an

action plan to articulate the
goals and targets of the
reductions in GHG emission
and energy consumption.
Outlined the plan to
achieving those targets and
defined responsibilities.
o0o0oooooooog
ooooooooood
oooooooooooon
oooooDooooooo
odo
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
O0oo0ooooooooo

Climate-related risks Steps taken to manage the

description Financial Impact risks

gooogn gooao googooooobooan

Chronic physical risks 0 0 0O 0O O O

° Changes in precipitation ° Revenue reduces ° Planned improvements,
patterns and extreme ° ogogod retrofits, relocations, or
variability in weather patterns. other changes to facilities
Frequent extreme weather o Operating cost increases that may reduce their
events and rising in sea levels | oooooo vulnerability to climate
are likely to pose disruptions impacts, and increases
to communities across the climate resilience in long
region over the long term, term.
affecting economic output ° gooobobooobon
and business productivity. oooooooooooo

o oooooooooood oooooooooood
gpoogboboooobood gdooobooooood
gogoooooooood 00
goooooobooooo
oooooooooooag ° Record the energy
goooon consumption to identify

peaks in usage, thus

° Governments that have been significant savings could be
pushing for new regulation determined.
to reduce GHG emission will ° ooooooooood
pose a threat to financial odooooooooaao
performance of a business 0od
and increase regulatory risk.

o oooooooooooao o Engaged with local or
gooooooooooo national governments and
oooooooooooo local stakeholders on local
ooooo resilience.

° googoooooooo
goooooooobod
gooooad
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

oobooooOoooOooo

Climate-related risks
description

oooooao

Transitional Risk O O O O

Policy risk O 0O O O

Financial Impact
agoaoao

Steps taken to manage the
risks
googooooobooan

As a result of energy
efficiency requirements, the
carbon-pricing mechanisms
by the PRC Government,
which increase the price of
fossil fuels.
oooDoopooooooao
oooooooooood
oooo

Operating cost increases
oooooo

Planned to conduct a
carbon footprint survey,

in order to work out the
company’s footprint, to
prioritize energy and waste
reductions.
Oo0Do00o0ooooooao
oooooDooooooo
oooDoon

Monitor the updates of

the relevant environmental
laws and regulations
against existing products
and services, to avoid the
unnecessary increase in
cost and expenditure due to
non-compliance.
ooooDoopoooooo
O00D00O000oOoDooOo
ooooooooooobo
oooood
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
O0oo0ooooooooo

Climate-related risks Steps taken to manage the
Financial Impact risks

oooaao ubooooobooonbn

description
ogooooao

86

Legalrisk O 0 O O

Exposure to litigation risk. We
have to adapt the tightened
law and regulations imposed
by the government due to
climate change, as well as
bear the risk of potential
litigation once we fail to
obligate the new regulations.
oooooooooood
oopbooooooooo
oooOoboDbOoooDoo
gooobooooood
ooood

Enhanced air pollutant
emissions-reporting
obligations for local
government, and we may
have to spend more time on
fulfilling the ESG reporting
standards to comply with the
Hong Kong Listing Rules.
oooooooooboooo
oboobOooooooo
0o0obDobooOooEsGO
goooooooogoooao

Operating cost increases
oooooo

Monitored the updates

of environmental laws

and regulations and
implemented GHG
emissions calculations in
advance.
Oo0oDoDOoooDOooooo
oodoododooooonon
ooo

Continued monitoring of the
ESG reporting standards

of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules.
gboooobobobooo
ESGO OO OO
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
Ooooooooooooo

Climate-related risks Steps taken to manage the
Financial Impact risks

oooaao ubooooobooonbn

description
ogooooao

Technology risk 0 0 0O O

Low-carbon, energy-saving
technologies are launched.
Lagging behind of technology
advancement may weaken
our competitive edges.
Oo0oooooooood
oooooooooooo
oooooo

Capital investment
increases
oooooo

Research and Development
(R&D) expense increases
oooooo

Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving
products.
ooooooooood
00

Examined the feasibility
and benefits of applying
the latest low-carbon and
energy-saving technologies
into our operation
oooooooDooODbOd
oooooopooooad
0o

Market risk O O O O

More customers are
concerned about
climate-related risks and
opportunities, which may
lead to changes in customer
preference.
oooooobooDboo
oooooooooooo
ooboDOoooooogd

Inability to attract co-
financiers and/or investors
due to uncertain risks related
to the climate.
oooooooDooooao
poooooooooood
Oooogo

Revenue decreases
oooao

Operating cost increases
oooooo

Production cost increases
ooooon

Fulfilled the climate-
related regulations by the
government.
ooobOooooboooo

Prioritize the climate change
as a high concern in the
market decisions to show to
the clients that the company
is concerned about the
problem of climate change.
odoDooooooood
odoodoooooooao
OoooooooooDoodg
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
O0oo0ooooooooo

Climate-related risks Steps taken to manage the
risks

ubooooobooonbn

description
ogooooao

Financial Impact
agoaoao

Reputational risk 0 0 O [

88

Risk of stigmatization of our
business sector, as there will
be more stakeholder concern
or negative stakeholder
feedback on our Group.
ooopoooooooooo
oooDoooooooon
oooDoooooooon

Negative press coverage
related to support of our
Group’s business projects
or activities with negative
impacts on the climate (e.g.,
GHG emissions and energy
conservation), which may
affect our reputation and
image.
oooooooooooo
ooooooooooooao
domooooooooo
oooooooooooan
oooDoooooooagd

° Revenue decreases
° oooa

o Operating costs increases
o oooooo

Fulfilled the social
responsibility by organizing
more public relation
activities to show how our
Group places importance
on climate change.
oooooooooood
gooooooooood
ooooo

Reviewed the business
projects to ensure the
production and the projects
are environmental-friendly.
ooodooooooooog
ooodo
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
Ooooooooooooo

During the reporting period, the primary climate-related O 00000 O0OO0ODOOOOOOOO
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as 0000 0O 0O OO
follows:

Detailed description of climate-related

opportunities Financial Impact
Ooooooooooao oooao

Resource efficiency 0 0 0 O

° Use of more efficient modes of transport ° Operating cost reduces through efficiency

° obooooooooao gains and cost reductions

o Jo0oDodooUooooDUoDoDoooooo

° Use of more efficient production and
distribution processes

o ooooDooooooood

° Use of recycling
o oooo

° Reduce water consumption
o ooooo

Energy source [0 0 O

° Use of lower-emission sources of energy ° Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
o goooood cost abatement

o oo0o0ooDooooooDooooogood
o Use of supportive policy incentives

o ooooooo o Returns on investment in low-emission
technology increases
° Use of new technologies ° gooooooogoobo

° gooooao

o Shift toward decentralized energy generation

o gooooogoonn
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

oooooooooOooo

Detailed description of climate-related

opportunities
gooooooooon

Products and services 0 0 0 0 O

Financial Impact
agooao

° Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions
o ooooooooooooooo

° Ability to diversify business activities
o gooooooooo

° Development of new products or services
through R&D and innovation
o go0oooOoooboDbOoDboDbo

Revenue increases through new solutions

to adaptation needs, such as insurance risk
transfer of products and services
doooooooooooooooooo
ooDoooooooood

Markets 00 O

° Access to new markets
° oooogao

Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets
oooooooooooao

Resilience O O

o obooobooboooooobooon

° Resource substitution or diversification
o oooooooo

o Participation in renewable energy programs
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as planning of the research in
the use of electric vehicles
Oo0oo0ooooOooODOooooooooo
ooooooo

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases
000oO0o0o0oO0ooOooooOooooooao
oag

Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency
oooooopDooDoooooooood
O
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy consumption
and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators are the key
metrics used to assess and manage relevant climate-related
risks where we consider such information is material and crucial
for evaluating the impact of our operation on global climate
change during the year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy
consumption and GHG emissions indicators to assess the
effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives, as well as set
targets to contribute our effort to have minimal impact on global
warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies and
base year from which progress is measured are described in
the section A1l: “Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources”
of this Report. Our Group adopts absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

B. SOCIAL ASPECT
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B1: EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes our employees are essential assets, which
are also the foundation for success and development of the
Group. As such, we aim to attract and retain talents, ensure a
safe and equal working environment for our employees, provide
development opportunities and promote employee health and
well-being. The commitment is incorporated into our staff
handbook. The staff handbook covers the Group’s standard
in respect of compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare.

Throughout the reporting period, the Group fully complied
with all of the relevant laws and regulations in the region we
operated, including the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and
the Labour Law of the PRC.

O

Oooooooooogdg

Oo0Oo0Ooo

B.

O

ooon

goooobooooboboooogao
goboooooobobooboboogao
ooGHEGDODOOODOoOooDoDooo
ooooOoooooooobooooo
ooooOooooooooboooao
oooooooooooooboooao
uogoboodoooouooooboooboo
gboboooobooboobooooon
gboooobooobooboDbDbo
gooooboooo
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gbooodobooooo

As at 31 December 2022, the employee compositions by
gender, age group and geographical region, employment

0 ozoz2z2012031000 000000
ooooboooooooooooon

category and employment mode were as follows: ooooo

Employee compositions ooood 2022 2021
By gender ooooo

* Male e [ 60% 60%
e Female e [J 40% 40%
By age group ooooooao

e Age 30 or below e 30000DO 2% 2%
e Age 31-40 e 31-400 32% 28%
e Age 41-50 e 41-500 31% 37%
e Age 51 or above e 510000 35% 33%
By geographical region oooono

e The PRC e OO 94% 94%
e Hong Kong e OO 6% 6%
By employment category goooooo

e Senior management e JODODOO 3% 3%
e Middle management e JOODODO 17% 16%
e General staff e OOOO 80% 81%
e Short term/Contract staff e DJOOODOODO - -
By employment mode goooooo

e Full-time staff e ODOOO 100% 100%
e Part-time staff e JOOO - -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

The employee turnover rate during the reporting period by
gender, age group and geographical region are as follows:

uyboouobobooboobdaoboob
gobooooboobogo

Employee turnover rate oo 2022 2021
By gender ooooo

e Male e [J 9% 0%
e Female e [J 15% 7%
By age group ooooooao

e Age 30 or below e 30000DO 40% 86%
e Age 31-40 e 31-400 2% 2%
e Age 41-50 e 41-500 25% 0%
e Age 51 or above e 510000 4% 0%
By geographical region oooono

e The PRC e OO 12% 2%
e Hong Kong e OO 13% 11%
Overall oo 12% 3%

Remuneration is an important tool for us to attract, retain
and motivate talents in achieving key goals of the Group. We
provide competitive remuneration package for our employees
according to their performance, experience and relevant skill
set in recognition of their invaluable contribution to the Group.
In addition, we fully complied with relevant laws and regulations
to provide social insurance and housing provident fund for our
employees.

The Group offers a competitive welfare and incentive system
for our employees. Employees can enjoy birthday welfare,
festivals welfare, health welfare and other allowances. We
encourage our employees to maintain a work-life balance.
Hence, we have regularly organized a range of leisure activities
for our employees, for example, Walk for Millions and outdoor
excursion, to promote a healthy working style and strengthen
their sense of belongings to the Group.

OOoooooo
OOooOooooao
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gbooodobooooo

We are an equal opportunities employer who endeavours to
create a diverse, antidiscrimination and inclusive workplace
where all our employees are treated with dignity and respect.
The principle of equal opportunities is applied in all employment
practices and policies, in particular to aspects of remuneration,
recruitment, training, career development and promotion of
employees.

The Group promotes fair competition and prohibits
discrimination or harassment against any employee on their
gender, age, marital status, religion, race, nationality, disability
or any status protected by law.

The Group offers fair promotion opportunities which serve as
a motivation for employees to continue learning and improving
work performance. We conduct performance appraisal regularly
on employees’ working ability, behaviour and development
potential to rank and adjust job positions. We are devoted to
helping our employees to demonstrate their capabilities in line
with their own career ambitions and the business objectives of
the Group.

The staff handbook regulates the working hours of employees.
For employees who are required to work overtime or on
public holidays, overtime pay and additional compensation
are provided as defined in the staff handbook. Furthermore,
employees are entitled to statutory holidays, paid annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave and paternity leave, etc. during
their term of employment.

The Group is dedicated to create a caring and harmonious
working environment to achieve balance between work and
cultural lives of our employees. During the reporting period,
we held various recreational and teambuilding staff activities
to strengthen employee cohesion, enhance their sense of
belongings to the Group and establish a motivated corporate
culture.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

The Group upholds the people-oriented philosophy and is
committed to protecting the rights and interests of employees,
promoting their physical and mental health, and creating an
inclusive, fair and mutually trusting working environment. We
have formulated a series of management policies such as the
Personnel Management Regulation, the Chengdu Everbright
Property Handbook and the Chengdu Everbright Property
Owner Management Handbook to ensure our practice complies
with the laws and regulations. Moreover, we have formulated
the Policy on Preventing Discriminations, Harassments and
Upholding Equal Opportunities to provide equal and diverse
career opportunities. Such policy safeguards employees from
discrimination, harassment and vilification due to gender,
disability, family status, marital status, race, etc. Employees
can express their concerns related to any unwanted behavior
through a dedicated anonymous reporting email account and
hotline

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has always placed the highest priority on securing
health and safety for our employees. We strive to provide a safe
and healthy working environment for all employees to protect
them from occupational injuries or accidents. Our safety plans
include the following aspects:

° Provide safety guidance to our employees and conduct
education and training of occupational health and safety.
Promote the culture of “Safety First” so that the employees
can foster and enhance their occupational safety
awareness and acquire necessary knowledge in preventing
safety risks;

° Carry out regular fire drills and trainings with communities;
and

° Care for employees’ physical and mental health, conduct
regular interviews to understand employees’ concerns, and
launch surveys to learn more about employees’ needs.
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gbooodobooooo

As a property management company and corporate citizen,
it is our responsibility to protect the safety of tenants and
the public. The Chengdu Everbright Property Handbook and
Chengdu Everbright Property Owner Management Handbook
cover detailed safety and health-related operating procedures in
property management, as well as emergency plans in response
to manufacturing accidents and to ensure operational safety.
The Group has also set up the Signage Management Guideline
that aims to enhance management of various signage, such as
control on fire safety, safety and guidance in public areas of the
buildings (e.g. corridors and exterior walls, etc.). The guideline
provides detailed stipulations on the use of signage in various
high-risk operations or workplaces. For instance, to prevent
and reduce the risk of industrial accidents, corresponding
safety signs should be placed during regular maintenance of
elevators, aloft work or other construction and maintenance
works while the dangerous area should be enclosed. In addition
to safe operations and emergency plans, we are also pledged
to prevent the daily life of tenants and the public from being
disturbed. Therefore, before arranging any maintenance work,
we will budget sufficient time for tenants and the public to make
alternative arrangements.

In addition, we have formulated the “Responsibility Pledge
on Property Security and Fire Safety Mechanism” to protect
the fire safety of our properties. The pledge requires the
relevant property users to strictly abide by the national laws
and regulations on fire safety management, and to establish
corresponding rules and regulations based on the tenant
characteristics. We also strive to provide a healthy environment
for employees, visitors and the public by promoting the
Smoke-free Workspace Policy at our offices and actively
encouraging tenants to implement such policy. In 2022, in order
to enhance the fire safety awareness of the employees and
building personnel, Chengdu Branch held practical drills on
evacuation and fire fighting in June and November respectively,
which greatly improved the fire safety knowledge in various
departments of the property service center and the emergency
response capability for similar emergencies

The Group adheres to the Labour Law of the PRC, the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases and other applicable laws and regulations in the
PRC. During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
providing a safe working environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

During the reporting period, there was no work injury cases
(2021: nil, 2020: nil) and no lost days due to work injury
(2022: nil, 2021: nil) in our business operation. There was no
work-related fatality case (2022: nil, 2021: nil) during the year.

Safety Trainings and Prevention Demonstration

Annually, we held a series of practical trainings and seminars
to enhance the occupational safety awareness of our staff and
provided best practice guidances on management services
to enrich their occupational knowledge and strengthen their
adaptability. The Group believes that training our staff with
their soft-skills in crisis management as well as upgrading the
safety hardware in the community are both important pillars to
safeguard the health and safety of staff and also the property
owners. Fire safety management, flood prevention management,
elevator maintenance and epidemic control and prevention are
our core aspects to safeguard workplace safety. Regular fire
drills were conducted to rehearse the set emergency plans to
enhance our employees resilience during accidents. Safety
equipment are subject to regular inspection under closed-loop
management to ensure in proper order and allow strict
rectification of any problems timely noted with the applicable
requirements. With these safety prevention measures, we aim
to further improve the safety awareness of our staff and also
our customers and establish a safe, stable and harmonious
workplace and community.

Epidemic Controls and Prevention

Safeguard the health and safety of our customers and
employees in our communities under management and
workplaces are always our mission. During the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic and under the circumstances of regular
epidemic control and prevention, the Group actively responded
and implemented precautionary and control measures to fight
against the pandemic with the society:

° Regular sanitation management in public areas, buildings
and facilities and perform frequent disinfection in key
areas;

° Strict prevention, access control, identification track and
temperature checks at community entrances and exits;
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gbooodobooooo

° Frequent temperature checks daily on staff to monitor any
irregularities;

° Promote remote lift control by user through mobile
application to reduce direct physical contacts;

° Arrange designated garbage bins to collect the used
epidemic prevention materials and centralise the disposal
process properly to reduce transition;

° Facilitate and coordinate the daily grocery shopping for
property owners at safe and convenient conditions during
necessary quarantine period;

° Require mask-wearing by staff and customers in indoor
area.

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group aims at building a learning organization and ensuring
all employees are provided with growing opportunities. We
continue to promote a learning and sharing culture by providing
outstanding and all-round trainings in various channels,
including new staff training, department sharing, E-learning,
technician training, internal and external on-the-job training,
to ensure employees at all levels are well-equipped to excel in
work and in life.

The Group’s Personnel Management Regulation, Chengdu
Everbright Property Handbook and Chengdu Everbright
Property Owner Management Handbook states our policies in
training, assessment and promotion, as well as the vocational
training requirements for employees at all levels. Each
department is also required to submit the Employee Training
Plan Form regularly to ensure employees have continuous
access to training opportunities. In 2022, all employees have
participated in training programmes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

gboboodoboboon

The Group encourages employees in continuing learning by
investing resources and providing a wide range of vocational
training covering business management, information technology,
occupational safety, anti-corruption, first aid, etc., with an aim
to cultivate the habit of lifelong learning for employees and help
them develop deeper and wider fields of knowledge and skills.
In addition to unified training, various departments regularly
organise exchange meetings to learn from each other, improve
cross-departmental communication and understanding and
work more effectively. We also attach great importance to the
training plan for new employees. Through the three stages of
training — company, department and on-site, we help new
colleagues to familiarise and adapt to our company culture,
policies and code of conduct in the shortest possible time, and
establish their own life plan and development direction in the
company. Moreover, we encourage and sponsor our employees
to take part in external training and continuing education to
enrich their knowledge and skills. For employees who completed
any self-learning module or attained any qualification related to
the businesses of the Group, we will incorporate their copy of
proof as reference in year-end assessment, internal transfer and
promotion arrangements.

During the reporting period, newly appointed directors of the
Group participated in the training about Director’s Responsibility
Memorandum hosted by an external party to understand the
latest corporate laws and regulatory requirements, and discuss
issues related to corporate governance, green operation and
social responsibility. Staff attend professional training courses
and seminars, including business development and strategy,
finance, legal, corporate governance, taxation, etc. The
latest applicable laws, rules and regulations are circulated to
employees and directors from time to time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
gogboboooooo

The proportion of our trained employees to the total workforce OO0 00 O0OO0OOO0OO0OOOODOODOOO
and the composition breakdown of trained employees by gender OO0 00000 O0ODO0ODOOO
and employment position were as follows:

Proportion of trained

employees (%) ooooooao 2022 2021
By gender ooooo

e Male e [ 100% 100%
e Female e [J 100% 100%
By employment position ooooooao

e Senior management e DODOODOO 100% 100%
e Middle management e JDOODOO 100% 100%
e General e JOODO 100% 100%
Overall oo 100% 100%
Composition breakdown of trained employees were follows: ooooooooo

Composition of Employees

Received Training oooooad 2022 2021
By gender ooooo

e Male e [ 61% 60%
e Female e [J 39% 40%
By employment category goooooo

e Senior management e DJODOODOO 3% 3%
e Middle management e OJDOODOODO 17% 16%
e General staff e JOODO 80% 81%
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Besides, the average training hours completed per employee by

gender and employment position were as follows:

gbbooobooobobooboooogoonb
gobooooooood

Average training hours

completed (hours/ oooooao

employee) ooooood 2022 2021
By gender ooooo

e Male e [0 19.10 18.06
e Female e [ 19.51 19.27
By employment position ooooooo

e Senior management e JODOOODO 19.75 18.25
e Middle management e JUOODODO 22 21.78
e General e JOODO 18.5 17.9
Overall oo 19.26 18.54

We always acknowledge the importance of talent development
in the Group’s sustainable development. Every year, the Group’s
administrative department is responsible for formulating annual
staff training plan in accordance with the Group’s development
objectives and regular needs. During the reporting period,
we have launched a series of training programmes to our
employees to refresh their knowledge and enhance the quality
of their services. To uphold our services quality, understand the
frontline staff different situation scenario and timely respond to
their views, the Group always seeks for improvements on the
trainings by conducting assessment and collecting feedback
from the participants. This can help the Group continuously
improve the training programs covering all-round aspects
offered to all levels of employees so as to enhance their job
performance.
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B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to upholding the elimination of all forms
of forced and compulsory labour and supporting the effective
abolition of child labour. The Group strictly complies with the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC
and other applicable laws and regulation. We have formulated
strict regulations on managing the prohibition of child labour.
To prevent unlawful recruitment of employees under the age of
16 as child labour, employees are required to provide identity
proofs to human resources department to verify the age as
part of the recruitment process. All work should be voluntarily
performed and shall not involve forced labour. If any violation
against laws and regulations in relation to labor standards
is found, we would investigate the incident, and impose
appropriate penalty to accountable staff subject to the severity
and review any defects in the human resources system in place.
During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance in relation to the employment of child labour,
forced or compulsory labour in any of our operation.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group works with various product and service providers.
We integrate sustainability into our supply chain by purchasing
products/services from reputable enterprises that uphold high
corporate standards.

During the reporting period, the Group had 10 suppliers in
the PRC and 2 suppliers in Hong Kong. With the principles
of fairness and impartiality and incorporation of sustainable
development factor, the Group makes comprehensive appraisals
on suppliers based on factors such as suppliers’ quality of the
goods and services, efficiency, qualifications and experience to
determine our Qualified Supplier List. We review the background
information of suppliers at least once a year and classify
them into different grades according to their performance,
qualification and credit. To ensure the service quality of the
Group, disqualified suppliers will be removed from our Qualified
Supplier List. Procurement tender/quotation invitation will only
be sent to suppliers on our Qualified Supplier List.
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The Group also emphasizes on the selection of products that
cause minimal impacts on the environment, for example, we
purchase green cleaning products and/or reusable goods
instead of single-use disposable ones. To raise environmental
protection awareness and engage our suppliers to contribute
to sustainable development, we welcome suppliers who
demonstrate their commitment to environmental sustainability.
Suppliers with ISO certification will also be considered at a
higher priority during procurement assessment.

In order to establish sustainable partnerships and reduce
procurement risks and costs, we have developed a systemic
supplier selection and management system. Our bidding and
tendering management regulations in the Chengdu Everbright
Property Handbook and the Chengdu Everbright Property
Owner Management Handbook detailed the process of bidding
and tendering, contract signing, as well as inspection and
supervision. The Group’s procurement team specialises in
setting up supplier profiles and to keep record of the supplies.
We aim to integrate green practices into our supply chain
by factoring in the supplier’s track records of social and
environmental compliance during the procurement process as
well as prioritizing the purchase of environmentally friendly and
energy saving materials.

To ensure the quality of our suppliers, our cost audit team,
finance department, engineering department and inventory team
also carry out regular reviews, inspections and assessments
for suppliers in accordance with the Group’s Management
Guidelines on Supplier Selection and Evaluation. We conduct an
overall evaluation to our suppliers annually by assessing areas
including product quality, environmental and social compliance
with reference to the Evaluation Form of Supplier Management.
Suppliers are classified into five grades, namely, A, B, C, D, and
E, based on their assessment result. Rewards or penalties are
given to suppliers of corresponding grades to ensure that we
always cooperate with the best suppliers.
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B6: PRODUCT AND SERVICES RESPONSIBILITY B6.0 00O

As a property management service provider, we commit 0000000 OO0OODOOOOODOAO
our responsibility of quality management over our product 0000000 OODDODOOOOOO
and service. The Group follows the Regulation on Property 00000000 O0OD0OOODDOOD
Management of PRC and has formulated and implemented the O O0000000000O0O0OOOOO
Property Management Quality Management Measures andother O 0000000 OOOCODOOOOO

applicable laws and regulations. To improve our service, the 000000000 DODO0ODODOOOO
Group’s complaint handling policy is strictly in accordance with OO0 000000 OOOOODOOOO
regulatory standards to ensure that customers’ opinions are 0O 00O

heard and responded in a timely manner.

goooooooooooan
ooOboommooooooom
ooooboooooooan
goboboobooooobooboo
gooooogooboboooao
uoooooooooooao
ooOo0O0O00oo0ooogoooo
ugbooboobobogogoaado
gbooooooboooooboad
gboooooooobooon
goooooobon

During the reporting period, no service-related complaint
(2021: nil) was received, and no products sold or shipped
were subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons. Our
customer satisfaction survey results strongly demonstrated a
solid trustworthy foundation between customers and us. We will
continue to ensure all our communication channels, including
Ai Ban mobile application, Company WeChat, customer hotline,
and notice board, etc available to allow us readily to respond
to customer needs or queries and further uplift customer
satisfaction for the Group’s sustainable development.

DooooooDoOooOooo
O0oooooogooo
e e s O o A
Y e e o o Y |

O
(]

Protection of Customer Data Privacy ooooDoo

goooobooooooaao
goooooouoooooao
goooooooooood
oooooodobooooo
ooobooooooooon
dodooooooooooo
gobooooooooood
goooobooooooboo
goooooo

The Group recognises the importance of our customer’s
information and their privacy, policies were in place in relation
to the administration and handling process of the relevant
customer records. These measures include: customer data
is only accessible by delegated employees; statement and
declaration for information collection for business use to inform
customer with their consent through Ai Ban mobile application;
proper documentary records, etc. Meanwhile, the Group
adheres to the information security policy to ensure safety and
stability of our information system in protection of data.

Oooooooooo
OOoooooOoooaono
OoOodooobdaog
OOooooooo

O

During the reporting period, there was no complaints on leakage go0oooobobobooDooobooboo
of customers’ data and information or violation of customer's 00000 0OO0O0O0OOO0OOO
privacy.
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Protection of Intellectual Properties

We consider intellectual properties as our crucial business
assets, key to our customer loyalty and essential to our future
growth. The success of our business depends substantially
upon our continued ability to use our brands, trade names and
trademarks to increase brand recognition and foster brand
building. The Group has six registered software copyrights in
the PRC which are material to our business, including Ai Ban
mobile application software, intelligent access control system,
smart park application system, intelligent monitoring system,
smart operation and maintenance system and smart property
management system.

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations. We have no tolerance in any form
of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement. We request our employees to conform to our
requirements on anti-corruption outlined in staff handbook.
Once misconduct case is discovered and confirmed, the
employee will be subject to disciplinary action and the case will
be reported to law enforcement authority when necessary.

The Group has established whistle-blowing policy to provide
employees with a confidential platform to raise concerns
about any suspected cases of misconduct and malpractice
through email and hotline. All reported cases are promptly
and thoroughly investigated by audit committee or executive
committee. The Group will absolutely ensure the identity of the
whistleblower and the contents of the report strictly confidential.

The Group adheres to the Criminal Law of the PRC, the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable
laws and regulations. During the reporting period, no legal case
concerned with corrupt practices has been brought against the
Group or its employees.
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Every year, the Group provides regular anti-corruption training O OO0 O0O0O0O0O0OOOOOOOO0OO
sessions to Board and employees at all levels from Directors, O 000000000 O0OOOODOOO
senior management to general staff to promote corporate O OO 0OD0ODOO00OO0OODOOODODO
governance integrity and also raise staff awareness towards OO0 0000 O0OODOOOOOO0ODO
anti-corruption issues. The composition breakdown of trained 00000 O0OO0O00O0O

employees by employment position was as follows:

Anti-corruption Training ooood 2022 2021
Number of employees ooooogao

received anti-corruption

training

e Board e OO 8 8
Employees: oon

e Senior management e JOOOODO 4 4
e Middle management e OJOODOODO 23 23
e General staff e OOO 110 114
Total employees oooao 137 141
Average anti-corruption oooooooog

training hours

e Board e OO0 2 2
Employees: ooo

e Senior management e JOOOODO 3 2
e Middle management e JOODOODO 3 2
e General staff e OJOOO 2 2
Total average anti- oooooooad

corruption training hours 2.2 2
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COMMUNITY
B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognizes that our community constitutes the
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development. Adhering
to our mission of “providing warm services”, we promote our
warm services for customers and also extend to our community.
As a social responsible property services company, the Group
is committed to understanding the needs of the communities
in which we operate, and dedicates to provide support and
contribution to our communities, with aims to promote our
corporate culture and deliver the concept of caring needy in our
community neighborhood and spreading to our society.

Annually, the Group plans various community activities
such as volunteers visits, convenience services and social
recreational and cultural activities, etc. to engage with the
community. We are committed to devote our time and assign
corporate resources through these community campaigns
each with different themes when conducting the annual plans.
In future, the Group will continue to exert our community care
through community involvement with a vision in strengthening
community network and bringing an inclusive society for all
individuals enjoy equality and respects.

We are committed to serving the community and giving back
to the people by working together with the community and
promoting community prosperity. We have formulated the
Community and Philanthropy Policy to take part in issues that
are of concerns through charitable donations and encouraging
our employees to devote to community services and
volunteering work. In the future, we will continue to reach out
to the communities, promote their material culture development
according to their needs, and contribute to the development of
livelihoods and social harmony.

The COVID-19 epidemic has had a tremendous impact on the
lives of the country and its people, and 2022 will be a year of
livelihood recovery as well as disease prevention and control.
The Group is committed to helping communities and people
emerge from the shadow of the epidemic, protecting public
health, and working together with local people to build a new
normal.

In 2021, the Group made a donation to the HKSKH Archbishop
World Relief Fund, and in 2022, the Group donated HK$150,000
to the Hong Kong Community Anti-Coronavirus Link, dedicated
to emergency relief, assisting citizens affected by the impacts
and solve their immediate problems.
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O0oo0ooooooooo

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING INDEX
gboooobooobno

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

oooooooobobooooobbobDO

A. Environmental A. 0 O

A1: Emissions A10 0O O O

Sections
o0

steps taken to achieve them
ooooooooDooooooooo
OooooDooooooaon

General Disclosure “Emissions” 72
oooo ooogoo
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant 72
000000 | emissions data Emissions”
Al.1 Oodoooooobooo ooo0d —oooooooo
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 74
000000 | (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Emission”
A1.2 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. [0 000 — 0000000
D001 oo0oooooz200d0
O0oooooomooooooo
ooo
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, No hazardous waste was produced | N/A
000000 | where appropriate, intensity during the year
A1.3 oooooooDoooooo oooooooooo
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- | 75
000000 | and, where appropriate, intensity hazardous Wastes”
Al1.4 oooDooooooooo o000 —oooooooo
oo —ooooooogod
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target set and “Emissions — Air Pollutant 72,73
000000 | stepstaken to achieve them Emissions”,
A1.5 ooooooooooooooo “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”
ooodd —oooooooo
o000 —0O0oo0oooood
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- | 74-75
000000 | hazardous wastes are handled, and a hazardous Wastes”
A1.6 description of reduction target set and 0000 —0oooDooooog
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Ooooooooooooo

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao

A2: Use of Resources A200 0 O O

Sections
Ooad

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 76
gooad gooooo
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy “Use of Resources — Energy 7
000000 | consumption by type in total and Consumption”
A21 intensity oooboo —oogooo
0oooooooooooooooan
oood
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity | “Use of Resources — Water 78
000000 |000ooooo Consumption”
A2.2 oooogd —oooo
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency “Use of Resources — Energy 76
000000 | target set and steps taken to achieve Consumption”
A2.3 them gooono —ooooa
Ooooooooooooooo
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue | “Use of Resources — Water 77
000000 |insourcing water that is fit for purpose, Consumption”
A2.4 water efficiency target set and steps ooooo0o —o0ood
taken to achieve them
goooogbobobooobuoooa
gooooboobooooooo
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for No significant amount of packaging | N/A
000000 | finished products and, if applicable, with | materials was consumed during the
A2.5 reference to per unit produced year

ooooooooooooo@mon)
gooobooog

goooboooobao
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O0oo0ooooooooo

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao

Sections
Ooad

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources AU 0 D OO0 O O

may impact, the issuer.
OoodooooDooooDoooooo
ooooDoooooooooo

General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 78
oooad Resources”
ooooooooo
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of activities N/A
000000 | activities on the environment and natural | on the environment and natural
A3.1 resources and the actions taken to resources during the year
manage them goooooboooboooooo
ooooooooooooooooao ooooooooooo
gooooooobboooood
A4: Climate Change Ad000 0 O O
General Disclosure “Climate Change” 79-82
gooad gooooo
KPI A4.1 Policies on identification and mitigation “Climate Change” 83-91
000000 | ofsignificant climate-related issues gobooboo
A4 .1 which have impacted, and those which

B. Social B.O O

Employment and Labour Practices O 00 00O OO

B1: Employment B10 0O O

oo0O

General Disclosure “Employment” 91
oooao oood

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment “Employment” 92
000000 | type, age group and geographical region |00 OO

B1.1 0oo0o0oooooDoDoooooog

oooooo

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age “Employment” 93
OOD0O0O0OO0 | group and geographical region ggan

B1.2 O0DO000oC0cDOOoOoOOoOoOoboOoooo
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Ooooooooooooo

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Sections
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao aad

B2: Health and safety B20 0O 0 0O O O

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 95
oooo ooooood
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | “Health and Safety” 97
000000 | occurredin each of the past threeyears |[D0 00O O0OO
B2.1 including the reporting year.

O00o00ooDooDoooooo
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 97
000000 (0ooDooooog ooooood
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and “Health and Safety” 95-97
000000 | safety measures adopted, how theyare |00 O00ODODOO
B2.3 implemented and monitored

oooooobcoobooboooooo
oooooObOoOooo

B3: Development and Training B3O O 0 0O 0 O

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 98
oggooad goooood
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by | “Development and Training” 100
000000 | gender and employee category goooooa
B3.1 gboooooooobooaada
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed “Development and Training” 101
000000 | peremployee by gender and employee |00 00000
B3.2 category

godoboooooboooooooao

ooooooo
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O0oo0ooooooooo

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Sections
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao aad

B4: Labour Standards B40O O 0 O O

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 102
oooo oooooo
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 102
000000 | employment practices to avoid childand OO OO OO
B4.1 forced labour

0O0o0DoDooDooDooDoooooon

ooQoo
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate “Labour Standards” 102
000000 | such practices when discovered gooooo
B4.2 oo0oo0obooOoooboobboooDoon

ooooo

Operating Practices 0 0 0O O

B5: Supply Chain Management B50O 0 0 0O O O

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 102
oooo ooooooo

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical “Supply Chain Management” 102
OO0ooOogd |region ooooood

B5.1 ooooooooood

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating “Supply Chain Management” 102
000000 | toengaging suppliers, number of ooooooo

B5.2 suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored
oooooDoooooooooood
00o00oooDooooDooooooon
oooooood

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 103
000000 | environmental and social risks along gooooog
B5.3 the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored
OoodoDoooDoooDooooooao
oooooDoooooao
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Ooooooooooooo

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Sections
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao aad
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | “Supply Chain Management” 103
000000 | environmentally preferable products ooooooad
B5.4 and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored
gddoooooooooooonon
Oo0boo0ooooooooooooono
O
B6: Product Responsibility B600 0 0 O
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 104
ogooad gooood
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or “Product Responsibility — 104
000000 | shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Customer Relations”
B6.1 health reasons oooodno —oooodg
gododoooooouooooooo
oooooooodao
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related “Product Responsibility — 104
000000 | complaints received and how they are Customer Relations”
B6.2 dealt with goooo —ooood
0ooo0DooDooooooooDooon
ooo
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to “Product Responsibility — 105
000000 | observing and protecting intellectual Copyrights Management”
B6.3 property rights oooon —oooog
ooooDooooooooooooaon
0
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | “Product Responsibility — Food 104
000000 | andrecall procedures Health and Safety at Cinemas”
B6.4 gobooooooooooooadd ool —oooooo
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | “Product Responsibility — Personal | 104
000000 | and privacy policies, how they are Data Protection and Privacy Policy”
B6.5 implemented and monitored 00000 —0oooooooao
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Sections
dodobdodooooooooooooaoao aad

B7: Anti-corruption B700 0O O

General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 105
ogooad goooo
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases No concluded legal case regarding | 105
000000 | regarding corrupt practices brought corrupt practices brought against
B7.1 against the issuer or its employees the issuer or its employees during

during the reporting period and the the reporting period

outcomes of the case ooooooooooon

obooooobooobooooooono
obobooooooooobooo

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and “Anti-corruption” 105
000000 | whistle-blowing procedures, how they ooooao
B7.2 are implemented and monitored

gdobooboboouoobooooon

gooooad
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “Anti-corruption” 106
000000 | provided to directors and staff. goood
B7.3 gdoooooooooooboonoao

Community 0 O

B8: Community Investment B8I 1 0 O

General Disclosure “Community Investment” 107
oooad oooooo

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. “Community Investment” 107
000000 | education, environmental concerns, goooono

B8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport)

gooooOo@uoooooooogo
oooooooooooono)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or “Community Investment” 107
000000 |time)to the focus area oooooo
B8.2 ooodooooooo@mooooo)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
oo

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability on 2 August 2000 and transferred by way of
continuation into the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 15 September 2016 under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. The principal activities of the
Group are property leasing, provision of property management
services and sales of properties held for sale.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
shown under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year
by principal activities are set out on pages 8 to 20 in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of RMB1.90
cents (equivalent to HK2.17 cents) per share (2021: RMBO0.99
cents) for the year ended 31 December 2022, payable to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 30
June 2023. The full year dividend amounts to RMB1.90 cents
per share (2021: RMB3.35 cents per share).

Subject to approval by the Shareholders of the payment of final
dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM?”)
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 15 June 2023, the
proposed final dividend will be paid to the Shareholders on or
about Friday, 14 July 2023.

The proposed final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
The exchange rate for the dividend to be paid in Hong Kong
dollars is the central parity rate of Hong Kong dollars to RMB
as announced by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) on
Monday, 27 March 2023.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS oooooooooo

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility 000000000 OOOOODODOO
to attend and vote at the AGM and entittement to the final O O0O0O0D0OOO0OO0OODOOOOOOO
dividend, the Register of Members will be closed inaccordance 000000000 OOO0OOOOO
with the following timetable: ooo

()  For determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and () OO0 000OO0O0OOOOOOQOO

vote at the AGM: ooooooog

(@) Latest time to lodge 4:30 pm on Friday, @ 00000 20230 60 90
transfer documents 9 June 2023 gooo ooooo

for registration ogooo oooooon

gooad

(b) Closure of Register of Monday, 12 June 2023 to by DOOOO 20230 60120
Members Thursday, 15 June 2023 oood ooooo

(both dates inclusive) oodad 0 20230 60 150
ooooo
ogooooood

(i)  For determining entitlement to the final dividend: (i) OCoODOoOoDOOoOOoOOoOoOo0

(@) Latest time to lodge 4:30 pm on Friday, @ OOOOO 20230 60 230
transfer documents 23 June 2023 oooad ooooo

for registration gooo ooooooo

ogood

(b) Closure of Register of Monday, 26 June 2023 to by DOOOO 20230 60 260
Members Friday, 30 June 2023 oooad ooooo

(both dates inclusive) oodad 0 20230 60 300

ooooo

ogooooood

(c) Record date Friday, 30 June 2023 g ODDOOO 20230 60 300

googo

During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares willbe OO 0O0OD0ODO0OO0OO0OOOODOOO
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote atthe AGM, 000000 O0O0O0OOOCOOOOOO
and to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms O 000000000 O0OOOOO0OO
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged 00000000 0OOOOOOO0OO
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor OO0 00000000 0OOOOODODO
Services Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt 000 OO O0O0O0OOOODODOODOOO
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than the relevant O 0000000160 00000017
latest time set out above. goooooooo
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 and the discussion on the Group’s future
business development are set out on pages 5 to 7 and pages
8 to 20 in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, respectively, in this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations which
constitutes material impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries in all material respects during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on
the environment by reducing its electricity consumption and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. For
further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 59 to 114 of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP

The Group’s financial position, results and business operations
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties, some
of which are inherent to the Group’s business and some are
from external sources.
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Industry Risk

The property management industry in the PRC is highly
competitive and fragmented. Competition becomes more
intense as the existing competitors may expand their products
and services or new competitors may enter the market. If the
Group fails to compete against the competitors, it may not be
able to renew the existing contracts or obtain new projects.

Business Risk

The Group faces challenges from the rapidly changing business
environment. Any failure to response promptly to the market
trend may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial position, performance, and business operations.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed
to various financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit
risks.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 235 to 245 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that an effective management of
relationships with stakeholders is crucial to resolving issues
faced by the Group. Stakeholders hold the key to the
environment in which the Group operates and its subsequent
financial and operating performance. Thus the effective
management of stakeholder relations should be an essential
focus of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 248 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 213 of this annual
report.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
RMB129,000 (2021: RMB9,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 226 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out on page 146 and in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements on page 247 of
this annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
were RMB44.8 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the bank and other borrowings of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements on page 223 of
this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, the laws of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is situated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION ooooooo

O

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption JooooooobOobOOooooon
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the 00O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0O
Company’s securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION oooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2022, pursuant to the Articles 0O 020220120310 0 0000 O O O
of Association, every Director and other officers shallbe entited OO0 O O000O0OODOOOODOO0ODO
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assetsofthe OO0 000000 DO0OOOOOOO
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, 00000000 D0DOOOOOODOO
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in O0O0O0O0O0O0DOOOOOOOOOOO
or about the execution of the duty, or supposed duty in their O O0O0OO0OQODODOOODODOOOOOO
respective office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company O 00000000 O0OOO0OO0OOOOO
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential OO0 OO0 O0OO0ODDODODODOOO0OO
legal actions against its Directors and officers. oooooood

A permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefitofthe O 0D OO0 0 OO0 O0O0ODOOOODODAO
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 20220120310 000000 0O0OO0O
and at the time when this Directors’ report is approved. goboooooobod

DIRECTORS 0o

The Board consists of the following Directors during the year 0O 0O 0O O 0O 020220120310 00 0 0O

ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report: gooooboooboooboooo
Executive Directors ooood

Mr. LIU Jia (Chairman & CEQO) 0o0o0Wwoooooooo

Mr. MA Heming ggooo

Non-executive Directors ooooo

Ms. WANG Yun oooo

Mr. ZHUANG Minrong goooa
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Independent Non-executive Directors gooooooo

Mr. TSOI David ooooo

Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham ogoooad

Mr. LEE Jor Hung gooooad

Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling® gooogm

Mr. WANG Cheung Yue® goooge

m the resignation with effect from 26 August 2022 U Ogo0o20220802600 00

@ the appointment with effect from 26 August 2022 @ 00 020220802600 00

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Jia, Mr. O 00000 DO0DODOOOCDODOOO0OO

Ma Heming, Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Wang Cheung O 0000 OO0ODOOO0OOOODODO

Yue shall retire at the AGM. All of the above retiring Directors, 0 000000 O0OOOODODOOOO

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. googoobobobobooboooboao
oooo

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S ooodooooooao

BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management OUO0O0O0O0O0OOOODOOOOOOO
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are setouton O 000000 OO0ODOOOOOOO0O
pages 21 to 32 in the section headed “Biographies of Directors [0 000 0O 02103200

and Senior Management” to this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE 000o00o0oooooo
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent O OODOOOOOOO3130 0000
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence O 0000000000 ODODOOOO
pursuant to Rule 3.183 of the Listing Rules. The Company 0000000 OO0ODOOOOODODOO
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are [0 0O

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS ooooooo

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company O 00000000 ODOOOO0OODO
and/or any of its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by 000000 OOCOOOOOOOOO
employing company within one year without payment of 00000000 OOODOOOOO
compensation, other than statutory compensation. gogd
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION

Information regarding directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 201 to 204 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which is taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO), or which was required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
was otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND ooOooO0ooooooooooooo
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES ocooooao
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, to the knowledge of the Directors, the [020220120310 00000000 0O 0O
interest or short positions of the following persons (whichare 000 OO0OO0OOOODOOO0OOOO
not Directors or chief executives of the Company) inthe shares 0000 O0OOOOOODOOOOOO
or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to OO0 OO0 O0OXvOO20300 0000
disclose to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part OO0 000D 000D OOOODOOOOO
XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be kept 0 003360 0000000 0OCOODO0O
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, oras 00000000 DODODODODOODO
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, 00

were as follows:

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary the Company’s

shares issued share
Name Notes Capacity interested capital Mot 7)
ogoooa
Oo0ooo ooooo
oo 0o oo ooooOo Oo0ooOoseoo
Lucky Link Investments Limited 2 Beneficial owner 297,900,000 67.49%
(“Lucky Link”)
Oo0Do0oooooooom ooooo
Top Charm Investments Limited 2 Beneficial owner 33,100,000 7.50%
(“Top Charm”)
godoooooomoo oo ooooo
Capital Century 2 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
ogooad ggooooo
CE Hong Kong 3 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
oooooooo oooooo
China Everbright Group 4 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
gooood gooooo
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 5 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
(“Huijin”) corporation
ddoooooboooOo oo gooood
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Notes: ooo

(1) Based on 441,400,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) in issue as (1) 0 020220120 310 O O O O 441,400,000

at 31 December 2022. 0Joo0ooomooOooooo
(2)  Lucky Link and Top Charm directly hold approximately 67.49% and (2) OO OO O00OOOOOOOCOOOO
7.50% of the total issued shares, respectively. Capital Century holds 0006749%0750% 00000000
100% shares in Lucky Link and Top Charm and is therefore deemed JgoooDooooDoooooooodg
to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky 0000000 Oooe297900,0000 O
Link and Top Charm, respectively. 33,100,0000 0 OO ODOO
(8) CE Hong Kong is an indirect controlling shareholder of Lucky Link (8) OO0OO0OOO0O0OODOOCOOOOOOOO
and Top Charm. CE Hong Kong directly holds 99.997% shares in Joooo0oooooommooooood
Capital Century, 0.3% of which is held on trust for the National 99.997% 0 0 000 00.3%0 00000
Administrative Bureau of State Owned Property, and indirectly holds g0o0ooDoDooDoOoO0ooomoood
0.0083% shares in Capital Century through China Everbright Holdings Jo0oombobooooooooood
(Nominee) Limited. Therefore, CE Hong Kong is deemed to be 00D00000%0000000000
interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky Link 000000000 OoOoOoooooo
and Top Charm, respectively. [0 297,900,0000 00 33,100,0000 O O O O
oo
(4)  China Everbright Group holds 100% shares in CE Hong Kongandis (4) OO0O0O0OOCOOOO0OOOOCDOOOOO
therefore deemed to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 jgooooDoooopDooooooodg
shares held by Lucky Link and Top Charm, respectively. 0 0 297,900,0000 0O 33,100,0000 O O O
ooo
(5)  Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the PRC and () jgooDoooooooooooooodg
holds 63.16% equity interest in China Everbright Group. It is deemed Joooooooesterooooood
to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky gooooooooooboooodg
Link and Top Charm, respectively. 297,900,0000 [ 33,100,0000 O O O O
oo
Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the OO ODOODOOOODOOOODODOOOO
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than O OO OO0 O0OOO0DDOOOOOOOO
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had O 0000000000 OOCOOOOO
interests or short positions in the shares or underlyingsharesor O OO0OO0OOOOOOODOODOO
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to XvO 020030 0000000000
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3of Part 0000 O0O0D0ODO0O0ODOOODOOOOO
XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 0O 0 00330 00000000000

of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein. oooo
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR oooDooooooooao
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Share Option OO0 0O O0OOCOO0ODOOODOOOOO
Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company, 00000000000 OD0OOOCODO0O
its subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (withinthe OO ODO0OO0OOOODOOO0OO0OXvOO
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to any arrangementto 0000000 O0O0OODOOOOOO
enable the Directors or their associates (as defined inthe Listing O 0 MO0 O0O0OO0OOOO0OOOOO
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares 000000000 OOODOOO0ODO
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. ooooag

SHARE OPTION SCHEME ooooo

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 December 0O OO 0201701201500 000000
2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of MO D OO0 OODODOODOOOOOO
providing incentive or rewarding eligible persons (“Eligible 0 O0D0 000000 O0OO0OOOOODOO
Persons”). Eligible Persons include director, employee, agent, 0000000000000 OOOOO
consultant, business partner, joint venture partner, supplier of O 0000 OOOOOOODOODOOO
goods or services or any director or employee of such supplier, OO0 00000 O0OD0DODOO0OOODOO
customer or any director or employee of such customer, O 00O O0O0O0O0O0OOOOOOOOOO
and person or entity that provides research, development or O 000 0O0OO0O0OO0OOOOOODOO
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy or O OO 0ODOO0OO0O0OOODODOOODODOO
professional services or any director or employee of such entityy O 00000000 OO0OOOO0OO
who has contributed or will contribute to the Group onthe O 00O O0OD0DOOOODOODODOODOO
basis of their contribution to the development and growth of O 00000000 O0OOCODOOODODO
the Group. No share option has been granted under the Share O OO OO0DOO0O

Option Scheme since its adoption by the Company.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of D OO O OOO0DOODODOOODOOO
the Company’s Listing Date and, unless otherwise cancelled OO0 00000 ODOOODOODOOO
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the date of 0O 0O 0O O 01000 0O 20270 12014000 O
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 14 December 2027). oo
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 44,140,000 shares, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the Listing Date
and as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options granted to each Eligible
Persons in the Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant of share
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options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Share Option
Scheme). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on
or before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determined by
the directors, save that such a period shall not be more than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject
to the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share
Option Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than
the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options,
which must be a date on which the Stock Exchange is open for
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately before the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s share as at the date of offer.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31

December 2022 and no share options were outstanding under
the Scheme as at 31 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that
those transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole. As one or more applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual caps for
those transactions are expected to be more than 5%, those
transactions are subject to reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amounts of those continuing connected transactions
in 2022:

Connected Persons
oooo

No. Connected Transaction
oad oooao

gogogooo

OoOooOoooo

gooooobooboooooooobo
gboooooboboobobobg
oooOoOooooooooooo
ooooooooooooooo
ooooiorobooboooooan
gooooooooobobod
Oo0ooDooOoooooDos%» OooOd
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OooogoOoooo

gboooooobooboooboobog

ooDoDOoOOoOO0O0OOoOoooz02200

gbooooooooon

1 Lease Framework Agreement  China Everbright Group
and its subsidiaries and
associates (other than the
Group) (‘CEG Excluded
Group”)
ogoooon gooooooooood
OoooDmmoooooo
Mooooooooooo
0
2 Deposit Service Framework CEG Excluded Group
Agreement
ogooooood dooooooooood
3 Loan Service Framework CEG Excluded Group
Agreement

ugboooooon

Note: Represents the maximum daily closing balance of deposits (including
interests accrued thereon)

goobobomooooooo

ood

Annual Cap
oooo
RMB’000

0oooon

14,000

46,000
(notel7 [J [7 [0

350,000

Actual
Transaction
Amount
gooooa
RMB’000
O0oonoo

10,311

35,910
(notel7 [J [0 0

Nil

O
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Leasing transactions

The Group entered into a lease framework agreement (the
“Lease Framework Agreement”) with China Everbright
Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of 10 years commencing
retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2029. Under the Lease Framework Agreement, the
Company shall lease and procure members of the Group to
lease certain premises of the Group (the “Premises”) to CEG
Excluded Group, and China Everbright Group shall lease and
procure CEG Excluded Group to lease the Premises during
the term of the Lease Framework Agreement. The relevant
parties shall enter into separate lease agreements to set out the
specific provisions of the leasing of Premises, and the terms and
conditions of the lease agreements shall be determined by the
parties in accordance with the terms of the Lease Framework
Agreement. The term of each of the lease agreements shall not
exceed the term of the Lease Framework Agreement.

The rents and other fees payable by CEG Excluded Group to the
Group under the lease agreements shall (i) be determined based
on arm’s length negotiations between CEG Excluded Group and
the Group with reference to the prevailing market rents in the
places where the Premises are located; (i) not be lower than
the rents and other fees to be paid by other independent third
parties; and (iii) be in compliance with the rules and regulations
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC.

Pursuant to various lease agreements, the Group is currently
leasing certain premises in Everbright Financial Center and Ming
Chang Building to CE Bank, Everbright Securities Company
Limited (“CE Securities”) and Everbright Xinglong Trust Co.,
Ltd. respectively (“CE Trust”).
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Deposits services transactions

The Group entered into a deposit service framework agreement
(“Deposit Service Framework Agreement”) with China
Everbright Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of three years
commencing retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending
on 31 December 2022. Under the Deposit Service Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to
provide the deposit services to members of the Group. The
relevant parties shall enter into separate deposit agreements
to set out the specific provisions of the deposit services, and
the terms and conditions of the deposit agreements shall be
determined by the relevant parties in accordance with the terms
of the Deposit Service Framework Agreement. The term of each
of the deposit agreements shall not exceed the term of the
Deposit Service Framework Agreement.

The interest rates payable by CE Bank to the Group in respect
of the deposit services shall (i) be determined based on arm’s
length negotiations between CE Bank and the Group with
reference to the prevailing interest rate for similar deposit
services which can be obtained by the Group from independent
third parties and on normal commercial terms; (i) not be lower
than the interest rates to be paid by other independent third
parties; and (iii) be in compliance with the rules and regulations
prescribed by the PBOC and/or other relevant rules and
regulations within or outside the PRC.

Having considered the future needs of the Group and to
better regulate the existing and future continuing connected
transactions between the Group and CE Bank on the provision
of the Deposit Services, the Company and China Everbright
Group entered into a new deposit service framework agreement
on 18 November 2022 for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025.
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Loan Services Agreement

The Group entered into a loan service framework agreement
(“Loan Service Framework Agreement”) with China
Everbright Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of five years
commencing retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending
on 31 December 2024. Under the Loan Service Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank
to provide the loan services to members of the Group. The
relevant parties shall enter into separate loan agreements to set
out the specific provisions of the loan services, and the terms
and conditions of the loan agreements shall be determined by
the parties in accordance with the terms of the Loan Service
Framework Agreement. The term of each of the loan agreements
shall not exceed the term of the Loan Service Framework
Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the loan
agreements, security over the Group’s assets and rental income
received from its leasing business may be required for the loan
services. The Directors believe that it is important for the Group
to have more readily available funding for capturing suitable
investment opportunities which arise at any time, including
acquiring suitable commercial properties.

The interest rate payable by the Group to CE Bank in respect of
the Loan Services shall (i) be determined based on arm’s length
negotiations between CE Bank and the Group with reference to
the prevailing interest rate for similar loan services which can
be obtained by the Group from independent third parties and
on normal commercial terms; (i) not be higher than the interest
rates to be charged by other independent third parties; and (iii)
be in compliance with the rules and regulations prescribed by
the PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC.

China Everbright Group is a controlling shareholder of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. CE Bank, CE Securities and CE Trust
are subsidiaries of China Everbright Group and therefore
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose
of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the continuing
connected transactions up to the financial year ended 31
December 2022 set out above and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the
Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the HKICPA. Ernst
& Young has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of continuing connected transactions
set out above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 231 to 232 of this annual report.
The Company has complied with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” disclosed above and note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 231 to 232
of this annual report, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its controlling
shareholders, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or entity(ies) connected with
a Director have or had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

China Everbright Group, the controlling shareholder of the
Group, had provided a non-competition undertaking dated 28
June 2017 (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour
of the Company pursuant to which China Everbright Group has
undertaken that it will:

()  not carry on any business which directly competes with
the Group’s principal businesses;

(i)  through its internal control procedures, procure that its
existing or future wholly-owned subsidiaries, controlled
subsidiaries and other companies which China Everbright
Group has effective control do not directly or indirectly
carry on property investment, property leasing and
property management business in southwest region of the
PRC and in the U.K. which will substantially compete with
the Group’s principal businesses;

(iii)  give priority to the Group in any new business opportunities
in relation to property investment, property leasing and
property management business in southwest region of the
PRC that are presented to the CEG Excluded Group or by
any third parties, or in the event that CEG Excluded Group
proposes to transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of any
rights or interest in property holding, property investment,
property leasing and/or property management businesses
in various cities including but not limited to Beijing, Dalian,
Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen, shall be based on
equal terms; and
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(iv) take appropriate measures to eliminate any substantive
competition or prevent any such potential substantive
competition.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from China
Everbright Group that it had fully complied with the terms of the
Non-Competition Undertaking in the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors are interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into
any contract of significance with the controlling shareholders
(defined under the Listing Rules) or any of their subsidiaries,
nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the
services provided by the controlling shareholders or any of their
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES/EMOLUMENT POLICY
Details of employees/emolument policy are set out in the section

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 20 of
this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The employees
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained the public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
GLOBAL OFFERING

Details of use of net proceeds from the Company’s global
offering during the year are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 18 to 19 of
this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company
by the Directors and the Group’s senior management who,
because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess
inside information in relation to the Company’s securities.
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Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year under review. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of
the Model Code by the senior management of the Group during
the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance with emphasis on transparency, independence,
accountability and responsibility. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 33 to 58 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

KPMG retired as auditors of the Company and Ernst & Young
was appointed as the auditors of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2020 following
the retirement of KPMG. Save as disclosed above, there was no
other change in auditors of the Company during the past three
years.

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young as the auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Jia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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EY:

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and
transferred by way of continuation into the Cayman Islands)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 142 to 247, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
oooooad

Estimation of fair values of investment properties
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
D0oooooooooood

Investment properties are stated at fair value. The
carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB954
million. Significant judgements and assumptions
are required to determine the fair values of the
investment properties. To support management’s
determination of the fair values, the Group engaged
external valuers to perform valuations on the
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
0000000000000 00002022012
0300 0000ooooes400oooooan
0000000000000 00ooooogaon
0000000000 O0DoOooooooao
0o000o0ooooo0ooooooao

OD0DO0O0OO0O0ODODOODODOO24030140

Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used
in the valuations. We also evaluated the objectivity,
independence and competency of the valuers, and the
reliability of other inputs adopted in the valuations. We
then assessed the Group’s disclosures of investment
properties.

0ooooooooooooboooooooobod
tooooooboooboobooobooooaon
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
gooobobbdao

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued])

gboboboobddad

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
gooobobbdao

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued])

gboboboobddad

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Ka Wing.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

oggg

Year ended 31 December 2022 0O 0 20220 120310 0 O O

Notes 2022 2021
0oad 20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo goooo
REVENUE oo B 52,297 52,678
Cost of services oogdo (13,788) (13,066)
Gross profit oo 38,509 39,612
Valuation gains on investment ooooooooao
properties 14 123 17,549
Other income, net ooonooao 6 8,335 5,858
Distribution costs oogo (925) (1,788)
Administrative expenses ogooad (16,274) (16,595)
Other operating expenses oooooo (733) (325)
Profit from operations oogo 29,035 44,311
Finance costs oooo (231) (669)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX oooo 28,804 43,642
Income tax ood 11 (6,751) (10,969)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR oood 22,053 32,673
Attributable to: ooooood
Equity shareholders of the goooooao
Company 22,053 32,673
EARNINGS PER SHARE oooog
Basic and diluted ooooo 13 RMBO0.05 RMBO0.07
0 0 0.050 0 0O 0o.ord

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited e 0 000000 O



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
oooggn

Year ended 31 December 2022 0O 020220120310 000

2022 2021
2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo goooo
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR oooo 22,053 32,673
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: ooooooo
Other comprehensive income/(expense) that OO0 O OO0 OODO
may be reclassified to profit or loss in oooooooo
subsequent periods: Oo0oomoom
Exchange differences on translation of Oo0ooooooo
financial statements of companies MmooOoooad
outside the People’s Republic of China ooooooag
(the “PRC”) oo (10,475) 2,819
Other comprehensive income/(expense)that O OO0 00O OOO0O
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in ooooooooao
subsequent periods: Oo0omoomm
Exchange differences on translation of ooooooooao
financial statements of the Company goood 17,349 (10,512)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ooooooooo
INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, 00O O0OMmMmOOOO
NET OF TAX 6,874 (7,693)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME oooooooo
FOR THE YEAR 28,927 24,980
Attributable to: oooocooo
Equity shareholders of the Company goooooad 28,927 24,980
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

oot

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

Notes 2022 2021
Ood 20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
O000a0 Oooooao
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ooooao
Investment properties oooo 14 954,100 953,700
Property, plant and equipment oooooood 15 1,336 1,389
Right-of-use assets ooooao 16 2,593 3,468
Deferred tax assets Ooo0oogoo 22 311 1,530
Total non-current assets ooooooao 958,340 960,087
CURRENT ASSETS oooao
Trade and other receivables and oooooooooa
prepayments oooo 17 8,013 3,887
Cash and bank balances Ooooooaoan 18 214,908 203,770
Total current assets oooooao 222,921 207,657
CURRENT LIABILITIES Oo0ooo
Trade and other payables ooooooooao 19 19,175 23,797
Contract liabilities ogoooag 20 888 1,461
Bank loan ogooao 21 - 7,000
Lease liabilities oooad 16 1,181 1,100
Tax payable oooao 1,402 1,265
Total current liabilities oooooan 22,646 34,623
NET CURRENT ASSETS oooooao 200,275 173,034
TOTAL ASSETS LESS ooooooooo
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,158,615 1,133,121
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PGOSITION (Continued)
ugogooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

Notes 2022 2021
0od 20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
Oo000a0 OooO0ooao
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooo
Lease liabilities oooa 16 1,408 2,370
Deferred tax liabilities ooooog 22 191,919 190,020
Total non-current liabilities O0O0o0ooo 193,327 192,390
Net assets ooono 965,288 940,731
EQUITY oo
Share capital oo 23 345,042 345,042
Reserves ogd 24 620,246 595,689
Total equity oooao 965,288 940,731
Liu Jia Ma Heming
Oood ooo
Director Director
oo oo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
oooodn

Year ended 31 December 2022 0O 020220 120310000

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ooooooooo
PRC
Share Share  Capital statutory Exchange Fairvalue Retained Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  equity
oooao gooo
o0 0000 O0o000 oo oO0ooo o0 0ooo ooo
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
00000 00000 ODOOO DOODO DODOO DODOD OODOD ooOooo
At 1 January 2021 0202101010 345,042 45,063 81,796 6,628  (47,148) 6,054 496,708 934,643
Profit for the year oooo - - - - - - 32,673 32,673
Other comprehensive income/(expense) OO0000000@MOOM
for the year:
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ 0OO000000OD
of financial statements of ooooooo
companies outside the PRC - - - - 2,819 - - 2,819
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ 0000000000
of financial statements of the oooo
Company - - - - (10,612) - - (10,612)
Total comprehensive income gooooooo
for the year - - - - (7,693) - 32,678 24,980
Special dividend paid gooooo - - - - - - (6,621) (6,621)
Final 2020 dividend 202000000 - - - - - - (8,475) (8,479)
Interim 2021 dividend 202100000 - - - - - - (3,796) (3,796)
Transfer to reserve ooooo - - - 1,503 - - (1,503) -
At 31 December 2021 and 020210120310 0
1 January 2022 202201010 345,042 45063  81,796¢ 8,131* (54,841  6,554* 508,986* 940,731
Profit for the year oooo - - - - - - 22,053 22,053
Other comprehensive income/(expense) OO0O000000@MOOM
for the year:
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ 0OO000000D
of financial statements of ooooooo
companies outside the PRC - - - - (10,475 - - (10,475
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ 0000000000
of financial statements of the oooo
Company - - - - 17,349 - - 17,349
Total comprehensive income gooooooo
for the year - - - - 6,874 - 22,053 28,927
Final 2021 dividend 202100000 - - - - - - (4,370)  (4,370)
Transfer to reserve 0oooo - - - 1,551 - - (1,551) -
At 31 December 2022 0020220120 310 345,042 45063  81,796¢ 9,682¢ (47,967  6,554* 525,118* 965,288
v These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  # 00D00O0O00202201203100000

RMB620,246,000 (2021: RMB595,689,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022.

0O0oooo0ooo0oo000o0aooe20,246,000
002021000 O O 595,689,0000 I
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

goouotn

Year ended 31 December 2022 0O 020220120310 000

Notes 2022 2021
oo 2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
CASH FLOWS FROM ooooooogd
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax oooa 28,804 43,642
Adjustments for: gooooooood
Fair value gains on investment ooooooood
properties Ooad 14 (123) (17,549)
Depreciation of property, plant gooood
and equipment oooo 8 158 148
Depreciation of right-of-use ooooooano
assets 8 1,151 1,286
Finance costs oooo 7 231 669
Interest income ooono 6 (2,379) (1,549)
Net foreign exchange gains oooooo (3,723) (4,025)
Gain on disposal of property, oooooood
plant and equipment, net oooooo 8 - (28)
Reversal of listing expenses oooooboo - (651)
Impairment of trade receivables oooooood 8 714 327
24,833 22,370
Decrease/(increase) in trade oooooooooa
and other receivables and Oo0Dooood
prepayments oooo (4,841) 3,847
Increase/(decrease) in trade and oooooooaoao
other payables Oomaoog (4,600) 1,117
Increase/(decrease) in contract gooooomooa
liabilities (573) 395
Cash generated from operations oooooag 14,819 27,729
Taxes paid ogooao
PRC Corporate Income Tax ooooooooao
(“CIT”) paid Mmooooom (3,495) (8,983)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM oooooDOooooao
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,324 18,746
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

uboobobddd

Year ended 31 December 2022 0O 020220 120310000

Notes 2022 2021
oo 2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
CASH FLOWS FROM ooodooooo
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for the purchase of godoooooooaon
property, plant and equipment ooooao (62) (68)
Payment for additions ininvestment O OO0 0000 OO0O
properties 0 (277) (2,851)
Proceeds from disposal of oooooooooao
property, plant and equipment ooooao - 191
Interest received oooa 2,379 1,549
Increase in time deposits with oooooooooo
original maturity of more than goooooooao
three months when acquired 0o (61,636) —
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN ooooDoooooao
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (59,596) (1,179
CASH FLOWS FROM oooooooo
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital element of lease rentals dooooooooo
paid (1,156) (1,340)
Interest element of lease rentals oooooooooad
paid (62) (43)
Repayment of a bank loan oooooao 25(b) (7,000) (7,000)
Interest paid ooood 25(b) (191) (635)
Dividend paid oooad (4,370) (18,892)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN oooooooooao
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 00 (12,779) (27,910)
NET DECREASEINCASHAND 0O 0OOO0O4dOOOOO
CASH EQUIVALENTS 00 (61,051) (10,343)
Cash and cash equivalents at oooooooooaon
beginning of year 203,770 217,766
Effect of foreign exchange rate ooooooo
changes, net Oooono 10,553 (3,653)
CASH AND CASH oooooooood
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR 153,272 203,770
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES oooooood
OF CASH AND CASH Oo0oo
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated OO OO OO0 OOOO
in the consolidated statement of ooooooao
financial position 18 214,908 203,770
LessOTime deposits with original OO0 OO OO0 OO
maturity of more than three oooooo
months when acquired o0oogao 18 (61,636) —
Cash and cash equivalents as oooDoooooon
stated in the consolidated oooooooo
statement of cash flows 153,272 203,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

goggod

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) and transferred by way of continuation
into the Cayman Islands. The registered address of
the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and the principal
place of business in Hong Kong is located at Room 1302,
13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
property leasing, the provision of property management
services and the sale of properties held for sale.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company are Lucky Link Investments Limited and China
Investment Corporation, which are incorporated in the BVI
and established in the PRC, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

uoooooooon

ooooooao

ooooboooooobood

Percentage of equity

registration and paid-up share attributable to the Principal
Name business capital Company activities
ooooo gooooo ooooo
oo goooooo oooo ooooo 0ooO
Direct Indirect
oo oo
Growing China Limited BVI US$25,000 100 — Investment holding
Growing China Limited ooooooao 25,0000 O 100 — oooao
Metallic Field Limited BVI USSH 100 — Investment holding
(2021: —) (2021: 100)
gooooooo ooooooao 100 10002021 -H202100 O OO0
00-0 1000
Square Field Limited BVI US$50,000 100 — Investment holding
(2021: =) (2021: 100)
gooooa oopooono 50,0000 0 40002021 -H202i00 O0OOO
00-0 1000
Brighter Win Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Property leasing
000000 00 10,0000 O - 100 0000
Chengdu Everbright Finance Centre PRC/Mainland China HK$39,250,000 = 100 Property leasing
Development Co., Ltd.#
goooo0o0ooOoOooooOoooot ooooo 39,250,0000 O - 100 0000
Chengdu Everbright International Mansion  PRC/Mainland China RMB75,310,900 - 100 Property leasing
Co., Ltd.# and property
management
gooooOooooooOt ooooo 00 075,310,9000 - 100 000000000
Chengdu Everbright Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,023,972 — 100 Property
Co., Ltd* management
00oo0ooOoO0OOoOoOoO¢t 00000 0 001,023,9720 - 100 0000
Chengdu Sing Kong City Real Estate Co.,  PRG/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 100 Property
Ltd.f development and
property leasing
ooooooooooot ooooo 0 0 0 30,000,0000 - 100 00000OCO0ODO
Everbright Grand China Assets Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Management Limited
goooooooooono 00 10,0000 O - 100 0000
Excel Harmony Investments Limited BVI US$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
Excel Harmony Investments Limited goooooao 10,0000 O — 100 DO0O0O
First Step Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
000000 0o 10,0000 O = 100 poOO
g These companies were registered as wholly foreign-owned & OCoooooooooooooao

enterprises under the law of the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 0000

These financial statements have been prepared in 00000000 obooooo
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting 00000 o0ooDOooDOo0oOmo ooad
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all HKFRSs, Hong 000000 oDOomooooao
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) 000@MooooDOooOoDoooo
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 0000000 ooobobooMm
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally odomoooboooooooo
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements Oo0o0oooooooooooan
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been 00000000 DoDooOoooan
prepared under the historical cost convention, except O0o0o0DoDooOoooooonaDn
for investment properties which have been measured at 0000000 DmoooOno ao
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Oo0oDOooDooDoOoDooooDonn
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest goooooooooooono

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation ooood

The consolidated financial statements include the financial dododoooboooooadnoaoz2z
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 0120310 0 0 0000000 O
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured OdoboDoooooooooonn

OooooDoo0ooOmoooo
oooobDOooooooooo
oODo0oooooocooooan
omoooboooocooonn
oooooooooo0OoDboo
oooooObObooooooan

entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

O0Oo0oo0ooOoao

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting O0o0oDOoDOooODooOoooOoooan
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly 00000000000 ooOoOoan
or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar ooooooboooobbobobn
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts Oo0ooooobooboooon
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over oooobooooboooob o
an investee, including: ooooooobbooboo

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote @ OO0O0DODOOODOOOOOO

holders of the investee; Oo00ooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

21

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale
of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

22 000O0OO0ODOO0OOOOODOO

(b)

©)

ooDooOOoODODOOOoooien O
O0ozo2i040 00000
oooot120o0o0o00o0oan
Ooo0000000dcovid-19
gooooooboboooao
oooooooooogoo
oooooooooobbo
0000000 0202206
o00oobocO0OO0onoOooon
oOoooooooooan
obOooob0OooO0o0oaoaoz1
A010 000000000
gooboooooooao
oooboobbogao
oobooooobooao
ooooOoooood
uboooooooan
uboooooood
a

Ooooooooooooooooo
OOoo0oooo
OOoo0oooo

ooDooOoDbOOooot1e0cODO
oooobOoOooooooaon
ooooooooooooan
uboooooboooobon
obooooooboooboon
ooboooooboooooon
ooooobooooooan
ooOoooooOobooooaon
obo20000000000
gobooOboobooooon
gzo21i01010C 0 0o0OoDaO
ooooOooooooooon
ooooooooooooo
ugbogoobooboabooon
gooobobooooooobn
uooooooooooon
oooooooooboon

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O

155



156

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group’s financial liabilities during the year,
the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

23 00O0OOOOOoOOOoDOOOO
oo

ooDooooOoOoOooooooo
oo0o0oobOo0ooooobooo0oao

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
000000 O0oOooooion o

oooooooogzsdzonioonooOod

Amendments to HKFRS 16
00000 doddot1eoooo
HKFRS 17
O00o0oo0O00O0ooogirg
Amendments to HKFRS 17
000000 D0DOo0D0DOoOi170Oo OO0
Amendment to HKFRS 17

ooooooooDoowymoooo

Amendments to HKAS 1

0000000010000 0O
Amendments to HKAS 1

0000000 O0O1moooono
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
0000000001000 ooood

O0o00b0Ooboo2000000
Amendments to HKAS 8
0000000008000 oaOoa
Amendments to HKAS 12

ooocoOooobo1 2000000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply
it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in particular
the determination over whether an entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it
has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) oo0oooooo

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 0o0o0ooooDoDoOoOoOoooaO
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised oooobooboooboboboboo
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based goobooooooooonoad
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value goboooooooooooo

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 000 —O00db0Oo0oDO0oOooooao
markets for identical assets or liabilities 0dodoooodmad
oo
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the 000 —O0O0DbOoobooooao
lowest level input that is significant to the ooooooooaao
fair value measurement is observable, either Oo00o0oO0oDooooao
directly or indirectly ogooaao
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the 000 —O0O0b0OOoODOoOooooon
lowest level input that is significant to the fair oooooOOooooa
value measurement is unobservable oooooooooad
O

uoooooooboboboond
uoboooooooooad

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial g
O
Oo00oDO0ooooooooao
O
O

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

gopoooooooooo
ooboobooooooao

Oo0Oo0OoOoao
Oo0Ooo0OoO

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O 165



166

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) oooooooood

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting 0O0D0DO0OD0ODO0OO0O0oODOoOooooan
period as to whether there is an indication that previously oooooobooboooooobao
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or 0000000000 ooooon
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the O0Oo0o0Do0DOoOO0oDOOoOoDOoOoooan
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised Ooo0o0ooooOooDoooooao
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed O0O0o0o0o0o0ODoODoODoOO0O0O0O0Oa0O
only if there has been a change in the estimates used 00o0o0o0o0ooooooooan
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but Oo0o0o0o0oO0oo0o0oO0o0o0oooao
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that ggooooobobobmobn
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ 0000000 oooooon
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for O00O0DoOO0ODODO0OOoDOooOooOoan
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment O0o0o0DoODOOoOoooOooooan
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the 0000000000 oOoOooan
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at Ooo0o0ooa

a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties 000

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ooaao

uooooond

oooo0ooooogao

ubOoaoon

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that (@@ ODoODoDoODoDOoOoooOoOooao
person’s family and that person 0oooooooon
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () ODDOOoOOoDOoDOoOooOOOo
oooa
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or () DOoooDoooooog
0
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) DOOoOoOooDoOOoODOOOD
of the Group or of a parent of the Group. oooooo
or 0
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) ODOODODOODOOOOOOOO
conditions applies: goooood
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the () DooOOoooDoDOooood
same group; oooooo
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (ii) O0o0ooOo0ooooo

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iii)
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv)

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v)
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replace at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land

ooooooDboo

24 0O

O

g
a
O

uoogoooooood

ooooo0ooooooon

uooboobooboobooooo
ubooooooobooooaoao
oobooooobooo

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than

50 years after the date of completion
Oo00Do0o0oo0ooooooooon

oooooo0ogosod

Equipment and others 2 to 20 years with residual value of 3% to 10%

goooa

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land held as properties held for sale, they
are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s
policy for “properties held for sale”. When a right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment
properties”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

24 0000000 OOOO

ooooo
ooOo0oooOo0omaon

() o000

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets oooDoooDOood

Initial recognition and measurement ooooDoo

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as oooobooboobooobooon
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value O0o0o0ooODoOOooOobOoooan
through other comprehensive income, and fair value 0000D00OD0oO0oO0ooOooooan
through profit or loss. oo

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition udoooboooooobonb
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow Oo0o0DOoooooooooonon
characteristics and the Group’s business model for O0o0DOo0o0DoDOoooODOobOOoOonoan
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables O0o000o0O0oo0ooDooooo
that do not contain a significant financing component or for O000D00o0D0ODDODO0oO0o0onoao
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not 00000 DoDoOOoOoDbOOoOoOooan
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, O00D0D0ODDOOoOO0O0oDoODOoOOoOo0oan
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair ooooooooooboooooano
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 0d0ooDo0ooooooooo
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables O0o0o0Do0DDOO0o0oOoooooono
that do not contain a significant financing component or 0000000 ooooooOoo
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient D000 DOO0oOOoobOoOooan
are measured at the transaction price determined under oooot10000ooooooan

HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

oooooooooooooo
ooooooooOoOooOODOD
ooooOD0OOoooocooon
Uo0o0ooOmoooooon
oomooooooooooDn

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured Oo0o0oooDoooDooooao
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the 0o0oo0ooOOooooooooao
business model. dooooooooooo

O0O0O0oo0ooOoono

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O 175



176

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets oooooooao

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial 000000 oo ogon
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is oooddoooooooboono D
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s 00o0o0oooboooooon
consolidated statement of financial position) when: oooDooooooomm

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 0 0000000OO0O0O0O0oOoo
expired; or oood
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash g oooooooooooao

0000000000000
00000000000
ooooO00oO0OO0OoOoO
O0O0O00O0O0O00 @0
OoO0O0O0OO0OO0OO0OO0n
DO0O0M@OODOO0O
DOoo000O0O0OOoOoOon
000000000000

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Ooooooooo
OOooOooooo

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash O00o0o0ooooooooonan
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 0O0D0DO0O0oo0oooDooooon
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has Doo0ooooooboooooOon
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. oooooooOooOoooonoo
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially ooooboboobobooon
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred 0000000000 0oo0o0oooOn
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the O0o0Oo0o0DoOooODODOoOO0oO0oo0on
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing 000000000 oooooao
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises O00O0O00o0O0o0O0oOoOooaao
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 0000ooDoboooboboonn
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects oooooooooooo

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee O0o0D0D0oOOoOO0o0DDO0O000nDo
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the OO0o0DOo0Oo0oooooooonan
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum oo ouooooooboo
amount of consideration that the Group could be required

to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) Oooooooon

General approach (continued) O000Oood

The Group considers a financial asset in default when O0O00O00OO0O0OoOooOoooeonn
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in 00000 oOO0ooDoOooooon
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial O0O0Oo0OoOo0ODOoOO0o0OoOoDoOoan
asset to be in default when internal or external information 000D O0oo0ooDOoOooooonoao
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the O0o0o0ooDOooDOooboOooon
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into Oo00o0o0ODOoOOooOOoOooooon
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. oooobooooboooon

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable O000oOOooDooDoooooon

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. oooooooo

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject impairment Oo0oDO0oDDOOooDoDDoDOooOOoonn

under the general approach and they are classified within 0o0o0o0oooooooobon

the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for Oo0o00oOooDooooooaoan

trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as 00000 OooOooDOoooooan

detailed below. ooog

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk 001 —0ODO0D0ODOODODOO0OO
has not increased significantly since initial gooooooboood
recognition and for which the loss allowance gooboboooooad
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month 01200000000
ECLs ooooo

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has 002 —0D0D0DD0OODODOO0OO
increased significantly since initial recognition ooooooooaao
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets ooooooooooao
and for which the loss allowance is measured 0o0Mmoboooooad
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs oooDooooooad

oogao

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the 003 —0OD000O0DOOooOoan
reporting date (but that are not purchased or 0ooooooooo
originated credit-impaired) and for which the odoooomoooood
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal oooooooooad
to lifetime ECLs oopoooooooao

O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued) Oo0ooooo

Subsequent measurement ogooao

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities Oo0o0oO0obOOooooDoooaon

depends on their classification as follows: od

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) oooooooooooooonn
ooo

oboobooboobobooonon
goooooooobooon
ooobooobooobon

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and g
O
O
O00oO0DODOOoOoOOoOOooo
O
O

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

oooOoOOoO0obOO0oooooao

O0O0oo0ooOoao

O
O

ooOoOoOoOooobOoooon
oooOoO0OOoobObOoooaOn
oooooOoOOoOOoOoooDon

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. O
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

O
O O

Derecognition of financial liabilities oooooooo
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation gobobooobooobbooodd
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. oooooooooao

ooooooboDOooooooon
ooo0obOOoooooooao

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another a
O
oodooooDoooooooan
O
O

from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

ooooooooooooaon
ugboboobbobooodao
gboobobOoooooooan

OO0Oo0oo0ooOoao

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O 181



182

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax ooo

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income 00000 o0oOooDooDoOooDOoon
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Oo0o0o0o0oboboobogoon
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other 000D ooooooooonoD
comprehensive income or directly in equity. ooooooodgo

ooooooooobogon
oooooooooobooon
ugbooooooboobobd
Moo omooooooo
gooooooobobooo

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

N Y O I
I O s 0 Y |

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all O000000O00O0O0oooooao

temporary differences at the end of the reporting period oodbooobooooboboobo

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their O0o0Oo0bOO0obODO0oDOoOoOooooan

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. gooo

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable O0D0DO0O0OD0OOOoOODODDOOODOO

temporary differences, except: Oooooooooooooa

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial U0 ODoOOoobObOoooooon
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 0o0o0oooooooooaoao
transaction that is not a business combination and, Oo0o0oDooooooooao
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the Oo0o0DoOo0Oo0oooODoonoaO
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and oooooooooooa

° in respect of taxable temporary differences 0 Oo0bbOobooobobooboo
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the Oo0oooooooooaoao
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can Oo0o0oOooooooonoao
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 000000000 ooooao

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

O
O

Income tax (continued) 0o oo

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset 000000000 o0oooooon
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to o000 boboboon
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and Oo0oDooboOooooooooD
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate Oo0o0o0oooOobOoooooan
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on 000000 DbODbOo00oOoooOoo
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities O0o0DO0O0D0OO0oDOooOoOoooaonn
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and 000000 oooooooao
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle go00o0O0oo0OoOoooooooao
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which oodobobooobobooobo
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are 000000 ooooooooan
expected to be settled or recovered. Oo0o0oooooooooooan
OO

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and 000000000 OOg400 00
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are ooooodoooooooooan
measured using the fair value model in accordance with Oo0o0Oo0OOoOoOooOOoooooan
HKAS 40 /nvestment Property, the carrying amounts of 00o000ooooooooooo
such properties are presumed to be recovered through 000000000 oooooan
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption 000000000 D0ODOoOO0oOoOoon
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable oo oooboooa
and is held within a business model of the Group whose ooboboOoobooogooooo
business objective is to consume substantially all of the 000000 ooObomooDbo
economic benefits embodied in the investment property O0o0o0ooODoO0o0obODbOoOoODoOoOn
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is 000000 O0ooODO0oo0ooOoooan
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for 0000000000000 00O
such investment properties are measured in accordance Oo00op0oO1 20000000000
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e., oboooooboooooobo
based on the expected manner as to how the properties oooOoood

will be recovered).

Government grants ooood

Government grants are recognised at their fair value goboooboobobobo
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be O000ooDoOoOoooooonn
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Oo0oDObOOooobOooooon
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised 000D0DDOO0o00o0oooooao
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that Oo0oooon

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 0 O 185



186

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued) OD0o0oooO

Revenue from contracts with customers 000000000 on
(continued)

(a)  Property management services @ O00000
Revenue from the provision of property management doooOoooooooaao
services is recognised over the scheduled period 0o0o0ooDoDoOOoooDoOon
on a straight-line basis because the customer godoooboooboooao
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits goooao

provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources ooooDoo

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis oooobboooobbbooobo
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not 00000 bo0oboooooon
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in O0oD0Do0ooOooooOoooon

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income oooo

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using ooooobooboooooooo
the effective interest method by applying the rate that Oo0o00ooDoOoDOoooooooan
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over OoOO0Oo0DODOoDoDOOoooooan
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter O0DODO0oo0oOOoooDoDooOoOoan
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of ooooooa

the financial asset.

Contract liabilities oooao

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is Oo0o0DD0OOoo0o0oooDoooooan
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from 000000 Oo0DoDOoDOoODoOOo0aon
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods 000 oobooooo ooaod
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue oddodoooooooooD
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfer 000000 ooooooon
control of the related goods or services to the customer). oono
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits 0ooo

O
O
O

Retirement benefit costs ooaod

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory O0o0O0o0DDoODOobOOoDOoDOoooOoan
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF 0000000000 o0ooooo
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund 000000000000 oOoo
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong 0000000 O0ODOOoOooDOoonan
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage 0o0DoODoOoO0OoOOoDoOOoOooOOoan
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the Oo0odoooDoooDoooooan
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in odoobooobooooooo
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets O000O0oOOoooooooono
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the 0000000000 O0oDOOo0nan
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s ooaono

employer contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which 000000 OooOoDooooon
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a 0000o00o0ooooooooo
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal 000o0oDOoooOoDOooOoooan
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute O0D0DO00DDODOoOO0oDOO0ODO0Oa0n
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central 0o0oDOo0DoDOooDDoDoODOoOoDOoon
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the 000000 ooDooODoOOoooan
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in oooo

accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits oooad

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when 0o0oooooooooooon
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those 0000000 boooooon
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring ooobooooommoooog
costs involving the payment of termination benefits. Oo0oadoa
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is the Hong Kong dollar which
is the currency of the primary environment in which the
Company operates. Since the Company does not conduct
any substantive operations of its own and conducts its
primary business operations through its subsidiaries
in Mainland China, the Company adopts RMB as the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued) ooooo

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of Oo0o0Do0Do0DoDOoODOoODOoODOoon
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using ooo0ooooooboooooD
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Oo0o0o0oooDOooOOoOooooan
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign O0ooooooooooooo
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 00000000000 000OO
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss 000000000000 00a0
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at O00DO0OD0DD0oDDODO0OD0OO0OmOooOoon
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain 0o0o0DO0O0oOoooooDDOOoOOo0naOn
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation ooooobooobooooao
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is Oo0D00o0obOboooooooon

recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of ugbboooboooobooboob
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition oodooobooooboooon
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating doobooooboobooonn
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction 0000 DODOoo0oOoOooDOoOoooan
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non- 0000000 O0OD0ODDoOOoOoOOo0DaDn
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the 00000000 oOooooon
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or 0o00o0oOooDoDooOoooon
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction O000oDoboDoDooboooD
date for each payment or receipt of the advance oo0oooooo

consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain O00o0oOoooDOooOOoDoOooan
subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China are Oo0o0o0oDODOooDoODOooooooan
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting uboopooooboobobob
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are Oo00o0o0oDoooooooooan
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at gbobb0obooboooon
the end of the reporting period and their statements of O0o0O0ooDoOoOooOoon

profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of an operation outside Mainland
China, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the statement of profit of loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of the Company and its
subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. DO0O0OOoUOoOoOooan
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements 00

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, Oo00o0oDoDOoDoDooDoOOoooOoon

management has made the following judgements, apart uoobooboobooboob

from those involving estimations, which have the most goobooooooooooad

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial googoogooo

statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor 000000 —ooooooao
O

The Group has entered into commercial property leases O0o0O0o0Oo0oODoooooooonan

on its investment property portfolio. The Group has 00000000 oOoDOoOooOoan

determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and 00000000000 O000OO

conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term 000000000 OO0000aOn

not constituting a major part of the economic life of dodoooooooooooodd

the commercial property and the present value of the Oo0o0ooboOoooooooon

minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially ooooooooooboooon

all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains 00000 oOooDooooooan

substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental oooooag

to ownership of these properties which are leased out and

accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty ooooooo

The key assumptions concerning the future and other 000000 DODDOOoOooOOoOoonan

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 00o0D0o0ooDoOOoooOOoOooan

reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing O0o00o0oobobooDooooonn

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 00o0o0oDooDbobboooon

and liabilities within the next financial year, are described gogoobogn

below.

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables Oo0ooDooooooooooaon

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs 0000000 oboooooon

for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on Oo0oooDooooooooon

days past due. The provision matrix is initially based on O00Oo0oOOo0Oo0bOOobObOoOoDnDD

the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group O00o0O0ooOOooooooooan

will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss O0DODO0o0oDO0ooODoODOoODOooooan

experience with forward-looking information. At each 000000000 o0OoooOoOao

reporting date, the historical observed default rates are oooooboboboboobon

updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are Oo0oooboooooooooon

analysed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties were revalued at the end
of the reporting period based on the appraised market
value provided by independent firms of valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from (i) independent valuations;
(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location by reference to
available market information; (iii) recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
dates of transactions that occurred at those prices; and
(iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.
The carrying amount and the details of the fair value
measurement of investment properties at 31 December
2022 were disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account of all changes in tax legislation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
The carrying values of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities at 31 December 2022 were RMB311,000
(2021: RMB1,530,000) and RMB191,919,000 (2021:
RMB190,020,000), respectively. Further details are included
in note 22 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. O0OO0ODOOO
The directors of the Company have been identified as the O00Oo0boOOooDOooDoOOoooOooan
Group’s most senior executive management. Operating 000000000 oooooo
segments are identified on the basis of internal reports that 0000oo0ooooDoobDoOooon
the Group’s most senior executive management reviews 0000000 o0DoDOoOD0OO0O00Oa0n
regularly in allocating resources to segments and in ooad

assessing their performance.

The Group’s most senior executive management oo0Do0OoOoobDOoOooooooboo
makes resource allocation decisions based on internal 0O00D0DD0ODDODDODOOoOO0DOoO0an
management functions and assesses the Group’s O0o0o0ooooooDoOooOOoon
business performance as one integrated business instead OooOOoOo0DODDODOoO0DODOoDOOoood
of by separate business lines or geographical regions. Oo0oodoooooooooon
Accordingly, the Group has only one operating segment Oo0o0o0O0obOoOooDoooOoan
and therefore, no segment information is presented. ooooao

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and accordingly, O00O0o0Do0OoOoobOOoOoooan
no geographical information is presented. oooobDooOoad

Information about major customers oooood

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenues of 0 020220120310 0 0 000 O
approximately RMB9,261,000 and RMB6,913,000, which 000 009261,00000 000
represented 17.7% and 13.2% of the Group’s total revenue, 6,913,000 000 O0O0ODOO0OO
respectively, were derived from two different single 17.7%013.2%00 000 00 00
customers. ooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenues of O 020210120310 0 0 00O O O
approximately RMB9,261,000 and RMB7,141,000, which 000 009261,00000 000
represented 17.6% and 13.6% of the Group’s total revenue, 740000 0000000000
respectively, were derived from two different single 176%013.6%00 000 00 0O 0O
customers. ooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

ad

ooooooo

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooano
Revenue from contracts with ooooono
customers
Provision of property management gooooood
services 14,002 15,419
Revenue from other sources oooooooon
Gross rentals from investment ooooooao
properties goog 38,295 37,259
52,297 52,678

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregation revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Doooo0oao
() oooooao

0020220120310 000

Provision

of property
management
services

oood

oooo
RMB’000

ooooao

Timing of revenue recognition oooood
Services transferred over time ooooooaog 14,002
Total revenue from contracts with customers gooooooa 14,002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. 00O0O0O

Revenue from contracts with customers O00D00O0Oooo
(continued)
(i) Disaggregation revenue information () JoOoOoOoOooo
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 0 0202101203100 0 0O
Provision
of property
management
services
Ooooao
oooo
RMB’000
ooooao

goooogd
gooboood

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 15,419

Total revenue from contracts with customers Ooo0oo0ooooa 15,419

ooooooooooDOoon
oooooobDooboooon
gooo

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Provision of property management 0 00000 OO
services 1,461 1,066
(ii) Performance obligations (i) JooOoO

uodoooooobobooon
good

Information about the Group’s performance obligation
is summarised below:

Provision of property management services ooooooon

ogogoooobobooobobn
oooboooooboooon

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before rendering the services. ooooooooooooao
Management service contracts are for periods of one OoooDooooooooao
to 10 years, and are billed based on the time incurred. oad
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of property management services
(continued)

oaoono

ooooooooon

(i) coooooo

oooooooogoo

The Group elected to apply the practical expedient 0ooooDoooooooao
under HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount 0O0o0o0Dod1s0 00 dan
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining godoooooooooaon
obligations for the provision of property management ooboobbobooooan
services for which the Group bills a fixed amount ooooooooooooon
for each month of service provided and recognises oooDoooboooooon
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right 00000000 o0oonoaoan
to invoice. ooooooad
OTHER INCOME, NET oooooao
2022 2021
202211 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Interest income from bank deposits Oo0O0oo0DoDoooo 2,379 1,549
Net foreign exchange gain oooooo 3,270 4,008
Government grants* gooor 193 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant oooooooo
and equipment oooo - 28
Others oo 2,493 273
8,335 5,858

During the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
of HK$168,000 (approximately RMB144,000) and RMB34,000,
which represented subsidies for stabilising employment, were
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” and
government authorities in the PRC, respectively. The remaining
balance of HK$17,000 (approximately RMB15,000) was the
amount received under “Reimbursement of Maternity Leave
Pay Scheme” of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled conditions and
contingencies related to these grants.

0O 020220120310 0 0000 0O
0 0168,0000 00O O O 0O 144,000
OO ooos4o000000C0000
oooo0oOoOoOOoO0OooOoOOoOoo0o0on
oooooOoooooooooo
0 0170000 00O O O O15,00000
ooooo0oooooooOOoooOoao
ooo0DooODooOooooOoo0oao
oooooocooooOooooan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. 0OO0O
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ooooooooo
2022 2021
202211 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0ooo ooooad
Interest on a bank loan oooooao 169 626
Interest on lease liabilities oooooao 62 43
231 669
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. 0OGOQoOO
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ 0oboboooooomobood
(crediting): Ooood
Notes 2022 2021
oo 202211 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ogoooag
Cost of services rendered* gooooooao-r 13,788 13,066
Depreciation of property, plant and oooooooooao
equipment 15 158 148
Depreciation of right-of-use assets oooooon 16 1,151 1,286
Impairment of trade receivables** gooooogox 17 714 327
Gain on disposal of items of property, 0 00 000 OO
plant and equipment, net gooooood - (28)
Auditor’s remuneration ooooao 1,166 1,043
Employee benefit expense (including 00O OO OO O
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): 000000 0omd
Salaries and other benefits ooooooao 15,039 14,747
Pension scheme contributions ooooooao 986 1,005
16,025 15,752
* The employee benefit expense included in cost of services * oooobDOoOooooooooao
rendered was RMB5,067,000 (2021: RMB5,328,000). 000 0O 0Ob5,067,000002021000
0 O 5,328,0000 [1J
* The impairment of trade receivables for the years are included * gooooobooOoboooooao

in “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 9. 000O0O0OO0ODOOO

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

D000O000O0C0CO000Ono
D0O0OODO0O0OO0DOO O O0S383(1)
@0 (b0 (0 HooOoO0OD0OO
D0D0O00O0O0002000000
0000000000

2022 2021

20220 20210

RMB’000 RMB’000

O000a0 Ooo0ooao

Fees a0 780 752

Other emoluments: Oo00oaoo

Salaries, allowances and benefits Oo0o0o0O0ooooo

in kind 1,947 1,817

Discretionary bonuses oooao 1,583 1,502

Pension scheme contributions O0o0oooOono 15 15

3,545 3,334

Total oad 4,325 4,086
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
O0ooO0ooon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 9.

uoooooobobooo

202

REMUNERATION (continued)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
oooooo goooao
00 gooao oooa oo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo gooooao ooooo ooooo ooooo
(note i)
00 oiio
2022 20220
Executive Directors: oooon
Liu Jia (note il omoaiio - 1,186 859 15 2,060
Ma Heming (note v) 00moovd — 687 724 - 1,411
- 1,873 1,583 15 3471
Non-executive Directors: ooooog
Wang Yun (note vii) 00 0vib - - - - -
Zhuang Minrong (note vii) 00mMaaovio - - - - -
Independent Non-executive ooooooon
Directors:
Tsoi David (note viii 00maavio 195 17 - - 212
Shek Lai Him, Abraham (note viii) 00000 dvio 195 18 - - 213
Lee Jor Hung (note viii 00mMOD0vid 195 23 = = 218
Yu Pauline Wah Ling (note viii 00oooDvib 127 8 — — 135
Wang Cheng Yue (note ix) O0mMOO0ixD 68 8 - - 76
780 74 - - 854
780 1,947 1,583 15 4,325
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

9. 000O0OO0OCOOOODOO

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
ooooon ooooo
00 oooo oooao 00 o0
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo oooon ooooo ooooo ooooo
(note ii)
0oaio
2021 20210
Executive Directors: oooon
Liu Jia (note il omoaiio - 1,104 814 15 1,933
Lin Zimin (note iv) 0o0moon - 208 172 - 380
Ma Heming (note v) 00mo0vd - 449 516 - 965
- 1,761 1,502 15 3,278
Non-executive Directors: oonoon
Tse Hang Mui (note vi) ago0maoavo - - - - -
Li Yinzhong (note vi) 00D D0vid - - - - -
Wang Yun (note vii) 00 0vib - - - - -
Zhuang Minrong (note vii) 00moovio - - - - -
Independent Non-executive ooooooon
Directors:
Tsoi David (note vii 00maavia 188 14 - - 202
Shek Lai Him, Abraham (note viii) 00000 advio 188 16 - - 204
Lee Jor Hung (note vii) 000 0vio 188 15 = = 203
Yu Pauling Wah Ling (note viii 00000 Dvib 188 11 - - 199
752 56 - - 808
752 1,817 1,502 15 4,086
Notes: 0ooo

(i)

(ii)

(i)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 10 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No remuneration
was paid to the two (2021: four) non-executive Directors during
the year.

Discretionary bonuses are determined by reference to the
performance of individuals and the Group.

Mr. Liu Jia was appointed as a Director on 1 September 2000
and re-designated as an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company on 16 January 2018 for a specific term of
three years. His service contract was renewed as an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 16 January
2021 for a specific term of three years. He was also the chief
executive officer of the Company during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(if)

(i)

ooooococooooooooao
cooooooOoOooooooaOn
ooooooOoOOoODOOOOOOoOO
ooooOooooDoOoOoOoooao
OCO0O000O0O000O00O0ODOo2021
cooom

O0oo0ooooooooooooaon
goo

0000020000010 00000
OO0oO0oOoz20180101600000
ooooocoooooooooao
ooooooooooooooao
oo0oo00o0O0o0O0oDbOoo2021010
60 0000000000000
0 020220 020210120310 O O
ooooooooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iv)  Mr. Lin Zimin was appointed as an executive Director on 25
November 2010 and re-designated as an executive Director
of the Company on 16 January 2018 for a specific term of
three years. His service contract as an executive Director of
the Company was renewed on 16 January 2021 for a specific
term of three years. Mr Lin Zimin had resigned as an executive
Director with effect from 15 April 2021.

(v) Mr. Ma Heming was appointed as an executive Director on 15
April 2021 for a specific term of three years.

(v Ms. Tse Hang Mui and Mr. Li Yinzhong were appointed as
Directors on 7 June 2017 and re-designated as non-executive
Directors on 16 January 2018. The non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three
years. Their service contracts as non-executive Directors were
renewed on 16 January 2021 for a specific term of three years.
Ms. Tse Hang Mui and Mr. Li Yinzhong had resigned as non-
executive Directors with effect from 26 August 2021.

(vii)  Ms. Wang Yun and Mr. Zhuang Minrong were appointed on 26
August 2021 as non-executive Directors. The non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of
three years.

(viii)  Mr. Tsoi David, Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr. Lee Jor Hung
and Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling were appointed as independent
non-executive Directors with effect from 16 January 2018.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of three years. Their letters
of appointment as independent non-executive Directors were
renewed on 16 January 2021 for a specific term of three years.
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling had resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 26 August 2022.

(ix)  Mr. Wang Cheung Yue was appointed on 26 August 2022 as
an independent non-executive Director. The independent non-
executive Director of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of three years.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2021: Nil).

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited e 0 000000 O
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uoooooobobooo

oomoo

O00002010011025000
0000000 02018010160
go0ooDoODoOOooOoDDOoOoOoon
goooOooOoOOoOoOoOooOoo
0000D00002021010160
goooooooooooooao
000000000202104015
ooooo

(iv)

OO0Oo0ooood

(v) ooD0O0020210401500 00
oo0oooOO0o0oooDOOoDbOooOo

(vi ODODOOOOOODOOOO20170
cO070 0000000 02018010
00 000000000000
ooooOooooOoooDOooDOo
ooooooooooooooo
gz2021010160 0 0000000
ooooooooooooDOOo
O0000000020210 80260
oooo

(viip OOODOOOOODOQODO2021080
200 000000000000
0o0o0o0oooooooooooao
oo

(vii ODoOOoOQCOODODOoOoOOoOoOooOoOO
oooooOoODoODOOoOOOOoOoo
oboogozo180101600000O
ooooooooooobooooo
oooooOoooooooooao
Oo0o0o0000o0o202101016e0
oooDooo0oDODOoOOoDOOoOoOoDaOo
0000000000 O00oea2022
osdz2c00000

(x) ODOO0OO0ODO20220802600 00
oo0ooDoODOoooDooOoooDOoo
gooooooooooooOooDo

obOoooobooooOoOoOoo0oo0Oao
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. DOOODOOOO
The five highest paid employees during the year included Oo0o0o0Do0ob0OoDOobOOoooooO
two directors (2021: two directors), details of whose Doo2021000 0000000
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the 0O00DD0OO009 O000oOoOOoOn
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: dg021000 000 0000 MmO 0O
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director oo0o0oOoDoDOooOOoomoood
nor chief executive officer of the Company are as follows: ood

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ocoooo oooood

Salaries, allowances and benefits in Oo0o00O00oOoooo

kind 1,630 1,516
Discretionary bonuses oooao 406 414
Pension scheme contributions Oo0o0OoooOono 46 45

2,082 1,975
The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer 0o0o0obOoO0ooDoO0oooaoa
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the 0o0ooooooooooooo

following band is as follows:

Number of employees

oooo
20210
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0 01,000,0000 O 3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

11. INCOME TAX 11.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2021: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

ogoao

ooooDoOoooOooOoOoooo
ooOoOo0oo0oooooOOOoODbOO0OO00d
ODOO0O00OD2021 00000 000
ooOo0ooooOo0oo0ooooooao
obOoooboooooooooao
oo

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
Oo000ao0 Ooo0ooao

Current tax — the PRC oooo —0oo
CIT ooooo 3,633 4,560
Deferred tax oo0oad 3,118 6,118
Withholding tax ooao - 291
6,751 10,969

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

ubbobooooobOooobn
oooooooooooboboDon
ooooooobooobooon
ooooooooboooao

follows:
2022 2021
2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ogoooo goooo
Profit before tax oooad 28,804 43,642
Tax at the statutory tax rates ooooboooboog 8,002 11,430
Preferential tax rates ooono (642) (439)
Expenses not deductible for tax oooooao 3,154 2,379
Income not subject to tax oooood (2,281) (1,251)
Deductible temporary differencesnot OO0 00000 0O O O
recognised (1,000) (1,261)
Effect of withholding tax on the ooooooooog
distributed profits of the Group’s ooooooooao
PRC subsidiaries oo - 291
Other 0o (482) (180)
Tax expense at the Group’s effective O 0000000
rate ooooooo 6,751 10,969
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

All subsidiaries of the Company established and operating
in the PRC are subject to the PRC CIT at an applicable rate
of 25%.

Pursuant to Notice on Implementation of Inclusive Tax
Relief Policy for Small Low-profit Enterprises Cai Shui
(2019) No. 13, Announcement on Implementing the
Preferential Income Tax Policies for Micro and Small
Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial
Households (Announcement No. 12 [2021]) and
Announcement on Further Implementing the Preferential
Income Tax Policies for Micro and Small Enterprises
(Announcement No. 13 [2022]), Chengdu Everbright
Property Management Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Sing Kong
City Real Estate Co., Ltd. fall within the eligible industry
category and are eligible to enjoy the preferential income
tax rates of 2.5% (a reduced rate of 12.5% of the taxable
income amount, and be subject to corporate income
tax at a 20% tax rate when income does not exceed
RMB1,000,000) and 5% (a reduced rate of 25% of the
taxable income amount, and be subject to corporate
income tax at a 20% tax rate when income exceeds
RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed RMB3,000,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 2.5% when
income does not exceed RMB1,000,000 and 10% when
income exceeds RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed
RMB3,000,000).

Tax for other entities of the Group is charged at their
respective applicable income tax rates ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.

1.

ooooon

obDoooOooOoooooooan
OO00DO002% 0000000
oobooboo

DO00O0O0O0O0D0O0O0O0O0O0O0
DD0O0DO0OO0O00 0000 (2019)13
DODOo00000O000D0O0O0
D0O0O00OO0O0DOOO0O 00021
0120 00000000000
0000000000 0O0[2022
013000 000000000
000000000000
0oo0O0O0O0OoOooooan
0 0 O 020220120810 O
0025400000000
0 O 01,00000000 0 O O
125%0020%0 00000 O
DoO054a00000000
0 O 01,000,0000 00000
03,000,0000 0 0 O O O25%0
20%0000000000000
0000 D0MmM20210025%0 O
0000000000 01,000,000
Om10%00000000000
0 01,0000000 0000000
3,000,0000 T

OOooooooo

Oooooooood

oo0oo0o0ooobOO0oooooooao
oobODbO0oooboooOobO0o0oao
oooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. OO
2022 2021
2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ogoooo goooo
Final dividend paid in respect of the 0 020210120 310 O
year ended 31 December 2021 — oooooooog-—
RMBO0.99 cents (2020: RMB1.92 000000 D0OD0o0.99
cents) per ordinary share 00 2020001.920 0 4,370 8,475
Special dividend paid — Nil (2021: gooooo —oaao
RMB1.50 cents) per ordinary share 000000002021
oo1.5000 - 6,621
4,370 15,096
Interim dividend — Nil (2021: ogoobo-ogooa
RMBO0.86 cents) per ordinary share ooooo
02021000.8600 - 3,796
Proposed final dividend — RMB1.90 OO OOO0O—00
cents (2021: RMBO0.99 cents) per O000OoOooit.e00
ordinary share 02021000 0 O 0.99
od 8,387 4,370

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period has not been recognised as
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB22,053,000 (2021:
RMB32,673,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 441,400,000 (2021: 441,400,000) in
issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited e 0 000000 O

13.
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oooooooboboobooooon
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ooono

oo0Ooooooogoad
ooocooO0OOobOoao
22,053,00000202100 O 0O
326730000 00000000O
0000 D0441,400,00000 202100
441,400,0000 0 O O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. 0 O0OO
2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Carrying amount at 1 January 01010000 4d 953,700 933,300
Additions, at cost O0oOoooo 277 2,851
Net gain from fair value adjustments ODoDoOoOoDooOooo 123 17,549
Carrying amount at end of year oooood 954,100 953,700

The Group’s investment properties consist of three
commercial properties in the PRC. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties
were commercial properties based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2022 based on valuations performed by Landscope
Christie’s International Real Estate, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB954,100,000 (2021:
RMB953,700,000). Each year, the Group’s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

Most of the investment properties of the Group are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 16 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2021, certain investment properties of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB366,481,000 were pledged to a bank to secure a
banking facility granted to the Group.

oboooocooooao
oooocoooooao
ooobOo0OO0oooooan

uoooboocooboogan

0000000000 Landscope
Christie’s International Real Estate

oooobOOooocooOooooboo

20220120310 0000000
0 954,100,00000202100 O O
953,700,0000 M OO0 COODOO

0

OoOoO0oo0ooOooao
OO0Oo0oooo

[ |
O O

O

ODoOoogooo

O
0

ooooooooooao
ooooooooogano
goooooooooo
oobooooooobooao
oooobOoo0oo0oao
uogoooooobodnd

OOooOooooooo

ooooooODOoOoODbDOn
oo0o00ooooooon

ooooOooiten

g20210120310 00 00000

00000 0366,481,0000 00O

O

ooob0OO00oooo0ooooo0bOog
oooooooooao
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. 000000
Fair value hierarchy oooooao
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement 0o0o0o0o0ooOoooDboooOon
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: oooood
2022 20220

Fair value measurement using
goooooooo

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ooooao 00000 000000

oo oo oo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
goooo goooo goooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0ooo oooon ooooo ooooo

Recurring fair value measurement for: opooooooo
Commercial properties oooCo - - 954,100 954,100

2021 20210

Fair value measurement using

ooooooog
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
oooono goooo oOooooo
00 0o 0o
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ooooo goooo 0oooo oo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

o0oooo ooooo goooao ooooo

Recurring fair value measurement for: ooooooooo

Commercial properties oooo - - 953,700 953,700

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value gooooooooboooooad

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no O00o0Oo0o0DoODOooDoOoooooan

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). 000000000 m202100
0 m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. 0000000
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised ooDooooboDbDOooooobooog
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: Oo0ooono
RMB’000
gooooo

Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 d202101010 00 0O 0O 933,300
Additions oo 2,851
Net gain from fair value adjustments recognised OO OO0 O0O0OOOOOOO0O

in profit or loss 17,549
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and 020210120 310 O

1 January 2022 202201010000 0O 953,700
Additions oo 277
Net gain from fair value adjustments recognised DO OO0 O0O0O0OOOODO0O0O

in profit or loss 123
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 0202201203100 0 O O 954,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

14. 0000000

ooDoDoooOoODOOoOooooan
ooooobooobo

O

properties:
Relationship of
Range of unobservable inputs
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs  unobservable inputs to fair value
oooooooo
0o oooo oooocooo 00oo0D0OoO00 ocoOooooo
Investment Market comparison Adjustment of comparables -24% to 16% The higher the sales value
properties approach for difference of (2021: -45% to 4%)  of comparables, the
transaction time and higher the fair value
physical attributes
between the subject
property
oooo goooo doooooooooa -24%016% 00000000000
oo0o00o00oooao (20210 0-45%0 4%) ooo
oono
Term and reversion Capitalisation rate 5.756% 10 6.5% The higher the
method (2021: 6.0% to 6.5%)  capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
gooooao oooo 575%06.5% 00000000000

Certain investment properties located in the PRC are
partially owner-occupied and partially subject to existing
tenancies as at the date of valuation. In this connection,
for the property interests in vacant possession, the fair
value has been determined, assuming vacant possession
could be immediately available as at the date of valuation,
using the market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties, adjusted to
the difference of transaction time and physical attributes
between the subject property. For the tenanted property
interests, the fair value has been determined on the
basis of capitalisation of the net income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the respective properties and where
appropriate, also made reference to the comparable
market transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 00OO0OOOOOd
Buildings
held for own Equipment
use and others Total
oooooao oooono oo

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooao goooo

Cost: ooo
At 1 January 2021 0202101010 243 4,584 4,827
Additions oo — 68 68
Disposals oad (122) (526) (648)
Exchange realignment oooao — (21) (21)
At 31 December 2021 and 020210120 310 O

1 January 2022 20220 1010 121 4,105 4,226
Additions oo - 62 62
Exchange realignment oooao - 69 69
At 31 December 2022 020220120 310 121 4,236 4,357

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

uooooooon

At 1 January 2021 0202101010 20 3,160 3,180
Charge during the year oooao 8 140 148
Disposals oad (12) (473) (485)
Exchange realignment oooao — (6) (6)
At 31 December 2021 and 020210120 310 O

1 January 2022 20220 1010 16 2,821 2,837
Charge during the year oooao 6 152 158
Exchange realignment oooao - 26 26
At 31 December 2022 0 20220120 310 22 2,999 3,021
Net carrying amount: ooooo
At 31 December 2022 020220120 310 99 1,237 1,336
At 31 December 2021 020210120 310 105 1,284 1,389
All of the Group’s ownership interests in buildings held for 000000 oODOooODOoOO0Ooooan
own use are located in the PRC. oooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ubooboaoo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has a lease contract for office premises in
Hong Kong used in its operations. The lease of the office
premises has a lease term of 3 years (2021: 3 years).
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased asset.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use

16. O O

oooooooao

(@ DoooO

oo0b0oooooooooooao
ooOoo0oo0oooooobooooao
oofozo2i00oomoooonoog
ooooboobOobOoood

udooooooooooan

assets and the movements during the year are as gooobogo
follows:
RMB’000
ooooo

As at 1 January 2021 0202101010 1,639
Modification o0 3,239
Depreciation charge oooad (1,286)
Exchange realignment gooao (24)
As at 31 December 2021 and 020210 120 310 O 20220 10 10

1 January 2022 3,468
Depreciation charge oooao (1,151)
Exchange realignment oooao 276
As at 31 December 2022 020220120 310 2,593
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

16. LEASES (continued) 16. D OO OO

The Group as a lessee (continued) O0D00000mdo
(b) Lease liabilities (b) D OOQ

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities dododooooooooon

and the movements during the year are as follows: ooood
RMB’000
ooooo
As at 1 January 2021 0202101010 1,595
Modification 00 3,239
Accretion of interest recognised Oo0Dooooano
during the year 43
Payments oo (1,383)
Exchange realignment oooo (24)
As at 31 December 2021 and 0 20210 120 310 O 20220 10 10
1 January 2022 3,470
Accretion of interest recognised oooooooao
during the year 62
Payments oo (1,218)
Exchange realignment oooao 275
As at 31 December 2022 0 20220 120 310 2,589
2022 2021
2022101 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Analysed into: oooo
Current portion ooaoad 1,181 1,100
Non-current portion ogooon 1,408 2,370
2,589 3,470

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 30(d) to the financial statements.

0000000000000
00300 00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

16. LEASES (continued) 16. D OO OO
The Group as a lessee (continued) O0D00000mdo
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) DOO0OoOOOO0OOOOO
relation to leases are as follows: od
2022 2021
20221 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooon ooooano
Interest on lease liabilities oooooao 62 43
Depreciation charge of ooooooooao
right-of-use assets 1,151 1,286
Total amount recognised in oooooooo
profit or loss 1,213 1,329
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (d DO0DOO0oO0OooooOooo
in notes 25(c) to the financial statements. 00025(c)0 00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

16. LEASES (continued) 16. D OO OO
The Group as a lessor oooooooao
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) 00000000 DoDOobOoOooan
consisting of three commercial properties in the PRC under 00moDo14oo0o00oDoDaD
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases 00dooooooooooon
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and 0000000000 oooon
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then O0o0DO0D0OO0ooDOoOoooooon
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised O0DO0O0D0OD0O0OD038,295,0000
by the Group during the year was RMB38,295,000 (2021: 02021000 O 0O 837,259,0000 M O
RMB37,259,000), details of which are included in note 5 to O00o0D0D0OO0OO0OO0OQsO
the financial statements.
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments 020220120310 00 0000 0O
receivable by the Group in future periods under Oo00O0O0o0ODoDOooooOoooan
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as O0D0D0000D0O0o0oooooon
follows:
2022 2021
202210 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Within one year ooo 22,220 34,839
After one year but within two years ooooooo 19,234 23,098
After two years but withinthree years OO 0O 0O OO O 17,416 20,659
After three years but within fouryears 00 0 0 00O O 16,587 17,776
After four years but within five years ooooooboa 15,666 17,184
After five years o0o 43,871 59,175

134,994 172,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 17. DO0OO0OOODODDODOODODDOOOO

PREPAYMENTS

Notes 2022 2021

0o 20220 20210

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooad

Trade receivables oooooano 6,472 2,954

Impairment oo (1,243) (529)

(@) 5,229 2,425

Other receivables and prepayments OO0 0000 0O

oooano (b) 2,784 1,462
8,013 3,887
(@) Trade receivables are due for payment pursuant to the @ ODO0D0ODOO0OOODOOOODaO
terms of the agreements. Normally, the Group does 0o0oDooDooooooOoan
not obtain collateral from customers. ooooooon
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the 00o0DooooDoOooDoOoOD
end of the reporting period, based on the payment do0oDoooDooooooao
schedule and net of loss allowance, is as follows: Oo0o0o0oood
2022 2021
20221 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Within 1 month 1000 4,361 2,425
1 to 2 months 10200 243 —
2 to 3 months 2030 O 625 —
5,229 2,425
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@) (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

17. 0 0O0O0OO0OOO0DOOCOOCOOO
ogad

@ 00O

oobooooboooooonn

of trade receivables are as follows: goood
2022 2021
202207 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
At beginning of year oo 529 202
Impairment losses, net (note 8) Oo0oOoOoOmoooesd 714 327
At end of year 0o 1,243 529
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting 00o0o0o0oooDoDooOon
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. As 00000o0o0ooOoooan
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does ooooDOooOooooooao
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for doooooooooooao
different customer segments, the loss allowance doooooooooooao
based on past due status is not further distinguished oooooooDoDoDboOoon
between the Group’s different customer bases. oo0ooooooooooao
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted Oo0o0oooooooooao
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable doo0ooDooDoooaooao
and supportable information that is available at the ooooO0dooooooaao
reporting date about past events, current conditions gdoodoobooooooan
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Trade doodoooooooooao
receivables are written off (either partially or in full) oooooDooooooomo
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of Oo0ooooooooooaoao
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group O0o0Do0oOoDooooooao
determines that the customer does not have assets or 00o0o0o0o0o0DoDODo0O0O00n

sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

oobooooooobooooDn
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@) (continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

17 0 00OO0OO0OOOOOOOOO
ogad

(@

ood

ooobOoocoooooonon
ooooooooooooan

goon

020220120 310

Past due Past due
within over

Current CIGENTD 90 days
00 009000 0000900
Expected credit loss rate goooooo 1.38% 43.5% 100% 19.2%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 000Moooooo 4,422 1,536 514 6,472
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 0o000D0mpoooooo 61 668 514 1,243
As at 31 December 2021 020210120 310
Past due Past due
within over
Current 90 days 90 days Total
00 00900 0000900 oo
Expected credit loss rate ooooooo 0.6% — 100% 17.9%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ooomoooooo 2,440 — 514 2,954
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 0oooomobooooo 15 — 514 529

(b) The financial assets included in the balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed to
be minimal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18. DO OOOOO
2022 2021
202207 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooao
Deposits with banks oooag 214,885 203,723
Cash on hand oooo 23 47
Cash and bank balances ooooooao 214,908 203,770
Less: Time deposits with original oooooooooao
maturity of more than three ooooog
months when acquired oooo (61,636) —
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooo 153,272 203,770
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank OoDO0ODDODO0O0ODODO0oDOOoDDOOnD
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to I I e B B A W R M R M A
RMB95,425,000 (2021: RMB82,634,000). The RMB is not 95,425,000000202100 O 0O O
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under 826340000 0 00 ODOOODO
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations 000000o0o0oooooooao
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment 0000000 ooDoDOooooan
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted 00000000 ooooooao
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks 000000 O0oOOoooooon
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. goooooad

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits, of
which the original maturity was three months or less, are
made depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

OoOoO0oo0ooono
Oooooogoao

oo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. 0 O0O0OOOOOOO

2022 2021

20221 20210

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ogoooo

Trade payables oo0ooono 621 1,439
Interest payable oooo - 22
Other taxes and charges payable ooooooooo 401 245
Deposits received ooaoao 3,777 5,204
Accrued payroll and other benefits O0O0O0o0ooooo 3,400 2,896
Rental receipt-in-advance oooooa 10,008 12,302
Other payables Ooo0ooagao 968 1,689
19,175 23,797
Included in the balance are trade payables with the 00000 OoO0ooooooaaan
following ageing analysis based on the invoice date as at O00O0D0DO0O00DOoo0DOoOOoOoan

the end of the reporting period: oo

2022 2021

2022101 20210

RMB’000 RMB’000

ogoooo goooo

Within 3 months 3o od 139 235
Over 3 months 3gooagan 482 1,204
621 1,439

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. DOOO

KRR LTST  T8 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021

2022[] 20210 20210

120 310 120 310 1010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
00000 ooo0oo oooono

Short-term advances received ooooooon
from customers

Provision of property ooooooon
management services 888 1,461 1,066
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received O0o0D0Do0Oooooooooogad
to render property management services. The decrease O0O00ooooooooodod2021
(2021: increase) in contract liabilities was mainly due to the do00obooooOooOoOoOoOaOo
decrease (2021: increase) in billing in short-term advances O00D00OD0OD0O02021000 OO0
received from customers at the end of the years. 00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

21. BANK LOAN 21. O OOO
2021
20210
Effective
interest rate
per annum
(%) Maturity RMB’000
ooooao
(%) ooo goooao
Current oo
Current portion of alongtermO O O OO0 0O O 5.05% 2022 7,000
bank loan — secured oood —ooao
2021
20210
RMB’000
ooooao
Analysed into: oooo
Bank loan repayable: O0o0oo0DOoOoOooooooo
Within one year or on demand oo0ooooo 7,000
As at 31 December 2021, a bank loan with a carrying value 0202101203100 0 0 0 O O O
of RMB7,000,000 was secured by investment properties gvzooo0000 00 O0ODOOOOO
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB366,481,000 00ddUoddUdodses481,000
owned by the Group. oooooooooad
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the bank loan 0 020220120310 0 0 00 0O O
was fully repaid and the respective security was released. 00000000 oOOoo0oooOoan
aad
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

22. DEFERRED TAX 22, 000OO
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during O0o0o0oooooooooobooog
the year are as follows: oo

Revaluation ~ Withholding

Provision of tax on

for interest Provision for  investment interest
payment Credit losses depreciation  properties  receivables Others Total

oooo oo oooo
00 gooo gooo gooo ooo oo 0o

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000
goooo  ooooo  ooooO  0OOOO 0OOOCD  OOO0O0 0000O

At 1 January 2021 0202101010 1398 50 (65,090) (117,748) (391) (591) (182,372)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)to 00000000
the consolidated statement of 0omoom

profit or loss during the year oooo - 8 (1,99) (4,387) - 183 (6,118
At 31 December 2021 and 0202101203100
1 January 2022 202201010 1,398 132 (67,086) (122,135) (391) (408) (188,490)

Deferred tax credited/(charged)to 00000000
the consolidated statement of 00moom
profit or loss during the year 00oa (1,398) 179 (1,818) (31) 391 (441) (3,118)

At 31 December 2022 020220120810 - 311 (68,904) (122,166) - (849) (191,608)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

22. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 22. 000D OO

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ocoooo oooood

Deferred tax assets recognisedinthe OO0 0OOO0O0O0O

consolidated statement of financial ooooooooao
position 311 1,530
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in oooooogaog
the consolidated statement of goooooooo
financial position (191,919) (190,020)
(191,608) (188,490)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect ooooooboobobobooboood

of the following items:

2022 2021

2022[] 20210

RMB’000 RMB’000

ogooon goooano

Deductible temporary differences ooooooo 17,869 12,278

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect Oo00oobDoooooooooog

of the above items as it is not considered probable that oodboobooboboooobo
taxable profits will be available against which the above oo0ooooooono

items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 0000000 oDOooooooo
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to 0000000 0000000a0n
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises Oo0o0O0O0oooD10%000000d
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective OO0b0Oogoozoo801010 0 O
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 000 0O 020070120310 O O O
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be 000000 0DODO000OO0O00O0n
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China 00000 o0O0oDoODOoOoOoDoOoOoan
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, 00000 OoD0OOoOoDoooOooan
the applicable rate is 5% or 10% (2021: 5% or 10%). The O00000005% 010912021
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends 005% 010%10 O OO0 0 O 0 0
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland Oo0oDoooooDooooooan
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 200801010 0 0 000ODOOO
2008. oooooooog
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

22,

23.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB2,830,000 at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB1,930,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 represented the issued capital of the
Company and a summary of the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company is as follows:

22,

23.

oooonon

020220120310 00 00 0 0O
oooooooooooooao
ooOoOo0OO0ooobOoooooaon
oooooooboooooon
ooooboooooooooao
0O00000202201203100
o0o0o0oo0ooooooooDn
oobo0ooooooooobDbo
O000000D0Z2830,000002021
000 O 01,930,0000 I

OOooOooooo

oo

020220120 310 0 20210120 310
ooooooooooooooao
oooooooOoooboooon

2022 2021
20220 20210
US$’000 US$'000
Ooo0o Ooodod
Authorised: ooo
4,000,000,000 (2021: goooooiooo
4,000,000,000) ordinary 4,000,000,00000 20210 0
shares of US$0.1 each 4,000,000,0000 00 O O 400,000 400,000
2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooog
Issued and fully paid: ooooooo
441,400,000 (2021: 441,400,00000 20210 0
441,400,000) ordinary 441,400,0000 00 O O
shares 345,042 345,042

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and each of
them is entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

24. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve consisted of (i) merger reserve of
RMB26,800,000 which was resulted from a business
combination involving entities under common control
in 2010; (ii) reserve of RMB44,685,000 due to share
repurchase of Chengdu Everbright International
Mansion Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 2014; and (iii) a waiver of an amount due
to Capital Century Company Limited, an intermediate
holding company of the Company, of RMB10,311,000
in 2016.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of companies outside the PRC.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

24, OO

oooooobobooboooan
ooooooooooobboobn
ooooooooo

() oooo

gooooooooooao
oooobobooooooon
ooooooooOooOO0D
oooobooooboaon
ooooooboobooo
obooooooobooad
goboobobooo

OooOooooo

(i) oooO

000000 @201000 00
DoooOO0O0OoOoOoOOO
0000 002680000000
(00ooOooOoOooooo
000O0O00O000002014
0000000000000
44,685,000000 (i)0 O O O
0000000000000
0000000 010,311,000
ODo201600000

(i) Dooo

oooObOoooooooOOoon
oooODoOoooooooon
oooooooooooonn
ooo0o240000000
oon
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

24. RESERVES (continued)

(iv) PRC statutory reserve

(v)

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profit after taxation (after offsetting the losses
in the preceding years), as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into share
capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held
by them, provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Fair value reserve

A certain portion of a property previously occupied
by the Group as owner-occupied property was
transferred to investment properties in 2020 and a
revaluation surplus was credited to fair value reserve
to account for the difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property at the date
of change in use, determined by using the market
comparison approach by independent firms of
valuers.

The fair value reserve of the Group was not
distributable as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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24, 0OOOO

(ivy DODOoDoO0OO

(v)

ooooooooooao

ugboooboooodooad
ooooboooooao
OO00000O50%0

OOooOoooo

O
O

gogooooooon
ooooaooao

O
O

opoooooooao
ohoomooobad
obooobObOooon
ooboooooooao
ooOoOoOoODO0OoOo0on
obooooooooao
0 25%0

OooOooooo
OO0O0oOooo

O

uoooo

20000000000
goooooooooOo
ooDoooooobooao
oooooOoooooao
ooOoOoO0ooooooao
gbogooaooobn
ooooooobooon
goooo

Oooooooo

O

ooooooooooOoo
Oo0oOO0OO0O0OoOoo1090
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. 0OoO0OOOOOOO

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) JOoOooooo
()  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the () 0O 020210120310 O O
Group had non-cash modifications to right-of- oooDooooOooao
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB3,239,000 Oo0ooooooaoao
and RMBS3,239,000, respectively, in respect of O0DO0o0oDoOoODoooao
lease arrangements for the office premises. O0D0ODOoDO0ooOoooao
03,239,0000 O O O O
3,239,0000 O
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) DO ODOODOOODOO
activities
Listing Interest
expenses payable
included included
in trade in trade
and other  and other Lease
Bank loan payables payables liabilities
goooo DOO0ooo
000000 DOODOOOO
000 oooo 0OO0O0o0Oo 0ooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo ooooo goooo
At 1 January 2021 0202101010 14,000 551 31 1,595
Modification 00 - - - 3,239
Reversal 0o - (651) - -
Changes from financing cash flows gooooooao (7,000) - (635) (1,383)
Finance costs oooo - - 626 43
Foreign exchange movement oooao - - - (24)
At 31 December 2021 and 0202101203100
1 January 2022 202201010 7,000 - 22 3,470
Changes from financing cash flows oooooooao (7,000) - (191) (1,218)
Finance costs oooo - - 169 62
Foreign exchange movement oooo - - - 275
At 31 December 2022 0202200 120 310 - - - 2,589
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. J0O0O0DO0oOoOOoOOoOooo
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) DODODOOOOO
The total cash outflow for leases included in the 0o0oDo0oDoOoooooaao
statement of cash flows is as follows: oooooo
2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooaog
Within financing activities Ooooooao 1,218 1,383
26. COMMITMENTS 26. 00O
The Group had the following capital commitments at the 00000 D0ODOOooDOoOoOOoDOOon

end of the reporting period:

2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Contracted, but not provided for: oooooooa
Additions to investment properties oooood 728 771
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

The Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

27. 0JO0OOO

@)

Related parties: Ooooo
Property leasing income ogooooo
Property management income ooooono
Placement of deposits oooao
Withdrawal of deposits ooaao

ooooooooooboon
goo

2022 2021
2022 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ocoooo oooood
10,005 10,278
306 306
1,083,880 112,696
1,084,851 106,077

Other transactions with related parties:

The Group has entered into a loan service framework
agreement with China Everbright Group Limited dated
2 November 2020 (the “Agreement”) for a term of five
years commencing retrospectively from 1 January
2020 and ending on 31 December 2024, details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 November 2020. During the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group has not utilised
any facilities of the Agreement.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(©

Cash and cash equivalents placed
with a related bank

Trade receivables

Trade and other payables

oooooao

obooooooao
oboooood

ooooooboood

oboboooooo

ooooooooooooon
gob202001M02000000
ooobomoboOooon
0202001010 O O 2024012
O3icoooooooonoao
ooooo0ooo2020011
20000000 020220
020210120310 O O OO O
obooooooooooon
oad

obOobOooooooo

2022 2021
202207 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
Do0O0OoQ OoooOo
24,588 25,559
1,590 795
7,294 7,099
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27. D000 O0OOO
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d DOOOoDDODOoODOOOO
Group:
2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
O000a0 Ooo0ooao
Directors’ fees Ooo00o0ono 780 752
Salaries, allowances and benefitsin O OO0 OO
kind oooao 3,103 2,896
Discretionary bonuses oooo 1,852 1,783
Pension scheme contributions Oooooooo 46 45
Total compensation paid to key oooooooooa
management personnel ooag 5,781 5,476
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive O00o0o0oooooooaaan
officer’'s emoluments are included in note 9 to the Oo0o0oo0ooooaoen

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of property Oo0o0o0oDooOoboooooan
leasing income from Everbright Securities Company Oooooooooooooog
Limited, Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd. and China ooooDoooDoooooood
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. and deposits service from China O00o0DDODO0oo0oDoDoODOooOOoOoDO
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. constitute continuing connected oboboooOOoCoOobboOooooo
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. O14A0000D000DOO0OO0O000
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Oooo4A0 00D D0ODOOOOnn
Rules are provided in the section headed “Continuing Oo0oDoOOoooODbooOOoDboOo OO
Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report. aoad
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets

uoooboobooooaoan

oobooooooobooooboDboDoD

ooao

ugooaad

2022 2021
20220 20210
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
Ooo0o0oao OoOoooOoo
Oo0o0o0oo0aoao O0ooooaoao
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo oooog
Financial assets included intradeand OO0 OO0 O0OOO
other receivables and prepayments oooooooao
oooog 7,035 3,273
Cash and bank balances O0O0o0oagao 214,908 203,770
221,943 207,043
Financial liabilities o000
2022 2021
20220 20210
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
ooooao ooooao
0000000 eyspseENsREgs
RMB’000 RMB’000
Oo000a0 OooO0ooao
Financial liabilities included in trade doodooooon
and other payables ooooooo 5,366 8,354
Bank loan oooa - 7,000
5,366 15,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, financial assets included in trade and other
receivables and prepayments, financial liabilities included
in trade and other payables and a bank loan approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the management of the
Company. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. 00 O0O0O0O0O0O0O0OO
POLICIES

oooooooooognon
oooOooooOoooao
oooooobooogoon
ubooooooond
oooboboobooaao
ooooooOoooon
oboDobooooobooboo
ooooooboooobooo

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise a
bank loan, and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as financial assets included in
trade and other receivables and prepayments, financial
liabilities included in trade and other payables and lease
liabilities, which arise directly from its operations.

OOooooooo
OoOoooooOooOoao
O0oooood

OOo0OooOoooo

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial Oo0o0o0oooooooboooonan

instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, gbobooboobobooonn

credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews 00000 DbOOooOooooooan

and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and 00000 DOO0OoOooDoooon

they are summarised below. oooooooo

(a) Interest rate risk (@) OOoOODO
The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly oo0oDooDoooooooo
to ensure that the underlying risk is monitored within 00000o0ooooooon
an acceptable range. The Group’s interest rate risk Oo0oDooooOOoooaooao
arises primarily from the Group’s cash and bank 0oo0DoDooooooooao
balances and a bank loan. The Group is not exposed gdodoooooooooon
to significant interest rate risk for cash and bank gooobooooooon
balances because the interest rates of cash at banks Oo0oo0ooooooooao
are not expected to change significantly. ooooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s net interest-bearing
financial liabilities (being interest-bearing financial
liabilities less interest-bearing assets, bank
deposits, and cash and bank balances) at the

30. 00O OO0OODOOOOOOO

(@ Doomooo
() oooo

ob0Do0ooooooDoon
Oo0oobooDbOoO O
ooOooooooooon
ob0Oooooooooon
oobooooobOOo0OO

end of the reporting period. gdod
2022 2021
20220 20210
Effective interest rate Effective interest rate
o000 oooao
RMB’000 % RMB'000
goooo % 00000
Bank loan oo0ono - - 5.05 7,000
Less: deposits with banks goooon 0.01-4.90 (214,885) 0.01-1.15 (203,723)
Total net interest-bearing liabilites 0000000 (214,885) (196,723)
Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowing Oo00 O 0202101203100

was arranged on a variable rate basis of Loan
Prime Rate+0.395% and was denominated in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s
profit before tax by approximately RMB2,149,000
(2021: increase/decrease the Group’s profit
before tax by approximately RMB1,967,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate non-derivative instruments which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China
with most of the transactions settled in RMB. The
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily
stems from holdings of cash and bank balances
denominated in HK$. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and considers no significant
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

30. DO00OO0OOOOODOOOOOO

(@ Doomooo

(i)

(b) OO
uad

od
oo
oo
ud
uad
oo

ooooo

0202201203100 O O
OO0DOO0ODO0OO00ooi100
ooobooooooao
oooboooooan
oooooooooon
Oo0o0no0aoDo2149,000
oz2021000 00000
oooobooooooo
1,967,0000 MO

OOo0OooOooooooo
OoooodooooOoo

O

O

oooobooonn
oooboooooaon
gogboooooaoboo
ooooooood
oboDooooDbDOo
gooooboooDbo
oooooooon
ooobooooon
uogoobooboond
oooboooaon

googoooooooon
gboooooooooboboDn
oodooooooooo
oooooobooooan
oboOoooooOo0on
uogooooobodaoo
goooooooonn
ooooooonb
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the HK$ exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax and retained profits.

Hong Kong dollars o0

30. 00O OO0OODOOOOOOO

(b) OCOODOOOO

ooooooooooooao
ooOoobOoocooooonn
ooooooooooooan
oooDooooooooaDo
ao

2022 2021

20220 20210
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit before (decrease)  profit before
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profits rate profits
oooooao oooooo
goooo goooao goooo goooo
oooo 0o oooo oo
RMB’000 RMB'000
ooooo ooo0oo
4,410 5% 4,470
(4,410) (5% (4,470)

The above analysis assumes the change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to each of the
group entities’ exposure to currency risk in existence
at that date while all other variables remain constant.
The stated changes also represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate until the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

30. DO00OO0OOOOODOOOOOO

(c) Creditrisk (c) ODOOO

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and cash and bank
balances. Trade and other receivables mainly arise
from the Group’s revenue from the rental and property
management business.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate, and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 19%
(2021: 20%) and 57% (2021: 52%) of the trade and
other receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

— it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from debtors, the
credit quality of the debtors is assessed, taking into
account their financial position, historical settlement
records, past experience and other factors. The
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for all debtors. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information.

obOooooooooao
ugbooooooooan
goobooooooooan
ooooooooooan
goooooon

O0OooOooog
O OooOoo

obOoooooo0ooogon
oooobooboboodaond
oooooobobooon
oooobooooobooao
oooooboooooobDD
O0D0O0OD0O19%1202100
20%00 5794120210 0 52%0 O
oooooOo0ooooooon
uogoooobboooan
goao

OOooo

oooooooooooon
ooobOooobooooonn
ooooooooooooan
uogboooooobododd
ubooooboboboooban

—o0o000ob00ooooogo

—gooooooboooboo
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—0oo0o0oooooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an
assessment of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk
of default occurring over the remaining life of the
financial instrument. The Group classifies its other
receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as
described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first
recognised, the Group recognised an
allowance based on 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the Group records an
allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 When other receivables are considered
credit-impaired, the Group records an
allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective
assessments for other receivables as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience and other factors.

All deposits with banks with a maturity period over
three months and cash and cash equivalents were
deposited with creditworthy financial institutions
without significant credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. 0000000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) DOOOOOO
Maximum exposure and year-end staging ooooooooao
The tables below show the credit quality and the oooooooooooboobon
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the O00o0oo0ooooooooan
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past OooooOoooooooao
due information unless other information is available 000000 o0O0000 00O
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging 0o0odoODOoobOoOoOoooan
classification as at 31 December. The amounts 120310 000000000
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial gogoooooooobon
assets. ooo
At 31 December 2022 020220120 310

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

120000
oooao ooooooon

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
oooo gooao gooao ooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo goooo o0oooo goooo o0oooo

Trade receivables” goooooe - - - 6,472 6,472
Financial assets included inother DO OD0OCOO0ODO
receivables and prepayments 000000000

- Normal** -go* 1,806 - - - 1,806

Cash and bank balances ooooooao
- Not yet past due -0ooao 214,908 - - - 214,908
216,714 - - 6,472 223,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

At 31 December 2021

30. 00O OO0OODOOOOOOO

(0 DOoOOOOO

ooo0o0oooo0Oo0oboOon

020210120 310

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
120000
gooao goooooono
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
goon oooo oooo ooo oo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
oooon ooooo oooon oooon ooooo
Trade receivables” goooooe — - — 2,954 2,954
Financial assets included inother 000000000 O00ODO
receivables and prepayments 000000
- Normal™ -go* 848 - - - 848
Cash and bank balances goooooa
- Not yet past due -a00ao 203,770 - - - 203,770
204,618 - - 2,954 207,572

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.

> The credit quality of the financial assets included in
other receivables and prepayments is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the respective parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

For subsidiaries with statutory liquidity requirements,
the Group monitors closely their liquidity position.
To ensure strict compliance, the Group maintains
adequate cash reserves to prepare for immediate fund
injection if required. If there is a medium-to-long term
operation need, management would also consider
adjusting those subsidiaries’ capital structure.
Subsidiaries with external equity stakeholders
are generally responsible for their own liquidity
management.

30. DO00OO0OOOOODOOOOOO

(d DoOoOooO
0000000000000
DoDo0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O000
D0O0O0O00O0O0O0O0O0O00
D0000C0O00O0O0O0O00
0000000000000
0DoO0O0oO0oO0O0O0O0OO0O0O00
0000000000000
0000000000000
DoO0O0O0O0O00O0O0000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. 0000000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d DOoO0DO0DO0DOoo0og

Total
contractual More than More than
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year 1yearbut  2years but

amount  cash flows orondemand within 2 years within 5 years
oooon 0000 100 200

000 000000 000 0200 0500
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
00000 0oooo ooooo 00000 00o00d

Financial liabilities included intrade 000000000000

and other payables ooog 5,366 5,366 5,366 - -
Lease liabilities oooo 2,589 2,648 1,222 1,222 204
7,955 8,014 6,588 1,222 204
2021
20210
Total
contractual More than More than

Carrying  undiscounted  Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
amount cashflows  orondemand  within 2 years  within 5 years
0oooo 01ooao 100 200

000 [DOO0O0OO0 ooo 0200 gs0d
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo goooo

Financial liabilities included intrade 000000000000

and other payables oooa 8,304 8,304 8,304 - -
Bank loan ooon 7,000 7,175 7175 - -
Lease liabilities oooo 3,470 3,582 1,159 1,118 1,305
18,824 19,111 16,688 1,118 1,305
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. 0000000000 OOOO
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital management (e) DOOO

The Group’s primary objectives for managing capital doo0ooooooooaoao
are to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to gboooboooobooano
support its business and to safeguard the Group’s ooooooooooooan
ability to continue as a going concern. oood

The Group manages its capital structure and make 00000 OooDOooooOoanon
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic 0o0o0oDoDoDoODDoOOoODOOO
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure do0odoDodoodoooooao
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital oo0ooooboooooonon
and the associated risks. The Group will balance its Oo0ooboooooooao
overall capital structure through payment of dividends, Oo0o0oooooooooao

new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or 000000000 020220
the redemption of existing debts. No changes were 020210120310 O O OO O
made in the objectives, policies or processes during gooooooooooo

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its Oo0ooooooooooao
debt position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain ooo0oooooooooao
the Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group’s total 00000 o0omoDbooano
liabilities over its total assets. The gearing ratio as at 000000 0m 020220
31 December 2022 was 18% (2021: 19%). 120310000000 0018%

020210 019%M

The Company was not subject to externally imposed 0000 020220 02021012
capital requirements during the years ended 31 O3i000o0ooooonoao
December 2022 and 2021. ooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
gooobbdon

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

31. JO0O0OOOoOoOd

COMPANY
2022 2021
20220 20210
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo oooono
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ooooo
Property, plant and equipment oooooogo 472 502
Right-of-use assets ooood 2,593 3,468
Interests in subsidiaries Oooooooao 635,752 111,461
638,817 115,431
CURRENT ASSETS oooo
Amounts due from subsidiaries dooooooao 113,840 122,890
Other receivables and prepayments ooooooo
oooo 814 683
Cash and bank balances ooooooao 119,374 120,956
234,028 244,529
CURRENT LIABILITIES oooo
Amount due to a subsidiary oooooooag 163 179
Other payables oooooo 2,618 2,303
Lease liabilities oooad 1,181 1,100
3,962 3,582
NET CURRENT ASSETS oooood 230,066 240,947
TOTAL ASSETSLESS CURRENT OO0 OOOOOOO
LIABILITIES 868,883 356,378
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooo
Lease liabilities oood 1,408 2,370
Deferred tax liabilities gooooo - 134
1,408 2,504
NET ASSETS oooo 867,475 353,874
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ooooo
Share capital od 345,042 345,042
Reserves (note) oooooo 522,433 8,832
TOTAL EQUITY oooo 867,475 353,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

uboooooo

31 December 2022 20220 120 310

31.

32.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. 00D O0DoooOoooo
COMPANY (continued)
Note: ooo
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ooooooooooo
Retained
profits/
Share Capital Exchange (accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
goooao
gooao pooao gooao gooooo 0o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooao ooooao ooooao ooooo ooooao
At 1 January 2021 0202101010 45,063 10,311 (58,306) 39,649 36,717
Profit for the year gooo - - - 1,519 1,519
Other comprehensive expense for the year: gooooooog
Exchange differences on translation of financial goooooooooa
statements - - (10,512) - (10,512)
Special dividend paid oooooa - - - (6,621) (6,621)
Final 2020 dividend 202000000 - - - (8,479) (8,479)
Interim 2021 dividend 20100000 - - - (3,796) (3,796)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 020210120310 0202201010 45,063 10,311 (68,818) 22,276 8,832
Loss for the year 0ooo - - - (28,458) (28,458)
Other comprehensive income for the year: goooooooo
Exchange differences on translation of financial goooopooooag
statements - - 17,349 - 17,349
Final 2021 dividend 202100000 - - - (4,370) (4,370)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common control 000000000000 - 529,080 - - 529,080
At 31 December 2022 020220120310 45,063 539,391 (51,469) (10,552) 522,433
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 32. DO OO0Od

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2023.

O000020230302800 000
oooooobooo
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
oo

For the year ended 31 December 2022 — (Expressed in RMB) 0 020220 120310000 00 O0O0OO0O0OO

A summary of the result and of the assets and liabilities of the O 00000 ODOOOOOODOOOO
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the OO0 0000 OCOO0O0OOCOOOO0OODN
published audited financial statements is set out below: 0oooooooo

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS oo0o0O

Year ended 31 December
00120310000
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20220 20210 20200 20190 20180
{00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
INEREREEEER (| (000 00000 O0O000 OO000

Revenue 00 52,297 52,678 51,734 71,274 61,742
Profit before tax oooo 28,804 43,642 45,699 54,049 53,269
Income tax expense oooodO (6,751) (10,969 (11,717) (16,768) (16,715)
Profit for the year oooon 22,053 32,673 33,982 37,281 36,554
Attributable to: ooooooo

Owners of the Company oooooo 22,053 32,673 33,982 37,281 36,554
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ooooood

At 31 December
0120 310
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20220 20210 20200 20190 20180
00N RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
EEEREEEE 0000 00000 00000 00000

Total assets ooo 1,181,261 1,167,744 1,163,761 1,145,401 1,109,498
Total liabilities ooo (215,973)  (227,013)  (229,118)  (225,455)  (230,443)
Net assets ooo 965,288 940,731 934,643 919,046 879,055
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